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OUR FINANCIAL RESULTS
Consolidated financial highlights £m
2005/06

2004/05
restated

Trading income

99.9

88.7

Restoration and third party funding

14.5

17.0

Government grants
Total revenue

76.1
190.5

73.4
179.1

Total expenditure

(190.1)

(186.5)

Operating profit/(loss)

0.4

(7.4)

7.7

1.1

11.5

14.8

3.5

-

Share of operating profits and losses
of associates and joint ventures
Profit on sale of investment properties
Profit on sale of other fixed asset investment
Net interest payable

(2.1)

(3.0)

Other finance expense

(0.7)

(0.5)

Profit for the financial year before taxation

20.3

5.0

Taxation

(6.8)

(2.7)

Profit for the financial year after taxation
Average number of employees

13.5

2.3

1,926

1,935

BW Group comprises the British Waterways Board (BW) and those subsidiaries incorporated to act solely on behalf of,
and for the benefit of, British Waterways.

British Waterways is a public corporation accountable to the
Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs in England
and Wales, and the Scottish Executive in Scotland. We manage
a 2,000-mile long, 200-year-old network of canals and rivers.

Front cover image: A family enjoy a meal at the Foxton
Locks Pub, the first in our new waterside pub venture.

Minister for Inland Waterways, England and Wales:
Barry Gardiner MP (from May 2006)
Jim Knight MP (until May 2006)
Minister for Transport and Telecommunications, Scotland:
Tavish Scott MSP (from June 2005)
Nicol Stephen MSP (until June 2005)

OUR
VISION
Our ambition is that by 2012 we will have created
an expanded, vibrant, largely self-sufficient waterway
network used by twice as many people as in 2002.
It will be regarded as one of the nation’s most
important and valued national assets. Visitors
will be delighted by the quality of the experience
and as a consequence many will become active
participants.
We will achieve this by an absolute focus on and
commitment to our customers. By researching and
listening to the wide range of people who visit our
waterways, and the many people who run waterside
businesses, we will understand their needs, and deliver
what they want.
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The delight of watching boats
cruise along the historic Grand
Union Canal at Hatton.

MEASURING SUCCESS
How we measured our success in 2005/06*
• Making our waterways vibrant and valued, so we double visitor
numbers by 2012 (compared to 2002 figures)

Steady visitor numbers as planned, see page 18

• Providing visitors with an experience which will delight them,
so they are encouraged to become active participants and
appreciate waterway heritage, wildlife and traditions

Positive increases in customer satisfaction levels
and public perception, see page 23

• Eliminating the backlog of statutory maintenance arrears and
meeting targets for water availability and quality so that
waterways are safe and reliable to use

Substantial progress towards reducing maintenance
arrears, see page 12

• Growing our businesses and services, so they enhance customer
satisfaction, as well as help deliver greater self-sufficiency

Promising developments for leisure business, see pages
18-21 and property business, see pages 24-27

• Developing our culture to improve safety, openness and
accountability, sustainability, commercial awareness and
customer service, so we can better serve our stakeholders

Improvements in corporate responsibility areas,
see pages 32-41

• Completing our restoration schemes, so that they deliver more
opportunities to visit waterways and create wider public benefits
such as access to heritage, jobs, tourism and regeneration

Major involvement in high profile regeneration, see pages 26-27

• Proactively working with government and partners, so we deliver
exemplar public service which is good value for money

Delivering good value, see examples throughout the report

Good water availability, see page 12

Excellent progress towards restoration, see pages 28-29

* Performance measures stated in the Annual Report & Accounts 2004/05

Success over 2006/07 will be measured by our progress towards:
• Improving customer satisfaction and growing visitor numbers
• Providing a safe environment for our people, contractors and visitors
• Making a major contribution to regeneration in both urban and rural communities
• Maintaining a safe and reliable infrastructure
• Developing our people and increasing job satisfaction levels
• Delivering greater self-sufficiency
We could measure success in many different ways given the wide
range of social, economic, environmental, heritage and educational
benefits we deliver. However, we believe visitor numbers reflect
how well we maintain the infrastructure, environment, heritage and
culture of the waterways. That is why we have made doubling the
number of waterway visits our prime objective.

Greater financial self-sufficiency means that we will strive to
maximise the financial contribution from our commercial activities
and improve our efficiency in running and maintaining the core
waterway network. Greater net income will be generated by the
expected increase in visitor numbers together with significant
growth in the contribution from our commercial activities.

We know that our waterways act as an effective catalyst for urban
and rural regeneration. We see and plan the change in waterway
corridors well ahead of others and we often pioneer regeneration.
We will continue to work closely with local, regional and central
government to harness their resources to enable our waterways to
deliver increasing social and economic benefit to local communities.
Through our property estate and joint venture companies we will
develop exemplar mixed use brownfield waterside developments
that optimise their relationship with the waterways.

OUR VISION 03

PUBLIC BENEFITS
FROM HISTORIC
WATERWAYS
Britain’s waterways are a vital part of our national heritage
and environment. In my first year as chairman I feel a real
sense of pride to have joined such a quality organisation
so committed to delivering public benefit from a wonderful
historic asset.
The challenge for the Board and the management is to ensure
that we protect what is best from the past, and also make our
waterways relevant to the widest numbers in society, today
and for years to come. Canals were tremendous technological
inventions, they were part of radical social and economic
change that forged the modern industrial world. Today society
is still changing, lifestyles are evolving, technology is different,
the environment is altering. We respond to these changes by
ensuring our waterways are relevant and remain capable
of delivering public benefit across a wide geographical and
social spread.
Indeed our waterways are probably the single greatest catalyst
for urban and rural regeneration in the UK enriching many
people’s lives.
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Out and about on one of our
historic waterways, chairman,
Tony Hales learns more about
Stourport Basin from moorings
officer, Helen Underhill.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
We depend for nearly half our costs on financing from the public
purse and must support the broader public agenda to continue to
receive this support. In line with pressures on government budgets,
particularly in England and Wales, we are likely to have a reduced
grant in the future. In order to maintain or enhance the current level
of activity, we must continue to make our waterways deliver their
economic potential by growing our revenue from other sources,
through appropriate commercial activities, and we must relentlessly
seek to reduce our cost base through smarter working practices.
Our waterways have also been one of the most powerful catalysts
for regeneration, particularly in some of the most run down areas of
our major cities. It is true to say that where once these cities turned
their back on the waterways, they are now at the very heart of many
of the new public spaces that enrich so many lives. All around the
world, water has led regeneration and British Waterways with its
assets and skilled people is at the forefront of regeneration in the
UK. With this in mind, we look forward to contributing to the Olympics
and the Olympic legacy through our exciting vision for the area that
will link it to the Thames and other parts of London by a network of
attractive waterways and towpaths.
As with all our activities we seek to balance the different demands
of the many interested parties to deliver solutions that provide real
public benefit, as well as being sustainable, attractive, and
commercially feasible. It is this breadth of approach which makes
British Waterways such a valued partner to many local and regional
authorities.
A Year of Achievement
This year has been another year of considerable achievement.
We have:
• improved the historic waterway network, so it is secure,
safe and attractive for our visitors. £107m has
been spent on maintenance and recovering the backlog
of repairs from previous years such as dredging, clearing
towpaths, improving water management and replacing
lock gates.
• facilitated the expansion of the network with major projects
in Glasgow, Manchester, Liverpool, the West Midlands, the Welsh
Borders and the Cotswolds where the support and guidance
of the Heritage Lottery Fund, Regional Development Agencies,
European Regional Development funds, Local Authorities and
English Partnerships amongst many others has been invaluable.

• contributed to the regeneration agenda across the country
through partnerships that leverage our assets and skills
while limiting our risks through a series of joint ventures.
Our involvement as a partner in potentially 6,000 new homes
and around six billion pounds of investment makes British
Waterways a leading participant in an area where demand
continues to outstrip supply, particularly for affordable housing.
Focus on Customers and Partners
As we look forward we are committed to a renewed focus on our
customers. We will attract more people to use these wonderful
national assets for boating, walking, jogging, cycling, angling,
education - for pure enjoyment and pleasure. Our aim is to double
the number of visitors by 2012 – a major contribution to local
tourism and the local economy. We recognise the importance of our
commercial partners in this goal, not least the boating trade, with
whom we are determined to build closer relations. The volunteer
organisations are also vital partners with whom we can work more
closely, as are our partners in property regeneration. We look to
Defra, who has supported us well in the past, to help us improve our
efficiencies by putting their funding of our operations in England and
Wales into a longer term contract dependent on agreed performance
measures. In Scotland we will continue to work closely with the
Scottish Executive to expand the role of the waterways as a vital
catalyst in an agenda of wider public benefit to Scotland.
Thanks to the Team
Finally, I would like to pay tribute to our people. Manning the locks
and engaging with boating enthusiasts on a summer’s day is a
highly attractive job. Engaging with people behaving in an anti-social
manner is considerably more demanding. They can sometimes be
verbally and physically abusive to staff, customers and property.
Yet our people’s passion to engage all our visitors, from young
offenders on community service to the regular boating enthusiast,
in the many different attributes of our waterways, makes a real
difference. Our executive team, ably led by Robin Evans, have a
clear vision and strong determination to succeed. We are fortunate
to have so many skilled and dedicated people who work in support
and on behalf of the Board; I thank all of them for all their
contribution this last year.

Tony Hales
Chairman

• increased our expenditure on the waterways by generating
more income ourselves so that over half our revenue is now
self-generated, with a notable increase in property revenue.
This is becoming more important in a climate where we can
rely less on the same level of government grant funding.
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PUTTING CUSTOMERS
AND COMMUNITIES
FIRST
British Waterways has an extraordinarily varied remit.
Above all else we must maintain 2,000 miles of waterway
so they are safe and accessible to 29,000 boats and
300 million individual visits per annum, but that hides
an impressive list of other outputs that create public
benefit for communities across the country.
Our wide remit to deliver public benefit from our historic
waterways is both a strength, because it justifies the
considerable grant we receive from government, but
also a weakness because it could make it difficult
for the organisation to focus and prioritise. However,
common to all the work we do and the outputs we
deliver are our customers.
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Chief executive, Robin Evans
chats to staff at our
Bradley Workshop.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
STATEMENT
Only by believing in our remit to delight our customers - all of them will we achieve our vision. This is no easy task as our resources are
finite, customers require ever increasing standards of service and
there are numerous conflicts between different customers’ needs.
However, in 2005/06 we made significant progress towards
achieving a sustainable waterway that will attract increasing
numbers of visitors in the future.
Putting the customers and communities first - Safety
The safety of our visitors, staff, contractors and neighbours is the
primary duty of British Waterways. Sometimes we are criticised
for an over zealous approach to Health and Safety but I am proud
of our achievements in recent years. Our historic network and the
nature of our work create daily hazards and we have to work hard
to minimise the risk of accidents. We set ourselves high standards
and achieve them and for this reason our customers have come
to expect and experience safe and attractive waterways.
Putting the customer first - Boating and Angling
Boaters and anglers are special customers for us. They are
passionate about their chosen interests and consequently passionate
about the waterways. We value that passion and commitment.
Boats are critical to the future of our waterways as they provide
a link to the past, a current purpose, and a colourful activity that
attracts so many visitors to our towpaths. So meeting the needs
of our boating customers is a high priority. I am delighted that this
year we are able to report a record number of boating customers
with 29,000 boats licensed on our waterways, up 6% on last year.
We have been focusing on the things boating customers tell us are
important, and a major concern this year has been excessive growth
of towpath vegetation. This year we completed our vegetation
pledge - to cut every towpath from water’s edge to hedge at least
once a year. We haven’t applied this standard unthinkingly or uniformly
as there are many stretches of bank that are protected for nature
conservation, or that have a character that local communities would
consider a loss, but we calculate over 90% of our towpaths have
and will continue to be cut in this way.
Depth of water available is another important concern for boating
customers and so last year we spent a record £7m on dredging.
This enormous investment doesn’t buy the quantity it used to as new
legislation and environmental controls now means it can cost £100
per digger bucket to lift and dispose of dredgings.

The vast majority of our law abiding boating customers pay for their
licences and so licence payment evasion is a cause for concern
and irritation to many customers. That is why we are cracking down
on this problem. Along with regular boat checks, increasing patrol
staff, and National Boat Check Week we plan to spend almost
three times the amount spent in 2005/06 next year. In 2005/06
we removed a total of 81 boats from our waterways because they
failed to take out a licence.
We also know new boating customers are sometimes discouraged
from buying a boat because of the shortage of available moorings.
We must not create endless lines of moorings along our waterways
that spoil their attraction. So this year we set about making it easier
for developers to invest in marinas, setting up a New Marinas Unit to
work with prospective clients. With support from the British Marine
Federation and the Yacht Harbour Association we analysed the
market and launched our Inland Marina Investment Guide to a very
favourable reception. The initiative has generated a strong flow
of investment enquiries that will benefit the leisure industry and
individual customers alike.
Our surveys show that anglers’ satisfaction with our service improved
this year with 95% rating overall enjoyment as ok, good or excellent,
compared with 92% last year. Although good, we are not content
with this. During the year we restated our commitment to angling
after extensive discussions with the national angling bodies about
their concerns. Each waterway will produce an angling plan as part
of its business plan in autumn 2006/07. We look forward to
developing our relationship with angling customers.
Putting the customer first – Towpath Visitors
A staggering 300 million visits are made to our waterways each
year by boaters, anglers, walkers and cyclists. We spend £3.7m per
annum on vegetation management such as cutting the verges and
hedges on the towpaths. We build car parks and place interpretation
panels at busy places so visitors can understand and learn about
the waterways.
95% of people we survey tell us they view canals as an important
part of the nation’s heritage. I believe our skills in maintaining and
improving this heritage is vital to improving customer satisfaction.
For example, at Foxton Locks in Leicestershire, where we have
invested significantly in new facilities and maintenance of historic
fabric, customer satisfaction and visitor numbers have both risen.
In 2005 some 38% of visitors described their overall enjoyment
as ‘excellent’, up 14 percentage points on the previous year (2004:
24%) and visitor numbers have increased by 31%. That is the kind
of change we are determined to achieve more widely.
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A family enjoy a day out at Foxton,
on the Grand Union Canal

Putting the customer first – Business Customers
Working with businesses is a big part of what we do. Hundreds
of waterway businesses depend on us for their livelihood and
we earned £114.4m this year, an increase of 8.2% from 2004/05,
from our own business activities either directly, for example boat
licences, moorings, and property rents or indirectly through our
property developments, joint ventures and partnerships.
Working with businesses, trading fairly and maintaining a mutually
beneficial relationship with those who want to do business on or
adjacent to our waterways is an essential ingredient of success.
We were therefore very disappointed to find ourselves in dispute
with the British Marine Federation this year over our marinas and
moorings business. This was not good for our customers, either
organisation or the future of the waterways. I was pleased therefore,
following mediation in February 2006, that we reached a common
understanding and agreed a series of confidence building measures
that I am certain will rebuild our relationship with the marina trade.
There must never again be any doubt as to our absolute
commitment to trade fairly.
Our partnerships continue to flourish. We were particularly pleased
this year to have joined with Canary Wharf Group plc and Ballymore
Properties Ltd to develop Wood Wharf as an exemplar mixed-use
development in the heart of Docklands. ISIS, our well established
joint venture with Amec Developments and Igloo Regeneration Fund
(managed by Morley Fund Management), secured planning permission
at its Manchester, Leeds and Glasgow sites and is making very
good progress elsewhere. Our Waterside Pub Partnership with
Scottish and Newcastle Pub Enterprises opened two new pubs
this year, one of them at Foxton contributing to the site’s improved
visitor experience and satisfaction levels.
Putting the customer first – Local Communities
As we improve our waterways, build new ones, rebuild old ones,
find new uses for under-used land and buildings, we act as a quite
remarkable catalyst for both urban and rural regeneration.
The power of our waterways to attract inward investment into
rundown, problem towns and cities is well recognised by local and
national government and the voluntary sector. Last year we received
£9.5m from local authorities, Regional Development Agencies,
Lottery Funds, Canal Trusts and Europe for work to improve our
canals which will in turn attract inward investment creating jobs
and housing for local communities.

Putting the customer first – Government
We continue to be well supported by both Defra and the Scottish
Executive. Defra’s grant returned to £62.6m this year following last
year’s cut of £2.5m, and we continue to discuss a longer term
contracted arrangement with them. Securing a more certain grant
regime is essential if we are to give best value for money. We have
been advised of cuts to both our 2006/07 and 2007/08 grants but
these came too late to properly plan and inevitably some important
capital works will have to be forgone to achieve the savings.
In Scotland the Scottish Executive has accepted our need for
increased grant and they confirmed that from 2006/07 our grant
will be £10.9m and in 2007/08 £11.4m, compared with £8.9m
baseline grant in 2005/06. This is a magnificent vote of confidence
in the work of BW Scotland and represents a significant increase
in grant from when we first received direct grant from the Scottish
Executive in 2001.
Putting customers and communities first –
Delivering Efficiency
Customers and communities pay for the upkeep of the waterways
either directly (through charges like licence fees, angling rents,
property rents) or indirectly (through tax, both personal and
corporate). It is our duty to make the very best use of this income
and deliver exceptional value for money. We believe we achieve this
but are conscious that in an increasingly competitive environment
we need to do more to deliver increased output from less money.
Already we are reducing our office costs by moving to smaller
premises and by introducing new ways of working that reduce the
need for dedicated expensive office space. We spend between
£25-35m on major capital works each year and we are determined
to increase value for money in this area too.
It has been another successful year for British Waterways and
that is a result of our people and partners working hard to achieve
a shared vision. I would like to thank them and our customers for
their support, encouragement and above all their belief in the
waterways for the future.

Robin Evans
Chief Executive
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MANAGING HISTORIC
WATERWAYS, SERVING
CUSTOMERS AND
ENRICHING PEOPLE’S
LIVES
Everything British Waterways does is for our customers,
be they boaters, towpath visitors, marina operators, local
and central government, and the many other people and
organisations we consider customers.
This is our Business Review taking account of how we
manage our historic waterways, provide leisure to millions,
regenerate waterside areas and communities, and offer
a service to businesses.
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From the safety of a viewing
platform, local school children
were able see and learn about
our engineering works at Caen
Hill, on the Kennet & Avon Canal

SECURING THE
FUTURE OF OUR
HISTORIC ESTATE
The historic structures of our waterways are what makes
them so attractive to our visitors. They are also integral to the
functioning of a well used 21st century network. Our single
biggest commitment is to the sensitive maintenance and
operation of our waterways and in 2005/06 we again invested
significant resources into improving their structural condition
whilst ensuring their historic character and appeal remain.

We spent
over £25.6m
on eliminating
our arrears of
engineering works.
We made 217
lock gates at our
workshops during
the year.

It is this careful balance between preserving the past
and creating a safe attractive and functional waterway
network that will determine our success. We have
long-term programmes to maintain our structures like
locks, bridges and aqueducts to agreed standards that
respect both their history and purpose.
Bridges, tunnels and aqueducts
We grade the condition of our main structures from
A to E, where A is good and E is poor. We then use a
comprehensive scoring system to decide which assets
are most critical to our many customer needs and
should therefore be repaired first. In 2005/06 we
continued to improve the overall condition of our
major structures, with fewer of our assets being
graded D and E.
Maintenance arrears
Government grant underfunding in the 1980s and
early 1990s led to a backlog of serious engineering
work, which we term our statutory maintenance
arrears. If we are to have accessible functioning
waterways we must eliminate these arrears and we
have set ourselves a target to do so by 2012. During
2005/06 we spent £25.6m towards this, compared
with £27.2m in 2004/05. We still have £119m of
arrears outstanding and our target for elimination
although hugely challenging remains 2012.

Lock gates
Lock gates are a very good example of historic
structures needing to be in excellent condition and
working order to fulfil their critical role. To ensure
we retain the historic integrity and attractiveness we
employ 24 craftsmen with specialised skills to make
lock gates at our Bradley and Stanley Ferry workshops.
During 2005/06 we manufactured a total of 217 lock
gates and refurbished a further 16.
A forward programme of lock gate replacement
for the next three years was agreed with all our
waterway units in December 2005, which allowed
scheduled replacement of the 229 lock gates
included in our 2006/07 programme to begin
promptly in January 2006.
Water management
With rainfall once again below average during
2005/06, parts of England and Wales suffered acute
water shortages and restrictions. Despite this challenge,
the improvements we have made in water supply
forecasting and management meant that only a small
number of restrictions were necessary. The Leeds
& Liverpool Canal summit closed for four weeks
in September (it was opened again, with restricted
passage, in time for half-term), and minor overnight
navigation restrictions were imposed on the Kennet
& Avon Canal in July.
We have continued to monitor our reservoirs through
one of the driest winters on record and are optimistic
that widespread restrictions will not be required this
summer.
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Two new 3.2-tonne lock gates are craned
in at Caen Hill Locks on the Kennet & Avon
Canal, part of £0.25m planned engineering
works here.
BUSINESS

With depth of
water being a
major concern for
boaters, we spent
£7m on dredging
this year.
In one week alone,
as part of our
Towpath Tidy
campaign, staff
and around 700
volunteers
collected an
estimated 150
tonnes of rubbish.

In 2005, lock usage – the number of times a lock
goes through its full cycle of being opened and filled
– was up 2% on the year before. Average usage
reached 2,844 usage cycles per lock per year, and a
maximum 9,500 was recorded at Colwich Lock on
the Trent & Mersey Canal.
During 2005/06 we further invested to improve
water resource forecasting and management. We
held regular water budget meetings throughout the
boating season, creating a week-by-week deployment
strategy for the main connected network. We
compiled a record of canal breaches – an archive
that will help us manage the risk of future breaches
much more effectively and we ran a series of trials
assessing water losses, and developed a predictive
model that will help us manage these losses better
in future.
Dredging
Depth of water is a major concern for many boating
customers. We put a lot of our resource into
dredging, spending £20m over the past five years.
Dredging expenditure for the year 2005/06 alone
touched £7m. Recent legislative changes and
guidance have driven up the disposal costs for
dredged material where the use of commercial
landfills is necessary, meaning higher costs for less
length dredged. In some cases the need for pretreatment, additional haulage, and disposal costs has
resulted in additional costs of £80 per tonne.
Having renegotiated our national dredging contract
during the year we are now working closely with our
appointed contractors on new treatment methods
that we hope will contain the additional costs
associated with a further round of legislation.
These changes are expected to come into effect
in July 2007.
Vegetation
The management of vegetation along our waterways
is a big concern for our boating customers but also
towpath users and environmentalists. As with heritage,
we need to strike a balance between the needs of
a fully functioning waterway and creating attractive,
environmentally rich verges and hedgerows.
We acknowledged two years ago that we hadn’t got
this balance right and too much of the towpath and
offside was overgrown.
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We now spend annually around £3.7m on grass
cutting, hedge and tree management, and boundary
maintenance. In 2005/06 we invested an extra
£1.1m across all our waterway units to begin tackling
a backlog of off-side tree work. A lot of this work
took place in early spring 2006 in time for many
customers to see a difference at the start of the
new cruising season. Investment was also made in
our Geographic Information System (GIS) to inspect
and digitally map trees. This has enabled resources
to be targeted much more effectively and we intend
to extend this mapping technique right across the
network over the next few years. All this work was
undertaken with strict adherence to our Environmental
Code of Practice and Biodiversity Action Plans.
Litter
Our visitors and local communities quite rightly want
to enjoy clean and attractive waterways. Litter
represents an increasing challenge to us as it does in
most public areas. The best solution for the waterways
would be to eliminate the creation of litter in the first
place and our long-term approach is to work with
local authorities and community groups to encourage
the public to take their litter home. However, we still
have to deal with litter in the short-term.
We spend £1.3m each year on collecting and
disposing of litter, while encouraging the recycling
of glass, plastic and paper where possible. During
2005/06 we renegotiated our waste disposal
contract for the southern waterways and have since
seen widespread improvements in site cleanliness.
The proportion of functional towpath visitors rating
towpath cleanliness as ok, good or excellent in 2005
was 98% – up from 90% in 2004. Our Towpath Tidy
spring clean campaign continues to generate lots
of enthusiasm among our people and volunteers for
preparing the network for the season ahead. In the
week before Easter 2006, with the help of almost
700 volunteers, we removed an estimated 150
tonnes of litter from the waterways, up 22% from
last year’s Tidy.

As well as collecting litter, our annual Towpath Tidy
encourages office-based staff, such as Anneliese
Goulder pictured here, and volunteers to help paint
railings, gates and remove graffiti.

WORKING OUR HERITAGE,
CULTIVATING OUR
ENVIRONMENT
We believe the waterway environment and heritage are
special. A vibrant mix of old and new, natural and built, their
qualities and potential are unparalleled in the UK or around
the world. Expert management of this remarkable resource
is crucial to our business success. We are more committed
than ever to achieving the most sustainable integration of the
21st century needs and uses of our network whilst at the
same time conserving the wildlife and heritage of the
waterways. Almost every activity we undertake is related in
some way to the heritage or environment of the waterways,
and we have dedicated programmes to enhance the quality
of the waterway environment and heritage.
Sites of special scientific interest

Top:

A highly effective historic innovation,
our locks are as relevant today as they
were 200 year ago.
Above: A dragonfly, just one of the many species
for which our waterways have become an
ideal habitat.
Left:
3,115 bridges, like this one at Stoke
Bruerne, make up part of the waterways’
special heritage.

We own or manage many locations identified as important for
natural conservation, including 65 Sites of Special Scientific Interest
(SSSI) that enjoy statutory protection. New legislation lays added
responsibility on SSSI managers to pursue maximum ecological
value in supporting designated species and habitats as described
in a dedicated Site Management Statement. British Waterways is
committed to agreeing Site Management Statements for all our
SSSIs before 2007. To date we have agreed 25 statements, up
18 on last year’s total, with a further 22 in progress.
Action on biodiversity
Launched in April 2006, an innovative Biodiversity Action Plan
(BAP) for the entire network helps us evaluate and manage our
assets in a way that reconciles maximum consistency across the
waterways with responsiveness to our business needs. Accessible
at any British Waterways computer terminal, the new BAP can be
constantly updated in the light of works on the ground or changing
policy aspirations.
Wildlife Survey
Boosted by the invaluable input of hundreds of waterway visitors,
our Wildlife Survey uncovered rare and even bizarre species in
2005/06 on the nation’s waterways. While ducks, swans, herons
and dragonflies may be common enough canal guests, extraordinary
sightings took in seals, dolphins, porpoises and ospreys – plus an
unverified report of a modestly sized crocodile that helped generate
widespread media interest. The survey recorded over 3,700 sightings
of 60 species, including some of the UK’s most important wildlife.
Towpath mowing
Public consultation on our Towpath Mowing Guidelines continued
during 2005/06, with organisations, individuals and interested
parties invited to make their views known online. We are grateful
for a wide range of candid and constructive comments, all of which
enrich and improve the consultation process. A progress report
is available online at www.britishwaterways.co.uk/mowing
Regulation and compliance
There are increasing, but understandable, demands made on us
through regulation such as the EU Water Framework Directive.
Although well intentioned, new legislation and regulation can have
very serious detrimental effects on the waterways if the intricate
balance of users, heritage and environment are not properly
understood. As well as working with Defra, the Environment Agency
and the Scottish Environment Protection Agency to understand the
implications of regulation, we are a member of the Association of
Inland Navigation Authorities (AINA). We work with AINA and other
organisations to voice legitimate concerns. Key consultation areas
during 2005/06 included waste management and the Water
Framework Directive.
Waste management
Following strong representation from British Waterways and AINA,
government and regulators have agreed that our dredging disposal
sites should fall outside the scope of the European Landfill
Directive, freeing up Environment Agency resources to monitor
higher risk sites more effectively. Some extra costs have been
avoided as a result of our lobbying, but there remains a financial
burden as other additional costs will apply.
In an attempt to return to disposal of dredging waste onto fields
without complex and unrealistic volume restrictions we have
commissioned in partnership with Defra and the Environment
Agency the ADAS to assess the impact of nitrates within dredging
deposits on arable land.
Water Framework Directive
The EU Directive requires chemical and ecological objectives for
all significant water bodies to be set out by 2009, with compliance
measures scheduled for 2012. In 2006 the Environment Agency
will invite special liaison panels to oversee the launch of River Basin
District Plans detailing these objectives and measures.

British Waterways will seek appropriate representation on all those
panels overseeing plans that impact on our business. We continue
to work closely with the Environment Agency and the Scottish
Environment Protection Agency to explore the benefits of a separate
ecological classification system for canals. Alongside partner water
bodies in the UK and Europe we will play our full part in developing
fresh EU guidelines for dealing with the impacts of navigation,
hydropower and flood defence works.
Our unique heritage
We are custodians of a truly impressive segment of our national
heritage. Our heritage assets consist of 2,739 listed buildings, 42
scheduled monuments, over 300 miles of conservation area, and
thousands of archaeological sites. In addition, our waterways adjoin
or bisect five World Heritage Sites, eight historic battlefields and
12 registered historic parks. We rank above Network Rail, English
Heritage and the Ministry of Defence in terms of numbers of listed
structures – only the National Trust and the Church of England own
more than we do.
Heritage skills
Understanding and appreciating the waterway heritage is a prerequisite for everyone employed by us and we are constantly
working to improve our corporate knowledge and expertise.
In 2005/06 we set about improving further still our heritage
management performance through our Heritage Action programme
of workshops and seminars. Over 400 of our key waterway based
people participated, and the momentum generated continues with
team and toolbox talks on heritage. We have recruited heritage
advisers for our waterway units, creating seven advisory posts
around the country.
We have a corporate action plan for heritage that aims to further
improve the heritage skills and understanding of all our people over
the next three years. Waterway units in England and Wales create
and implement their own heritage action plan setting out heritage
priorities across the business.
Reducing structures ‘at risk’
We are making progress at both local and national level in cutting
our numbers of buildings at risk. There are currently 101 of these
on local authority registers, comprising less than 4% of our listed
building stock. Two sites on English Heritage’s national register –
Navigation Warehouse, Wakefield, and Foxton Inclined Plane in
Leicestershire – are now being tackled, the first through restoration
and re-use, the second by means of a heritage partnership agreement
with English Heritage, local authorities and other stakeholders.
The Foxton heritage partnership agreement is one of a number of
pilot studies placing us at the forefront of heritage management.
We also recognise that there is a wealth of experience and expertise
within the body of local canal societies and other voluntary
organisations. We have not made sufficient use of this reservoir of
knowledge in the past but we have begun to harness their enthusiasm
through a number of local projects.
In 2005/06 we began a heritage programme on the Worcester &
Birmingham Canal, working with the Inland Waterways Association
and volunteers from the Worcester & Birmingham Canal Society
to update our 1990s Architectural Heritage Survey. Other heritage
programmes taken further during the year included our Foxton
Inclined Plane restoration, where we negotiated scheduled monument
consent work to clear and consolidate the incline and bottom basin,
and our Bugsworth Basin project – here we undertook archaeological
recording as part of our basin restoration work.
Our contractors and bank staff continue to work to high standards
on our historic buildings and structures, often putting into practice
skills and knowledge gained on our own heritage training courses.
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PROVIDING
OUTDOOR LEISURE
FOR MILLIONS
Our waterways are a part of daily life for millions of people,
from cyclists heading to work along our towpaths, to families
walking the dog, and boat owners pursuing their hobby.
We attract around 300 million visits each year. Increasing
the number of visits to our waterways while finding new
ways to earn money from their popularity is central to our
vision. We want the waterways to enhance more people’s
lives more often.
300 million visits
are made to our
waterways every
year.
An average
100,000 visits
are made to our
leisure website
Waterscape.com
each month.

Numbers of visits
In 2005/06 the Inland Waterways Visit Survey
showed that visits to British Waterways locations
and surroundings had remained broadly constant at
around 300 million. Many of these visits are ‘functional’
rather than for leisure purposes, taking in walkers
on their way to and from work, for example. As we
improve the attractiveness and accessibility of our
network we can look forward to substantial increases
in the numbers enjoying the waterways as part of
everyday life. This is an important and valuable public
benefit that justifies the considerable support we
receive from local and central government.
Such large numbers using and enjoying our waterways
is a sign of success. Yet it creates considerable
pressures on our scarce resources. To ensure every
visit is as enjoyable as it can be, we treat everyone
as a customer and have a series of programmes
and initiatives to help understand the needs of our
customers and deliver maximum benefit to them.
Customer Service Transformation
In 2005/06 we completed the initial phase of our
Customer Service Transformation, part of a far-reaching
focus on customer service. The result is a much clearer
picture of the diverse customers and customer groups
using British Waterways’ network, and the main factors
that determine their experience. The findings will help
us improve all aspects of our customer service.
Further market research planned for 2006/07 will
not only help us know more about those who use the
waterways and those who do not, but will also help
us put actions in place.
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Waterscape.com – leisure online
Information provision is key to growing numbers of
customers enjoying their visits and Waterscape.com
plays an essential marketing role as the leisure
website of choice for all waterway activities.
Since its launch in 2003 over 2.7 million visits have
been made to Waterscape.com, and an average
100,000 visits are now made each month. The site
is constantly evolving, developing new features and
content in the light of user feedback. During 2005/06
it successfully launched online licence renewals,
boaters’ guides for each waterway, an eating and
drinking section, as well as free waterside leisure
and business listings.
From 1 April 2006 Waterscape.com became the
dedicated online marketing arm of British Waterways,
and no longer a stand-alone commercial venture.
Waterside Pub Partnership
Visitors enjoy the waterways in many ways – but one
of the most popular is by making use of the many
waterside hostelries. The year 2005/06 saw the
opening of the first two pubs from our Waterside Pub
Partnership joint venture with Scottish & Newcastle
Pub Enterprises. This partnership was created to
enable British Waterways to gain financially from
the growing number of people visiting pubs on our
increasingly popular waterways. Since it opened its
doors in May 2005 the Foxton Locks Inn on the
Grand Union Canal Leicester Line has exceeded all
trading expectations. The Steamboat Inn at Trent Lock
on the Erewash Canal was acquired and extensively
refurbished and opened in August 2005.

A relaxing drink at a waterside pub, just
one way to enjoy our historic waterways.

Right: The Saul Festival, on
the Gloucester & Sharpness
Canal, offers a great day
out by the water.
Far right: A cruiser moors
up at Kingswood Junction,
where the Grand Union Canal
meets the Stratford-uponAvon Canal.

The number of
boat licences
issued rose from
27,378 to 29,000,
helped by rising
market demand,
and a crack down
on licence evasion.
In a drive to help
create more
berths for an
increasing number
of boats, we
launched our
Inland Marina
Investment Guide.

Refurbishments are planned at the Three Locks at
Stoke Hammond and the Bothy Bar in Scotland. Our
proposal to develop a pub at Auchinstarry on the Forth
& Clyde Canal received planning permission in March
2006. A planning application will also shortly be
submitted for a pub at The Falkirk Wheel.
Award-winning attractions
We continue to run three attractions where visitors
can enjoy three very different waterway experiences.
Having collected the Saltire Society Award for Civil
Engineering in 2002, The Falkirk Wheel was voted
‘Best Project in 25 Years’ as part of the Society’s 25th
anniversary celebrations in 2005/06. The year also
saw Anderton Boat Lift & Visitor Centre collect the
coveted Visitor Attraction for Quality Assured Service
accreditation for a second season.
However, in 2005/06 income from these visitor
attractions was down by 4% to just under £2.0m.
This was mainly due to a reduction in income from
our flagship waterside attraction, The Falkirk Wheel,
which felt the knock on effect of an 18% reduction
in tourism in Scotland (see page 48).
Sponsorships – a new focus
Sponsorships and related arrangements such as
advertising represent an important way of capturing
income from footfall on, or close to, our property.
The first revenues from this will be from new
agreements covering cash points and vending
machines at key visitor destinations.

Boats and Boating
Meeting rising demand
Due to a sustained growth in boating on our
waterways during 2005/06, income from craft
licensing rose by £0.85m to £11.4m and from
moorings by £0.17m to £4.6m. While an important
source of income, this only contributes to 13.5%
of the direct costs of maintaining the waterways.
We use a cost-reflective index to determine licence
price rises. In April 2005 craft licence prices rose
by 2.9%. In 2005/06 income rose by 8%. This
improvement was caused by continued growth in the
market and also by improved control of licence evasion.
Licence fee consultation
In late 2004, the Waterways Ombudsman ruled in
favour of an individual who complained that her
shared ownership boat should be treated as privately
owned for licensing purposes. This resulted in us
refunding 140 similar boats, costing £80,000. After
seeking professional advice about pricing and price
discrimination we completed a series of consultations
in 2005/06.
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Licences and Moorings in England & Wales
2005/06 2004/05
Private Pleasure Boats - Canals & Rivers
Powered
22,073* 21,189**
Unpowered
436
378
Total
22,509 21,567**
Private Pleasure Boats - Rivers
Powered
4,247
Unpowered
38
Total
4,285

3,603
74
3,677

Private Pleasure Boats - All Waterways
Powered
26,320 24,792**
Unpowered
474
452
Total
26,794 25,244
Houseboats
Total
Business Craft
Leisure business craft
Trade plates, freight
and workboats
Total
Total Long-Term Licences
Mooring permits issued

96

91

1,724
386

1,648
395

2,110

2,043

29,000

27,378

6,158

5,985

*Includes Gold Licences
**We are reporting a total increase of 300 boats (compared with 2004/05’s
published figures). This is due to delaying the processing of some licences
whilst we awaited an Ombudsman’s decision (see text below).

We concluded that there is currently no satisfactory
way of differentiating boats for licensing purposes
on the basis of who owns or uses the boat since
we have no means of validating this information.
What matters to us is who takes responsibility for
licensing the boat, and that all users comply with our
licence conditions and navigation rules. Changes to
licence conditions reflecting this will take effect from
October 2006.
Online licensing
In an effort to make life easier for our customers and
to improve efficiency it has been possible to renew
licences online through Waterscape.com since
October 2005. 10% of those eligible now renew
online and since launch this has increased month
on month. From October 2005 until April 2006 we
processed 766 licences online.

Revenue protection - better results
Boat licence revenues make a major contribution
to meeting the cost of waterways upkeep. A poor
revenue protection rate represents a missed
opportunity to fund essential maintenance such
as channel dredging and offside tree management.
We also know unlicensed boats are a major irritation
to those who pay.

Our website www.britishwaterways.co.uk/
marinadevelopment supports the Guide with market
analysis, investment models and location advice. Our
newly-formed marinas team was set up in October
2005 to work closely with potential investors. Among
developments we supported in 2005/06 was the
expansion by Alvechurch Boat Centres Ltd of Gayton
Marina on the Grand Union Canal.

We have put considerable effort into reducing licence
evasion in the past year. We have put in place improved
enforcement procedures and carried out our first ever
National Boat Check in November 2005. 388 Section
8 notices were issued prior to removal (a section 8
notice from the BW Act 1983 states that the Board
may remove any craft after giving not less than 28
days’ notice to the owner of the relevant craft), and
81 boats were removed from the water because they
failed to take out a licence. As new procedures took
effect we were successful in recovering £168,000
of licence revenue in the last quarter 2005/06.

British Waterways Marinas Ltd (BWM Ltd)
BWM Ltd was created in 2004 as a separate
subsidiary company to help us deliver more and
better moorings by focusing on customers’ needs,
setting industry standards, and expanding the
capacity of existing moorings on the network. This
stand alone subsidiary must also generate income
for British Waterways to put back into enhancing the
overall network. Our Board has taken a number of
steps to ensure BWM Ltd trades fairly and does not
benefit from either overt or hidden subsidies from the
parent company. In 2005/06 we transferred Poplar,
Limehouse, Goytre Wharf, Gloucester Docks and
Lemonroyd marinas into BWM Ltd. The transfer of a
marina site at Diglis is also planned during 2006/07.
Future growth will be driven by appropriate third party
acquisitions and development of existing sites over
the next three years.

Guidance for continuous cruisers
During 2005/06 we asked those who describe
themselves as ‘continuously cruising’ to follow specific
guidelines which were developed in 2004. The
guidelines are intended to discourage and prevent
a minority of those ‘continuous cruising’ who moor
for long periods at locations unsuitable for long-term
occupancy, denying temporary berthing opportunities
to other users. During 2005/06 we issued seven final
warnings in support of our guidelines for ‘continuous
cruisers’.
Moorings
We use a market-led methodology to determine the
price of our moorings. At April 2005 our average
national price increase year on year was 6.7%.
Thanks largely to increased occupancy and more
efficient collection, income from moorings in 2005/06
rose by 3.6% to £4.6m. This figure does not include
the £2.5m reported by British Waterways Marinas Ltd
(see right).
Supporting the growth in boating means developing
a strategy for creating new moorings and upgrading
existing berths. We envisage a requirement for up to
10,000 new berths in the next decade to meet the
needs of new and existing boaters.
Inland Marina Investment Guide
As a direct response to this need we launched our
Inland Marina Investment Guide in March 2006,
following detailed discussions with the Yacht Harbour
Association and the British Marine Federation. Our aim
is to encourage wider investment in marinas at a time
when moorings are in short supply and mooring
operators report long waiting lists.
Besides examining the current shortage of moorings,
growing demand and the increasingly sophisticated
expectations of boaters, the new Guide includes
investment models for 250-berth and 350-berth
marinas costing £2.5m and £3.9m respectively. The
models also explore opportunities for complementary
leisure developments including pubs and restaurants.
Water supply, site availability, planning requirements
and other factors are also considered.

Income at BWM Ltd rose by 16% during 2005/06
from £4.9m to £5.7m, moving the operation into
profit. The main area of growth was in moorings
income which increased by £895k (56%) with
occupancy increasing from 85% to 88%, and the
creation of an extra 63 berths. Sales of new boats
did not meet our ambitious targets with revenues
decreased by 29% year on year, reflecting the
problems created by a lack of berths.
Further investment of £0.8m in BWM Ltd was
approved during the year to fund facilities
improvements at 11 marinas.

Angling
Policy – a major step forward
With an estimated four million devotees, angling
is among the UK’s most popular sports. It brings
a vital visitor constituency to our waterways. Anglers
act as our ‘eyes and ears’ on many stretches of
the network, feeding us up-to-date information
on towpath and waterway condition, and reporting
anti-social behaviour.
In December 2005 we published an angling and
fisheries policy in partnership with the National
Association of Fisheries and Angling Consultatives
and the National Federation of Anglers. The policy
agreement represents a major step forward in building
a sound future for angling on our waterways. Key
outcomes include:
• Writing local angling and fisheries plans for each
of our waterway units by November 2006
• Building communications channels, formal and
informal, at national and local levels to monitor
progress towards objectives
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GIVING CUSTOMERS
WHAT THEY WANT
The twin requirements of understanding our customer
base and creating value by meeting or exceeding their
expectations are at the heart of British Waterways’
vision. The impact and influence of what we do extends
far beyond our immediate network and its users. The
value attached to our waterways by the general public
is an increasingly important measure of the public
benefit we create.
We put increasing resource into finding out more about
our customers and their needs. It is this focus that will
enable us to prioritise our work and create even better
waterways that will attract even more visits.

Top:

Cyclists stop off for a refreshing drink
at our Hatton Locks café, on the Grand
Union Canal.
Above: Competitors in action at the Junior Angling
Championships at Makins Fisheries.
Left:
Stopping off for lunch, a family moor
up their boat at Watford on the Grand
Union Canal.

22 BUSINESS REVIEW: CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

Measuring satisfaction
Customer service has two important strands – the impact of
waterway condition on customer perceptions, and the way our
people respond to customer needs.

Public perception
The Inland Waterways Visit Survey tracks shifts in public
perceptions of the value of canals and rivers compared to other
national assets.

We undertake extensive market research amongst our customers.
Key measures include enjoyment, exceeding expectation, and
propensity to recommend.

Rated 72, canals and rivers are last on this list of seven categories,
but as the table below shows the gap is narrowing year on year. Our
vision is to place inland waterways among the nation’s most highly
prized assets by 2012. Our target is to reach the ‘mid-point’ of the
Inland Waterways Visit Survey index by 2008.

Surveys – charting our progress
Regular surveys help us gauge our progress towards objectives
and inform our strategic thinking. We use independent market
research to measure visitor attitudes and satisfaction under these
survey headings:

Public perception 2004 & 2005
2005

2004

100

100

• Towpath Users – self completion questionnaire

The Seaside

• Boaters’ Views – postal survey of random 30%
sample of licence holders

Parks & Gardens

93

92

Woods & Forests

88

89

Historic houses, Castles & Monuments

81

78

Wildlife Parks & Farms

79

80

Zoos, Museums & Galleries

76

75

Canals & Rivers

72

68

• Visitor Destinations – face-to-face interviews at 21 principal sites
• Hire Boaters’ Views – self-completion survey
• Inland Waterways Visits – continuous random telephone survey
Across our surveys, ok, good and excellent ratings in 2005 were
on the up compared with 2004 scores.
Results 2005
Survey results for 2005 show boat owners reporting waterway
upkeep improving with 93% rating it as ok, good or excellent
compared with 90% the previous year. 95% of anglers rate overall
enjoyment as ok, good or excellent, compared with 92% in 2004.
Results amongst visitors to our priority sites are high with 99%
scoring enjoyment as ok, good or excellent, up from 98%. And 98%
of functional customers, such as cyclists on their way to work, rate
overall enjoyment as ok, good or excellent compared with 2004’s
figure of 97%. Holiday boater satisfaction with upkeep is constant
with 93% rating it as ok, good or excellent in both 2004 and 2005.

A comparison of recent Inland Waterways Visit Survey results with
NOP findings for the years 1995-98 shows that public perception
of the value of canals is rising along with awareness of the role
of British Waterways. 95% of people tell us that they view canals
as an ‘important part of the nation’s heritage’. The public’s perception
of canals as ‘good places to visit’ has improved from 82% to 86%.
The proportion of respondents agreeing that ‘canals in Britain are
well managed’ grew from 48% to 58%. And those spontaneously
citing British Waterways as the organisation that ‘manages canals
in Britain’ rose from 20% to 29%.

Tasking our people with achieving improved satisfaction ratings
in all areas year on year is central to our Customer Service
Transformation (see page 18).

Customer Satisfaction 2004 & 2005
Type of survey

Key Measure

Ok, Good
or Excellent
Ratings 2005

Ok, Good
or Excellent
Ratings 2004

Boaters’ Views

Overall upkeep

93%

90%

Towpath Users - Anglers

Overall enjoyment

95%

92%

Visitor Destinations

Overall enjoyment

99%

98%

Hire Boaters’ Views

Overall upkeep

93%

93%

Towpath Users

Overall enjoyment

98%

97%

BUSINESS REVIEW: CUSTOMER SATISFACTION 23

DEVELOPING
WATERSIDE PROPERTY
FOR BETTER LIVING
British Waterways’ estate is an essential and integral
part of our business. We have developed a world class
competence in water based regeneration, which has played
and continues to play a vital role in revitalising our cities
and rural areas in an attractive and sustainable way for
the benefit of the wider community.

Our properties
generated income
of £28.8m
compared with
£26.4m last year.
Our 1,700
properties are
now valued at
£520m.

We harmonise public space with mixed-use
development in a unique way, working with local and
regional authorities and the private sector to deliver
a very special public benefit.
This activity also creates long-term income streams
that are vital to the future maintenance of the
waterways.
The majority of our regeneration activity is through
close relationships with public authorities, and by
acquiring future regeneration sites where we can
be the catalyst for medium to long-term change.
Our direct regeneration development is almost
entirely managed through a series of joint ventures
that allow us to leverage our special skills and
resources with the capital and skills of the private
sector. This approach substantially limits financial risk,
while driving public benefits. Our main joint ventures
are: ISIS, where our partners are Morley Fund
Management through their Igloo Regeneration fund
and AMEC; Wood Wharf with partners Canary Wharf
Group plc and Ballymore Properties Ltd; and
Edinburgh Quay and City Road Basin (London) with
Miller Developments.
Through property ownership we provide social benefits
to the many communities we serve. We have sites
in Leeds, Birmingham, Edinburgh and Brentford
(London), as well as rural locations such as Stroud,
Foxton (Leicestershire) and Goytre Wharf (near
Pontypool). To meet our ambitious regeneration
targets we operate through a wide range of
commercial joint ventures and in close partnership
with public authorities (see pages 26-27).
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Profit, people, public realm
We hold property for income growth and to aid
regeneration. Our role in providing engaging
waterways for all people to enjoy very much depends
on prudent and imaginative management and
development of our estate.
We own more than 1,700 properties worth a total
of £520m. In 2005/06 our properties generated
income of £28.8m, compared with £26.4m in 2004/05.
In March 2006 our investment properties were valued
at £478.4m (2004/05: £449.5m), an increase of
£28.9m, including a £42.3m like-for-like uplift.
As well as generating income, our property strategy
is driven by public benefit gains and our continued
commitment to regeneration.
Disposals and reinvestments
Over the past five years we have continued to
rationalise and optimise our property estate by selling
small parcels of land or holdings in the value of
£145m generating profits on disposal of £40m.
In 2005/06 we sold over 100 properties and made
a profit on disposal of £11.5m. We still have further
rationalisation of our estate to deliver.
Our investment strategy determines how receipts
from disposals are reinvested across key areas of
our business – property, leisure, ventures and the
waterways. In all cases we aim to strike a balance
between risks and returns in line with our investment
principles. These principles include capitalising on
the competitive advantages of waterside locations,
boosting the appeal and accessibility of the waterways,
focusing on locations where we can generate
maximum growth in returns, and upholding our core
values particularly public access and sustainability.

Main: Working with local developer William Davis
will result in turning our former freight depot
and canal basin at Loughborough into student
accommodation, restaurants, moorings and
boater facilities. (Computer generated image)
Inset: Loughborough Basin as it is now.

WORLD CLASS
WATER BASED
REGENERATION
Regeneration is not just a by-product of British
Waterways’ work, it is central to what we do. Our aim
is to open up access to the waterways and create
destinations that are central to people’s lives. We will
do this whilst maximising any commercial return so
we can reinvest it back into the waterways.
Along with our Joint Ventures, we work in partnership
with local authorities, other public bodies such as
English Partnerships, Housing Corporation, Regional
Development Agencies and the Department for
Communities and Local Government sponsored local
delivery vehicles as well as hundreds of developers
to regenerate waterside areas around the country.

Top:
Rosebank, Falkirk, Scotland.
Above: New Islington, Manchester.
Left:
City Road Basin, London.
(Computer generated images)
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£6 BILLION OF REGENERATION
This map represents only part of our
involvement in regenerating waterside areas.
We are influencing and enabling an
estimated £6 billion of regeneration
in almost every major city and town
our waterways pass through.

A

A - Inverness

B

C

Opportunity to regenerate
the north side of Inverness,
including more leisure and retail.

D

E

F

P - Nottingham

G

1.2 million sq ft for 1,500 new family homes
and apartments, business and leisure facilities,
and a public open space and riverside walk.

Q - Loughborough

B - Ardrishaig

New student accommodation, two restaurants,
35 apartments, a larger canal basin, large arena
area, moorings and boaters’ facilities.

Work has just begun to regenerate
the town centre around the canal.

C - Bowling
New boaters facilities, car parking, public open
space in this £1.3m scheme.

D - North Glasgow
Residential and leisure development, green space,
moorings, and a £5.6m new canal link in 1,000 acres for this
£40m scheme.

G - Edinburgh Quay
100,000 sq ft of leisure and office
space for an award winning phase one,
55,000 sq ft office building for phase two.

H - Stockton on Tees
Protecting the future of a watersports centre,
this has been secured as a major local
education and leisure facility.
I - Granary Wharf, Leeds
140 apartment homes, commercial
and business opportunities and
a brand new hotel.

J - Wakefield Waterfront
A landmark sculpture gallery, commercial and residential space,
boat moorings and high quality public realm, within this £100m
scheme.

K - Wigan
Redevelopment of Wigan Pier for residential, leisure, and 29,000 sq ft
of office space, includes a new BW office with a drop-in customer
service area.

L - New Islington, Manchester
More than 500 homes, a hotel, retail and business space, and the
reopening of the Islington Arm of the Ashton Canal minutes from
the city centre.
M - Hayes Wharf, Lincoln
Brand new university student accommodation completed in 2005.
N - Northwich
Marina based development with new apartments and family homes.

O - Planet Wharf, Stoke-on-Trent
A new primary healthcare facility, waterside public space
and 27 residential units within 2.2-acres of land.

S - Central Birmingham
27 acres for 1,000 new homes,
a hotel, business and leisure facilities
and a sailing club.

J
K

L
M
N

T-

P

O

Stourport-on-Severn
Residential and leisure
redevelopment, a new
pub, and wide heritage
conservation.

Q

F - Falkirk
Canal facing residential development with 20,000 sq
ft office space and a new pub/restaurant.

A new student campus, public waterside
access, moorings, facilities and residential
development.

I

E - Auchinstarry
New environmentally friendly moorings and
boaters facilities with plans for a new pub and
hotel.

R - Leicester

H

R
S
T
U

UV
W
X

Y

Z

Diglis Basin, Worcester
Waterside housing centered
around the basin, with
improvements to wildlife
habitats.

V - Gloucester
60 acres of land will be
redeveloped into residential, leisure, business
facilities, and open space areas, conserving the waterside frontage
in this £200m scheme.
W - City Road Basin, London
900 new residential apartments (including 250 affordable),
new moorings, and the relocation of the local community
boat club to a brand new facility.

X - Grand Union Village
700 new homes, a new basin with over 20 moorings, facilities and
car parking, foot and cycle paths, and a residents’ car share scheme.

Y - Brentford, London
720,000 sq ft residential blocks, commercial space, doctors surgery,
health centre, crèche and bus depot and new moorings and boaters
facilities.

Z - Wood Wharf, London Docklands
Leisure, retail and office space, and a new canal link at this 20-acre
site in the heart of London’s Docklands.
ISIS Waterside Regeneration schemes include:
D - North Glasgow, I - Granary Wharf, Leeds,
L - New Islington, Manchester, N - Northwich,
P - Nottingham, S - Central Birmingham
and Y - Brentford
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RESTORING
WATERWAYS,
BREATHING LIFE
INTO COMMUNITIES
Along with our existing property and waterways, we work
tirelessly with partners to help restore derelict waterways
with an end aim to provide even further regeneration
and public benefits.
Canal restoration projects are often the most visible or tangible
evidence of our wider cultural commitment to regeneration –
a commitment that recognises the increasingly valuable
contribution waterways make to the quality of local life today.
We are due to
embark on £60m
restoration
construction work
this coming year.
High profile
schemes such
as the Cotswold
Canals, Liverpool
Link and
Manchester, Bolton
& Bury Canal have
secured the
necessary funding
this year.

Regeneration Directorate
The creation of our new Regeneration Directorate,
in October 2005, acknowledges the increasingly
important role waterways play in enhancing the
quality of life for neighbouring communities.
Our vision of an extended network offering improved
access to waterways and their heritage to increasing
numbers of active participants is shared by many
individuals and organisations. Our regeneration team
focuses on raising the public funds required for the
many physical improvements that underpin our wider
regeneration aims, allowing British Waterways’ core
income to be directed at ensuring our network is
properly maintained and safe to use.
Canal restoration funding
In 2005/06 contributions towards restoration projects
increased to £5.1m (2005: £4.7m). We also made
successful funding applications to a wide range of
organisations. This included submitting a £12m bid
to the Big Lottery Living Landmarks programme for
the Cotswold Canals Phase 2 restoration. And at the
time of print we have successfully passed the initial
stages.
European Union funding also continues to play an
important role in the financing of many restoration
schemes. In addition to the £7.5m and £2m
contributions made by the European Regional
Development Fund to the Liverpool Link and
Manchester Bolton & Bury Canal restoration projects,
funds made available by Interreg on the Montgomery,
Cotswolds and Bradford Canals brought an extra
£2.2m to our waterways for this year and next year.
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Active priority restoration projects
During the year four major projects were successful
in their funding applications: the Liverpool Link;
Manchester Bolton & Bury Canal Phase 1; Cotswolds
Canals Phase 1; and Droitwich Canals. When several
smaller schemes are also taken into account we
anticipate, subject to satisfactory completion of legal
formalities, embarking on restoration construction
works to the value of £60m in 2006/07.
A Conservation Management Strategy for the
Montgomery Canal was launched at the Welsh
Assembly and House of Commons in February 2006.
The Montgomery Canal project, which brings together
partners from navigation and environmental groups,
is a model for exploring ways to restore navigation
while protecting and improving habitats. Restoration
momentum continued on the Montgomery Canal during
2005/06 thanks to ongoing awards, including Interreg
and Heritage Lottery Fund contributions of £1.25m.
Outlook for the future
Interest in restoration schemes on the part of canal
groups and funding bodies remains high. Significant
developments include the appointment of a project
manager for the Grantham Canal Partnership, the
launch of a further feasibility study addressing the
Burslem Arm on the Trent & Mersey Canal, and the
completion of a feasibility report into restoration of
the Bradford Canal.

The Bow Back Rivers is just
one of our future restoration
schemes. It will become part
of the wider regeneration of
East London, surrounding the
successful London Olympic
Bid. (computer generated
image)

Active priority restoration projects
Project name

Funding

Stage

Bow Back Rivers

Approximately £50m for waterway restoration in the Olympic budget

Project in development with Defra agencies and Olympic
Delivery Authority

A further £13.5m package is being agreed for a new lock and
water control structure outside Olympic Park to facilitate full
waterway restoration
Cotswold Canals
Phase 1

£22m funding agreed by Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) (£11.9m),
South West Regional Development Agency (£6m), Local
Authorities, Cotswold Canals Trust, The Waterways Trust (TWT),
Interreg and others. £2m to be raised from a range of private, public
and voluntary sectors

Works will commence at the end of summer 2006

Cotswold Canals
Phase 2

£12m applied for from Big Lottery Fund Living Landmarks Fund

Long listed

Droitwich Canals

£11.5m funding agreed by HLF (£4.66m), Advantage West
Midlands (£3m), Local Authorities, TWT, Droitwich Canals Trust and
others (including around £1m to be raised from private, public and
voluntary sectors).

A planning application and Environment Impact
Assessment for the full canal restoration were
submitted in May 2006.

Liverpool Link

£16.8m agreed from the Regional Development Agency, European
Regional Development Fund and English Partnerships

Work due to commence in Summer 2006, to be
completed by 2008 when Liverpool becomes the
European City of Culture

Manchester Bolton
& Bury Canal

£5.6m agreed from the Regional Development Agency, European
Regional Development Fund, Developers (Valley & Vale) and
Salford City Council

Work due to commence Summer 2006

Montgomery Canal
Phase 1 – England

£1.25m agreed from HLF and Interreg

£148k Conservation Management Strategy produced

£15m applied for from Big Lottery Fund Living
Landmarks Fund

Regeneration of 1km of canal and the creation of new
wetland nature reserve due to commence in 2006

Area Action Plan to be submitted in March 2007

Works are expected to begin on site in November 2006
on the new alignment of the Junction Canal

Long Listed for Big Lottery Fund
Montgomery Canal
Phase 2 – Wales

£13k annually secured from Countryside Council for Wales

Project in development

Northern Reaches

£0.75m agreed from the North West Regional Development
Agency, local Authority and voluntary sector

Study underway

London’s successful 2012 Olympic and Paralympic
Games bid has already had a very positive impact on
our plans to restore the Bow Back Rivers, bringing
forward work by many years. We have been working
closely with Defra agencies, the Olympic Delivery
Authority, and many others on plans for the
sustainable regeneration of these waterways.
There are other projects we continue to support and
we were pleased that a number of canal schemes
including the Bedford & Milton Keynes Link, Wilts
& Berks, Monmouthshire & Brecon and Montgomery
Canal made it through the initial stages of the Big
Lottery Fund Living Landmarks Fund.

We also actively support the scheme at Lichfield
& Hatherton where strong partnership between
the Canal Society, the local authority and the private
sector is delivering positive results.
Looking ahead, British Waterways will continue
to promote the wider regeneration benefits which
are direct outcomes of canal restoration schemes.
With input from many organisations and individuals,
we will review our restoration document Waterways
2025 which will help to focus our efforts further.
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HISTORIC WATERWAYS
PROVIDING BUSINESS
SERVICES
As well as acting as a catalyst for wider regeneration, and
providing outdoor leisure to millions, our waterways (their
towpaths and water channels) also offer a valuable service
to many utility and freight customers, providing an unbroken
network linking many of our major towns and cities.

£21m was earned
from utility
companies and
water sales, up
24% from last year.
Our shareholding
in Easynet plc
earned us a profit
of £3.5m when
BskyB acquired
Easynet.

Utilities business
We charge utility companies, including water and
telecoms enterprises, for access to our network and
in 2005/06 we earned £17m from utility companies,
compared to £13m in 2004/05.
During 2005/06 British Waterways concluded
arrangements with Thames Water, Welsh Water,
Yorkshire Water and United Utilities, enabling them
to discharge water into our network, and agreeing
substantial back payments. We now have agreements
with all the major utilities who use this service.
Our largest utility customer is Easynet, whose
telecoms fibres lie below our towpaths. In 2005/06
we earned £6.5m from them and we sold our
shareholding in Easynet plc, which was taken over
by BSkyB, for a £3.5m profit.
We also have a mast partnership agreement with
NET. During 2005/06 the agreement operated
slightly below our target expectation of leasing 24
mast sites, with 20 sites generating rental revenue
as of March 2006.
In addition to this, water sales continues to be an
important income source and since the closure of
Watergrid in 2004/05 our raw water sales have been
managed in-house. During 2005/06 we earned
£4.0m (2004/05 £3.9m) from this source.
Freight business
Canals were originally built for the transportation of
goods and although freight can’t be our main purpose
now, we will try and facilitate it wherever we can.
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During 2005/06 we continued to focus on
aggregates, container, waste and recycling sectors
in particular.
The year saw increasing Cemex aggregates traffic
along the River Severn. Power stations along the
River Ouse and the Aire & Calder Navigation took
delivery of liquid biomass fuel by barge, and
Associated British Ports began building a £1m shed
at the Caldaire Terminal at Goole for storing the fuel.
We continue to work with partners to develop the
proposed inland port at Stourton in Leeds, with
exploratory funding of £120,000 from Yorkshire
Forward agreed in principle.
In 2005/06 Powerday plc received planning approval
for a new recycling centre adjacent to the Grand
Union Canal in Willesden, London. The state-of-theart facility could see up to 500,000 tonnes carried
annually by water.
We also continue to press for the use of the Bow
Back Rivers for carrying freight to and from the
Olympic site in east London.
Our freight activities only generate modest income,
and we earned £0.5m during 2005/06 compared
with £0.6m in 2004/05. To effectively carry freight,
waterways often need substantial additional
investment, and we need the same upfront
investment whether we move one or one hundred
freight vessels. This additional investment is therefore
high risk, and while we welcome the public benefits
of freight by water we must weigh up the financial
risk involved when making these decisions.

One of our rarer freight movements,
a tug and dumb barge carries a
pressure vessel on the Sheffield
& South Yorkshire Navigation.
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DEVELOPING
WATERWAYS FOR
AN EVER-CHANGING
SOCIETY
Our commitment to working in a sustainable way is vital
to creating a legacy for future generations to enjoy.
Tracking performance from a sustainability perspective
is part of our drive to make what we do more measurable,
and year on year we capture more information about our
performance in the interests of greater transparency.
In managing sustainability we take particular account
of our people, our impact on the communities we serve,
using our resources responsibly, and being open and
accountable.
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Seasonal lock keeper, Bill Smith, chats
to a mother and daughter enjoying
a day out on the Grand Union Canal
in Leicestershire.

DEVELOPING
OUR PEOPLE AND
THEIR WELLBEING
Rising job satisfaction is a positive sign, against a recent
backdrop of change. What our people think of us really
matters. If we are to be an exemplar public corporation
it will only be with the full support of a highly satisfied
and motivated workforce.

80% of our people
were very or fairly
satisfied with their
jobs compared
with 71% in 2004.
25.8% reduction
in reportable
injuries in
2005/06.

Employee attitudes
In 2006 we surveyed all our people to discover
current levels of satisfaction, and to validate 2005’s
sample survey covering just one quarter of our
workforce. The full survey drew responses from
70% of our people, an extremely high response
rate. Against a backdrop of organisational change,
the chart shows rising numbers of very/fairly satisfied
employees seen against current UK norms.

New ways of working
During 2005/06 we completed a highly successful
pilot study with our North West Waterway Unit to help
identify more efficient and flexible ways of working at
our main offices. By developing flexible work practices
(including open plan working, hot-desking and home
working), we can reduce our office space requirement
by up to 50%, reinvest an estimated £1m of savings
in our core activities, and improve the morale of our
people. Over the next three years we aim to introduce
new ways of working at all our main offices.

Increasing job satisfaction

Health and absence
Our occupational health programme continues to
deliver improved rates of sickness absenteeism and
over 1000 people benefited from health monitoring
in the last year. We are developing supportive codes
of practice with our recognised trades unions and
health consultants to help all our people make more
informed lifestyle choices.

100
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80
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%

During 2005/06 employee absenteeism levels fell
to an average of 7.25 days per employee from 7.3 the
previous year, a figure that compares favourably with
public sector levels in general for the UK. Our target
is to reach the current private sector level for absence
of six days per employee.

40

20

0
Very / Fairly satisfied with job

British Waterways 2006
British Waterways 2004
UK Norm

34 CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY: OUR PEOPLE

Reportable injuries
Year on year British Waterways continues to drive
down the number of workforce reportable injuries,
with a further 25.8% reduction in 2005/06.
Sustained progress in this area puts us on course to
meet third quartile construction industry benchmarks,
and our target for 2006.

Top: Marketing executive,
Zoe Hughes offers help to a
customer at Crick Boat Show
who is interested in buying
a boat.
Far left: Team leader, Adrian
Inglefield being presented
with BW’s 2005 national
customer service award by
chief executive, Robin Evans,
for his commitment to
stamping out anti-social
behaviour on his patch.

Risk – new standards
New standards of risk management for our
contractors are now in place. Directors and senior
managers are already taking a safety lead by
conducting regular workplace inspections. In
2006/07 our attention turns to new workplace
programmes to reduce slip, trip and handling
incidents – the major causes of serious injury
to our workforce.
Training and development
In 2005/06 our training programmes focused
principally on safety and SAP (computer system),
with each of our people benefiting on average from
four days’ training. Other development areas included
succession planning, diversity and product
familiarisation.
Succession planning
In 2005/06 we undertook a talent identification
programme for those with senior management
potential. Nine people are currently undertaking
specially designed training that takes in mentoring,
Warwick Manufacturing Group’s MSc programme,
and development project secondments.
Product familiarisation
Through our partnership with Drifters, the holiday
boating consortium, our people now have a welcome
opportunity to spend at least one day each year as a
boating ‘customer’. We expect all our people to be
familiar with the needs of boating customers and this
programme is an important part of bringing this
aspect of our work into the lives of our people.

Equal pay audit
A joint union and management working group assisted
by the Equal Opportunities Commission and ACAS
conducted a review of our pay and reward system.
The audit found no evidence of equal pay risk.
We have committed to ongoing monitoring of pay
equality to ensure the fairness of our processes.

Left: Our new office at Wigan
requires less floor space
because we have
implemented more efficient
ways of working such as hotdesking and not having
cellular offices.

Benefits for our people
Additional benefits help to improve motivation and
to increase job satisfaction. British Waterways offers
its employees a range of core benefits such as
an excellent pension scheme, good holidays and
occupational health. In 2005/06 we also introduced
a range of extra benefits provided by specialist
suppliers. These include discounts and deals on
many leisure and household goods and services, as
well as a fully funded counselling service, financial
and mortgage advice and childcare vouchers.
Awards to recognise achievements
Awards not only help motivate our people, they also
help us focus on achieving our goals. British Waterways
has a range of awards that recognise and reward
exceptional contribution by an individual or team
to the achievement of our vision, values and goals.
We have awards for excellence in safety, innovation,
customer service, and waterway condition. We also
recognise the loyalty of our people through long
service awards.

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY: OUR PEOPLE 35

ENGAGING
COMMUNITIES
Waterways bring enormous social benefits and opportunities,
enhancing community welfare and quality of life. Targeting
our limited resources where they make the most difference,
we continue to focus on access, community relations and
education.

Our ‘Water Racket’
projects gave over
3,000 children the
chance to get
actively involved
in canals.

Access for all
We recognise the impossibility of making the entire
waterways network fully accessible to all. Environmental
and heritage considerations, combined with safety
and practical issues, rule this out. However, we carried
out an audit of every access point across the network
in 2005/06, and will use this information to make
improvements where we can.

Workshops were
held for 184
members of staff,
helping to make
our waterways
more accessible
to people with
disabilities.

Our Disability Equality Scheme will be completed in
December 2006 and we have favourably tested draft
access policies and action plans within our South
West Waterways Unit.
Access for all – training
Our access awareness training aims to help our
people meet the varied needs of disabled people
more effectively. Bank staff, managers, engineers,
marketing personnel and customer service staff
have all benefited from training that focuses on
the diverse needs of disabled people, the statutory
requirements of the Disability Discrimination Act,
and relevant design issues.
Trainers, who are themselves disabled, lead practical
sessions out on the towpath to highlight real problems
faced by people with disabilities, and we trained 184
people over the year.
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Accessibility surveys
A 2005 survey of the Kennet & Avon Canal by the
Fieldfare Trust, who promote countryside access for
disabled people, serves as a model for our approach
to auditing the accessibility of the waterways.
Using Countryside Agency funding made available
through the Kennet & Avon Rural Transport
Partnership, the 2005 survey looked at some 30
miles of the most popular sections of the canal.
Of these, stretches amounting to 12 miles were then
audited in more detail using all 12 BT Countryside for
All parameters, including towpath width and surface,
gradient and cross fall, clear walking height and
width, barriers, and resting places. The audit model
helps us pinpoint exactly what work needs to be done
to bring stretches of the towpath up to BT Countryside
for All standards.
The Kennet & Avon Canal has also seen pioneering
use of computer based mapping technology that
allows necessary works to be precisely located with
a 2-metre tolerance.
Integrating the community
In 2005/06 we held a series of workshops with
representatives of ethnic communities to encourage a
wider range of people to visit and enjoy the waterways.
Workshops took place in towns and cities where our
waterways have a strong local presence or connection.
Participants were asked to consider why people visit
canals, how canals could be made more welcoming,
what further information might be needed, and how
people related to British Waterways (as a possible
employer, for example). Feedback has since helped
us develop workshops looking at how our own people
can forge closer links with local communities.

Top: Our engineers along
with our contractors, Halcrow,
explain and teach civil
engineering students in
London how to construct a
canal bridge using traditional
techniques and materials.
Far left: Access for all
training is designed to
make our people aware
of the needs of people
with disabilities who
visit our waterways.

Community projects
Our social and economic officers work with many
local groups to develop canal based projects, tailored
to local needs.
Education
Education has a vital role to play in bringing British
Waterways closer to future generations of waterway
visitors. Each of our waterway units is tasked with
building strong ongoing relationships with all primary
schools within a mile of the waterways, supported by
a central education team.
Our Wild Over Waterways (WOW) schools initiative in
partnership with The Waterways Trust and the Inland
Waterways Association provides formal education
resources linked to the national curriculum for 7
to 11-year-olds. Our award-winning website,
wow4water.net, has been revamped this year to
ensure it stays relevant to a young audience while
giving teachers what they need to organise fun,
safe and informative school trips to the waterways.
During 2005/06 we gave an estimated 3,000
children a chance to experience canals at first hand
through our innovative Water Racket projects, and
developed new waterway trails enabling young
people and their families to explore the canal heritage
on their doorstep. We also launched a competition to
name the latest British Waterways workboats, which
generated involvement with almost 300 school
children from around the country.

Volunteers
Our 200-year-old network will always create a
demand for maintenance resources beyond our
available funding. We recognise the valuable role
volunteers have played and will continue to play in
the upkeep of the waterways. The network we enjoy
today exists largely thanks to the efforts of the
voluntary sector.

Left: Learning services officer,
Elaine Stanley has ensured
over 10,000 pupils, from 100
London Schools, have had
the opportunity to learn more
about waterways in her first
four years in the post.

In 2005/06 we took steps to expand the involvement
of volunteers on the waterways in areas such as
recording heritage assets, customer service, and
professional advice, as well as the more traditional
scrub and canal clearance. A senior management
appointment has now been made to help coordinate
wider consultation on volunteering, to assess the full
potential of volunteers, and to identify ways we can
engage more rewardingly with them.
A key volunteer requirement that continues to grow
year on year is our annual week-long Towpath Tidy
initiative, which this year saw almost 700 volunteers
working alongside British Waterways teams to clear
an estimated 150 tonnes of litter.
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USING OUR
RESOURCES
RESPONSIBLY
The introduction of a Sustainability Register this year has
meant that sustainability goals are incorporated into our
project thinking early. It also allows our performance to
be measured using important non-financial criteria.

Our major joint
ventures all have
sustainability
charters.
The timber used
in our lock gate
manufacture
comes from
sustainable
sources.

Sustainability Register
We have a sustainability register for projects in excess
of £150,000 and during 2006 the register will be
extended to cover projects valued over £50,000.
In asking what the key sustainability objectives of
a project are, the register requires project leaders
to set targets and then plot actual performance using
a range of indicators under four headings: managing
the physical environment; managing materials and
resources; supporting communities; and generating
economic value.
Indicators include sustainable timber use, aggregates
minimisation, disabled access, water quality, energy
consumption, waste minimisation, transport mileage
reduction and water consumption. It invites
commentary on how the project delivered customer
and community benefits, both social and economic,
and encouraged or achieved community engagement.
Sustainability charters for our major ventures
Our main joint ventures, ISIS, the Pub Partnership
and Wood Wharf all have sustainability charters.
These charters set out objectives which ensure that
individual schemes impact positively on the quality of
life of users, visitors and neighbours while ensuring
that the natural environment, resources and diversity
are enhanced.
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Tougher on timber
Wooden lock gates are a significant feature of our
waterways. We are committed to sourcing all our
wood from suppliers that are Forest Stewardship
Council (FSC) certificate holders which means the
wood comes from sustainable sources. In 2005/06
we used over 900m3 of timber from FSC certificate
holders in our lock gate construction.
British Waterways submits timber purchase records
annually to the WWF-UK Forest and Trade Network
to which we belong. We also retain the services of
the Building Research Establishment for expert advice
on both acceptable sources of preferred timber, and
alternative timbers that offer comparable performance.
War on waste
Waste audits completed by British Waterways in
January 2006 covered skips, waste from workshops
and yards, and all other waste including fly tipped,
office, customer and general works waste. The
benchmarks produced have been used to create
a reduction target on British Waterways’ premises
of 10% in 2006/07.
British Waterways currently recycles around a fifth of
its waste, and we expect this to increase in the future.
Meanwhile we are launching a range of recycling
programmes to manage waste better at waterway
level. Current waste reduction initiatives include the
recycling of office paper, cardboard and printer
cartridges, the reuse of lock gate timber and other
materials, the recycling of batteries and waste oil, and
a closer look at how network customers can recycle
their waste more readily.

Top: Our Bradley Workshop
sources wood from suppliers
that are Forest Stewardship
Council certificate holders,
ensuring our lock gates are
manufactured from
sustainable sources.
Far left: Auchinstarry Basin,
on the Forth & Clyde Canal
boasts our network’s first
solar powered towpath
lighting.

Energy Efficiency Campaign
Our national Energy Efficiency Campaign sets us
an energy consumption reduction target of 30%
by March 2008. Success depends on taking more
readings from more metered sites to establish
baseline values against which savings can be
measured.
The campaign was launched in 2004 with the primary
aim of cutting our consumption of electricity. Boosted
by a 7% reduction in electricity consumption in
2004/05, we published our Energy Campaign Toolkit
to help us meet our corporate energy use reduction
target of 10% in 2005/06.
With baseline values yet to be fully established at
metered sites, a complete picture of progress is hard
to reach. Marinas and pumping stations have seen
big increases in energy consumption in line with
demands on water and rising customer numbers.

In addition to this we have seen paybacks totalling
£0.25m since 2004 arising from correcting
estimated readings, with further substantial
corrections expected.

Left: Posters in our offices
are just part of our campaign
to encourage staff to be
more energy efficient.

We have made progress in the area of renewable
energy. Successes include an annual CO2 saving
of 4.6 tonnes at Auchinstarry Basin and further
renewable energy developments in Scotland,
our network’s first solar powered towpath lighting,
and an investigation into the use of photovoltaics
(the ability to generate electricity from sunlight)
on our buildings.
We remain committed to exceeding next year’s
reduction target of 10% in line with our own
sustainability values and government efforts
to reduce CO2 emissions.
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PROMOTING
OPENNESS AND
ACCOUNTABILITY
We believe public corporations like ours should be open
and accountable in all they do. A range of representative
forums and accessible channels helps us meet rising
stakeholder expectations.

We answered
95.5% of
complaints
within our target
of 20 days.
We handled 77
requests for
information under
the Freedom of
Information Act.

Our complaints procedure
We follow a simple and consistent complaints
procedure throughout our organisation. Complaints
are fielded locally in the first instance. Where
someone with a complaint is dissatisfied with
our initial response, an executive director without
management responsibility for the issue reviews
the complaint.
In 2005/06 complaints rose by 21% compared
with 2004/05, an increase due in part to better
awareness of our procedures. In resolving increased
numbers of complaints we improved customer service,
and perceptions of it, across our waterways network.
During 2005/06 we handled 1001 complaints of
which 10% went to the second or review stage of
our procedure. It remains our aim to respond to every
complaint within 20 days. In 2005/06 our success
rate was 95.5% compared with 90.4% the year before.
Waterways Ombudsman
The Waterways Ombudsman provides an independent
review in cases where our complaints procedure has
been exhausted. The Waterways Ombudsman
Committee, which ensures that the Waterways
Ombudsman Scheme is accepted as independent
of British Waterways, underwrites the effectiveness
and independence of the Ombudsman scheme.
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In 2005/06, 89 matters were referred to the
Waterways Ombudsman. Of these, 29 were accepted
for further investigation. In total, the Ombudsman
issued decisions on 27 cases, some carried over from
the previous year. Of the total, 17 cases were found
to show maladministration or unfair treatment (in part
or in full), with British Waterways asked to take
appropriate action. In the remaining 10 completed
cases, the Ombudsman found no maladministration
or unfair treatment.
British Waterways Advisory Forum
With a remit to debate and advise on strategic issues,
the British Waterways Advisory Forum (BWAF), which
was formed this financial year, represents all national
groups with an interest in the waterways. It holds two
general meetings each year attended by our chairman,
our chief executive and some of our board members.
Since its inception in May 2005 BWAF has
considered British Waterways’ restoration strategy,
waterways congestion, visitor standards, and national
consultation mechanisms, amongst other strategic
issues. In Scotland, national and other major user
groups are invited to meetings of the BW Scotland
Group where similar issues are considered from
a Scottish perspective.
Outside BWAF and the BW Scotland Group, British
Waterways holds four national meetings each year to
discuss towpath and boating issues. Each of our ten
waterway units, which include London and Scotland,
also hold meetings to discuss local issues with local
stakeholders throughout the year. Dates of, and notes
from, these meetings are posted on our corporate
website www.britishwaterways.co.uk/accountability.

Top: With a remit to debate
and advise on strategic
issues, the British Waterways
Advisory Forum had its first
full meeting in May 2005,
where Howard Pridding was
elected chairperson.
Far left: An opportunity to put
questions to board members
and directors alike, the
British Waterways Annual
Meeting is attended by
around 120 delegates each
year, representing our wide
range of stakeholders.

Freedom of Information Act
The Freedom of Information Act came into force
in January 2005. Full details of our simple but
comprehensive process for accessing information
can be found on our website
www.britishwaterways.co.uk/foi. There are also
details of our publication scheme as required by the
Act. In 2005/06 we met 77 requests for information.

Consultations
We value our stakeholders’ views on our activities
and invite groups and individuals to respond to
our consultation documents, which are posted
on our website
www.britishwaterways.co.uk/accountability/
consultations. The main consultations that took
place during 2005/06 are listed in the table below.

Left: Our website,
britishwaterways.co.uk,
displays our national
consultations as well as
information on our board
and user group meetings.

National Complaints Culture Survey
In 2005/06 we again took part in the National
Complaints Culture Survey. The survey provides
helpful, independent analysis of customer views
on how we handle complaints. It also allows us to
be benchmarked against other UK organisations.
2005/06 consultations
Consultation

Start date

End date

Current Status

Licence Fee Structure

June 2005

January 2006

On-going
(see page 20)*

Motorcycle Barriers

September
2005

November
2005

Awaiting final
guidance
sign-off*

Mooring Contracts

Pre-consultation was carried out at the beginning
of 2006 on Mooring Contracts and a full
consultation will continue through to 2006/07.

*check www.britishwaterways.co.uk/accountability/consultations for up-to-date information
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FINANCE
REVIEW
The operating result improved to a profit of £0.4m against
a loss of £7.4m in the previous year. Group reserves increased
by 16% to £472m reflecting a revaluation of the property
estate in buoyant market conditions. Completion of the
Edinburgh Quay development contributed to an increase
in joint venture income to £7.7m.

Summary of year’s results £m
Group trading income
Government grants
Total income
Total operating expenditure
Operating profit/(loss)
Group share of income in joint ventures

2005/06

2004/05

Change %

114.4

105.7
73.4

8.2%
3.7%

190.5

179.1

6.4%

(190.1)

(186.5)

1.9%

76.1

0.4

(7.4)

30.0

4.4

7.7

1.1

Profit on disposals of property and investments

15.0

14.8

Profit before tax

20.3

5.0

Profit after tax

13.5

2.3

Share of operating results of joint ventures

Retained profit/(loss)
Group Reserves
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3.3
472.5

(1.0)
407.4

16.0%

Left: Finance director,
Philip Ridal visiting
Birmingham’s canals
in March this year

Trading income
The operating result for the year ended 31 March
2006 improved to a profit of £0.4m against a loss
of £7.4m for the previous year, after restatement
for the adoption of FRS 17. This improvement was
primarily due to an increase in trading income which
was up 8.2% at £114.4m compared with increases in
operating expenditure of 1.9%. The main contributors
to the increase in income were property and utility
income, which in aggregate increased by 14.8%.
Grant income was up by £2.7m, the majority of which
related to increased grant from Defra to assist with
operational expenditure commitments. The group’s
share of turnover in joint ventures increased to £30m
(2005: £4.4m) and the share of profit increased to
£7.7m (2005: £1.1m). The increase in joint venture
turnover and profit reflects the successful sale of
phase 1 of the Edinburgh Quay office property
development in Scotland which was completed during
the year.
Group income summary £m

The retained profit is stated after transfers to realised
capital reserves of £10.2m (2005: £3.3m) in respect
of profits arising on the disposal of investment
properties and investments, net of attributable taxation.
The increase in property rentals of 9% reflects a good
performance on rent reviews and the receipt of back
dated rents whilst the increase in utility income is
primarily due to the receipt of prior year income
arrears totalling £5.6m.
Craft licence income has increased by 8.2% reflecting
the increase in the number of vessels of 5.9% and
an increase in price yield of 2.3%. Moorings income
increased by 3.6% overall, reflecting better utilisation
of the available mooring facilities and a small
improvement in the net yield.

2005/06

2004/05

Change %

Property rentals

28.8

Utility income and water sales

20.9

26.4
16.9

9.1%
23.7%

Property wayleaves and premiums

17.5

15.4

13.6%

Craft licences

11.4

10.6

8.2%

Maintenance and other income

8.1

7.4

9.0%

BWML

5.7

4.9

16.3%

Mooring permits*

4.6

4.4

3.6%

Retail sales*

2.9

2.7

7.4%

Group trading income

99.9

88.7

12.6%

Third party contributions

14.5

17.0

Group trading income
Number of Craft licences in issue

114.4

105.7

8.2%

29,000

27,378

5.9%

6,158

5,985

2.9%

Craft income per licence (£)

395

386

2.3%

Mooring income per permit (£)

743

738

0.7%

Number of mooring permits in issue

* Excluding BWML
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Right: Enjoying a drink
outside the Foxton Locks
Inn, British Waterways’ first
Waterside Pub Partnership
pub
Far right: Dining out at
Brecon Basin next to the
Monmouthshire & Brecon
Canal in Wales

Operating costs
Operating costs increased by 1.9% to £190.1m.
After allowing for expenditure on canal infrastructure
maintenance arrears, canal dredging, restoration
and regeneration costs, the underlying reduction
in operating costs was 0.3%.
Various efficiency initiatives have continued during
the year such as the New Ways of Working project
that aims to achieve savings in office space by more
effective working methods and utilisation of space.
The new office in Wigan has fully adopted the New
Ways of Working and a programme is now underway
to roll out the project across all BW offices. Further
expansion of the Shared Services Centre has been
achieved with the recent centralisation of procurement
function together with car fleet management. BW
has been using SAP software for three years and
has benefited from greater process efficiency and

quality of information. To ensure that the full benefit
is delivered from the investment, emphasis continues
to be placed on refining and improving existing
processes, staff training and better utilisation of
the information capabilities of the software. Other
initiatives are being developed to improve operating
cost efficiency across all of BW’s operations.
Profit and loss of operational activities
The profit and loss position on operational activities
after attributable taxation improved to a net profit
of £3.3m (2005: £8.1m loss) due to a higher
contribution from joint ventures, after attributable
taxation, of £5.4m (2005: £1.1m) together with
the improved operating result.

Analysis of operating costs £m

2005/06

2004/05

Infrastructure maintenance arrears

25.6

Restoration and regeneration expenditure

13.5

27.2
12.1

6.7

2.5

144.3

144.7

(0.3)%

190.1

186.5

1.9 %

2005/06

2004/05

Operating profit/(loss)

0.4

Share of operating results of joint ventures

7.7

(7.4)
1.1

Interest receivable

3.2

2.9

Interest payable

(5.3)

(5.9)

Other finance income

(0.7)

(0.5)

Profit/(loss) on operational activities before taxation
Attributable corporation tax

5.3
(2.0)

(9.8)
1.7

3.3

(8.1)

2005/06

2004/05

11.5

14.8
0.0

Canal Dredging
Other operating costs

Operational activities £m

Net profit/(loss) retained

Non-operational activities £m
Profit on disposal of investment properties
Profit on disposal of investment
Profit on non-operational activities before taxation
Capital gains tax on disposal profits tax
Transfer to realised capital reserves
Net profit retained
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Change %

3.5
15.0
(4.8)

14.8
(4.4)

(10.2)

(3.3)

0.0

7.1

Far left: Boating at Watford
on the Grand Union Canal
Left: British Waterways
launched its Inland Marina
Investment Guide in March
2006 to encourage wider
investment in marinas

Gains on non-operational property activities
The gains on disposal of properties have exceeded
expectations due to the continuing buoyant property
market. The cash raised from disposals has been
invested into joint ventures to fund land purchases
and development expenditure. The investment in
Easynet shares was sold as a result of the public
offer for the company, which resulted in a gain of
£3.5m on the disposal.
The amount transferred to realised capital reserve
is £10.2m (2005: £3.3m), which represents the profit
on disposal of investment properties and investments
net of attributable taxation. The amount of net profit
from non-operational activities retained to fund
operational activities was £nil (2005: £7.1m).
Treasury management and cash flow
Cash balances are invested only in money market
deposits for periods not exceeding three months and
are generally kept to a minimum as is consistent with
drawing grant-in-aid only in accordance with need.
At the year end the operational cash balances stood
at £10.7m (2005: £4.4m) and the non-operational
property activity cash balances stood at £24.8m
(2005: £18.0m). A further £1.9m (2005: £2.5m) is
held in third party funding accounts for regeneration
and restoration schemes.

Interest rate risk mitigation
All of BW’s borrowings are from the National Loans
Fund and are at fixed rates of interest until the
repayment date.
BW has interests in a number of property development
joint ventures that are stand-alone businesses and
are independently funded with external bank debt
without recourse to BW. In each of the joint ventures
an assessment is made whether the interest payments
on borrowings should be hedged having regard to
the quantum of the debt, the period over which the
borrowings are planned to be outstanding and the
sensitivity of the project to changes in interest rates.
At 31 March 2006 total borrowings in joint ventures
were £48m (2005: £20.9m). Of this total borrowings
82% (2005: 39%) is either at fixed rates of interest
or a fixed interest rate swap is in place.

An amount of £26.5m (2005: £10.1m) of cash was
realised during the year from the sale of investment
properties, net of amounts reinvested and tax
payments. The non-operational cash balances are
held to meet tax liabilities and funding commitments
to property development joint ventures.
Long term borrowings decreased by £3.6m to £10.5m
representing 2.2% (2005: 3.3%) of total Reserves.
The property development joint ventures included
total bank borrowings of £48.0m (2005: £20.9m)
all of which is without recourse to BW.
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Right: Canoeists on the Tees
Navigation
Far right: Anglers at Hatton
on the Grand Union Canal

Pension fund
The accounts have been prepared for the first time
under FRS 17, which relates to accounting for pension
funds. The adjustment for the change of treatment
has been dealt with as a prior year adjustment.
The main effect is to include the pension deficit
on the group balance sheet net of any attributable
deferred taxation benefits. The next full actuarial
valuation is due at 31 March 2007.
During the year investment assets performed well
showing a total increase in value of 24.4%. Against
this changes to the liability valuation assumptions
increased the present value of the liabilities by 13.2%.
As at 31 March 2006 the fund liabilities were 83%
(2005: 75%) covered by the value of the assets.

Balance sheet
Reserves have been restated for the effects of FRS
17 with the result that Profit and Loss reserves have
been reduced by £51.4m for the deficit on the
pension fund, net of related deferred tax. On a
restated basis, Group Reserves have increased by
£65.1m to £472.5 (2005: £407.4m) representing
an increase of 16% over the year. This increase is
predominantly made up of an investment property
revaluation surplus of £43.8m, a decrease in the
deficit on the pension fund of £9.9m, net of deferred
tax, and realised property and investment disposal
profits of £10.2m after taxation.

The movements on the pension fund, based on FRS
17, were as follows:

Summary of changes in pension fund deficit £m
Deficit as at 1 April 2005

(67.5)

Current service cost

(6.4)

Past service cost adjustment

(0.1)

Discount unwinding on pension scheme liabilities
Return on pension scheme assets
Experience changes on scheme liabilities
Change in present value assumptions
Contribution in cash from the employer
Deficit as at 31 March 2006

Assets and liabilities in pension scheme £m
Market value of assets

(14.6)
49.4
1.9
(23.2)
7.2
(53.3)

2005/06

2004/05

Change %

256.5

206.2

24.4%
13.2%

(309.8)

(273.7)

Deficit

(53.3)

(67.5)

Funding

83%

75%

Present value of liabilities
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2005/06

Far left: Boating at
Kingswood Junction, where
the Grand Union Canal
meets the Stratford-uponAvon Canal
Left: Buying ice-creams
from British Waterways’
refreshment and information
point at Foxton on the
Grand Union Canal

Transition to International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS)
We intend to produce BW’s first financial statements
in accordance with IFRS for the year ending 31
March 2007. The project team, established to manage
the transition from UK GAAP to IFRS, has commenced
its work and has identified the most significant
transitional impacts on the financial statements
to be as follows:
• the annual revaluation surplus/deficit on
investment property will be recognised in the
income statement
• additional deferred taxation liabilities will be
provided in relation to temporary timing differences
arising on investment property valuations and the
historical property cost
• the treatment of income and premiums arising
from long term leases of land
Risk management
We have introduced the various elements of current
best practice into our risk management framework.
This helps manage risk to create opportunities for
innovation and growth as well as identifying threats
to the achievement of our objectives. Our approach
to risk management is given on page 64. This shows
the importance attached to the ongoing clarification
of risks, ensuring effective control processes exist
and for embedding risk management into BW culture.
The main risks stem from the heritage infrastructure
for which there is ongoing inspection, assessment
and prioritisation of remedial action to assets with a
high consequence of failure. Completion of the safety
critical backlog of maintenance in 2004 has reduced
the overall level of risk in the asset base. There
remains a balance of essential but less urgent work
to complete. These statutory arrears of maintenance
are valued at £119m at 31 March 2006.
We are dependent on continued funding from the
government to fulfil statutory obligations to eliminate
the remaining maintenance arrears. We are changing
the existing arrangements with government whereby
future public funding levels are dependent on meeting
specified standards of service with annual
improvements in performance.

infrastructure by accessing investment funds and
development expertise. Processes have been
developed for choosing the right partner, monitoring
performance, governance and clarity in allocating
appropriate responsibilities between partners.
Our joint ventures include significant property
development opportunities within which there are
various risks. We actively engage the expertise of
our chosen partners in the field to manage these
risks effectively within the constraints of the wider
economic cycle.
There are risks associated with implementing these
business changes. These focus on behaviours for
consistency in delivering standards, customer service
and safety. We manage these risks through codes
of practice to ensure fair trading, recognised project
control techniques, communication, regular
performance appraisal and individual development
plans reflecting the new business priorities.
We take considerable care over the safety of our
customers and employees on the waterways.
We continually measure and improve our safety
record by safety training, procedures, signage,
regular inspection and maintenance of assets
and the development of relevant competencies.
Our procedures have been reviewed to manage the
water control and vulnerable points through various
levels of severity of any pandemic.
In our wider objectives, we have a commitment to
deliver social, environmental and heritage benefits.
Risk based assessments in accordance with our
Environmental Code of Practice are applied to all
works undertaken while a Sustainability Register
is prepared for all projects over £150,000. We have
a regular assessment of all our heritage assets
and actively follow up buildings at risk. Safety risks,
vandalism and impediments to access by all are
managed by our educational role and community
engagement through organisations with strong
involvement in social inclusion and volunteers.
Our regeneration activities, including those affecting
the Olympic site, deliver benefits from our active
waterspace management to wider redevelopment
schemes. Competent project management and
coordination with partners delivering shared visions
contribute to timely achievement of outcomes.

Given the nature of our work and responsibilities we
are particularly exposed to changes to these agreed
standards by new legislation and regulation. The
impacts will be clearer as the full requirements emerge
from, for example, the Water Framework Directive.
Increasingly necessary and important sources
of additional funding are through partnerships.
These ventures allow further exploitation of BW’s
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ENHANCING THE
QUALITY OF LIFE
IN SCOTLAND
British Waterways Scotland manages some 160 miles
of canals, including some of the most famous and historic
in the UK, among them the Caledonian, Crinan, Forth &
Clyde, Union and Monkland canals.
We work with the Scottish Executive to meet the policy
objectives set out in Scotland’s Canals – an Asset for
the Future. We want to see our canals fulfil their potential
as a unique resource that adds value to and enhances
the quality of life in Scotland.
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Far left: A group of friends
take out a rowing boat on
the Caledonian Canal.
Left: The Crinan Canal in
Scotland is an ideal location
for local artists to get their
inspiration.

We aim to maintain and develop our inland waterways
in a sustainable way so that they fulfil their economic,
social and environmental potential. At the heart of our
vision is our goal of enhancing leisure, recreation,
education and tourism opportunities for increasing
numbers of waterway visitors in Scotland.
During the year we were delighted to receive a British
Urban Regeneration Association Crystal Award,
celebrating the best of British regeneration from
1990 to 2005, for the Millennium Link restoration
(Forth & Clyde and Union canals).
British Waterways Scotland Group
Chaired by British Waterways’ vice-chairman, the
British Waterways Scotland Group represents our
corporate and commercial interests in Scotland’s
devolved political environment. The Group meets
three or four times each year at locations throughout
Scotland, with members of the public and interested
parties invited to make their views known. These
meetings are in addition to our formal public annual
meeting, and our regular local user group meetings
held throughout the year.
Scottish Executive grant
We receive grant funding from the Scottish Executive.
Although our baseline grant of £8.9m in 2005/06
was the same as for the year 2004/05, we received
additional ad hoc funding of £3.1m, bringing the total
for the year to £12m. We will see a real increase
to £10.9m in 2006/07 and £11.4m in 2007/08 –
a clear indication of the Scottish Executive’s
commitment to our canals.
We have pledged to match our baseline grant
increases with improved revenue streams that
support the Scottish Executive’s strong commitment.
Positive partnerships
We play our full part within the Scottish Canals
Development Group, a partnership chaired by the
Scottish Executive that brings together organisations
with a common interest in contributing to, and
benefiting from, vibrant canals. Working with the
Waterways Trust Scotland we also encourage
community and voluntary sector engagement with
our network, promoting the educational value of the
waterways and their positive impact on quality of life.
Two further groups – the Highland Canals Steering
Group and the Lowland Canals Steering Group –
continue to meet quarterly to discuss and progress
projects. One of our strategic priorities is to ensure
that the Lowland Canals, now restored, fulfil their
economic and leisure potential in the years to come.
Wherever compatible with our vision we will use
the waterways as a catalyst for urban and rural
regeneration.

Maintaining our waterways
Safety remains top of our agenda, underpinning
everything we do. We need a safe, secure network
infrastructure so that people feel safe when visiting
our waterways, and businesses feel confident about
investing in them. During 2005/06 there were no
reportable three-day incidents among our people
or our contractors.
All the canals in Scotland (except the Monkland
Canal) enjoy scheduled ancient monument status
and are surrounded by environmentally rich sites. The
success of our operations depends on close working
relationships with a number of partner organisations,
including Historic Scotland, the Scottish Environment
Protection Agency, and Scottish National Heritage.
During 2005/06 we successfully completed our
stabilisation project to improve the reliability and
efficiency of the Caledonian Canal, with major works
undertaken at Dochgarroch Lock. A programme
of ongoing maintenance will ensure the canal’s
infrastructure is safeguarded in the longer term.
On the Crinan Canal we undertook maintenance
dredging between Cairnbaan and Ardrishaig to ensure
safe navigation for our customers. The dredged
material was re-used to improve agricultural land
adjacent to the canal. We also carried out embankment
repairs and refurbished the Ardrishaig swing bridge.
The year also saw dredging and wall repairs on the
Glasgow branch of the Forth & Clyde Canal between
Speirs Wharf and Applecross Street. Improvements to
the canal infrastructure here are part of our ambitious
programme to help regenerate this area of north
Glasgow. On the Union Canal east of Falkirk, we
undertook repairs to a major embankment during
2005/06.
Eliminating arrears
At the close of 2005/06, outstanding statutory
maintenance arrears in Scotland stood at £6.2m,
down from £7.8m at the start of the financial year.
We remain on target to eliminate these arrears
completely by 2012.
Water Framework Directive in Scotland
We are working with the Scottish Executive water
team and the Scottish Environment Protection
Agency (SEPA) to look at the EU Water Framework
Directive (see page 17). This has allowed us to ensure
that SEPA is sensitive to the special nature of the
canals as artificial structures.
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Right: The Falkirk Wheel
was voted ‘Best Project
in 25 Years’ in the Saltire
Civil Engineering Awards
Far right: The number of boats
licensed on Scotland’s canals
grew by 8% in 2005/06.

Leisure
The Waterside Pub Partnership will start building
a new canalside pub at Auchinstarry in July 2006.
The first new-build of the partnership, opening is
expected in July 2007 and the site will also benefit
from a ten-bed lodge. Plans for further outlets at
Rosebank, the Falkirk Wheel and Seaport Marina
in Inverness are being progressed.
The Falkirk Wheel
Voted ‘Best Project in 25 Years’ as part of the Saltire
Society Awards 25th anniversary celebrations in
2005/06, The Falkirk Wheel remains one of
Scotland’s leading visitor attractions. 2005/06 was,
nevertheless, a challenging one for The Wheel.
Tourism was down some 18% across Scotland, and
The Falkirk Wheel was not immune. Income at the
end of the financial year was down £0.1m on the
previous year at £1.6m. Boat traffic, on the other
hand, has continued to prove popular. In 2005/06,
127,884 visitors from around the world experienced
a boat trip through The Wheel. In August 2005 alone,
24,497 visitors enjoyed a boat trip, and 265 private
vessels transited The Wheel.
Boats & boating
Transit traffic rose on all our canals during the year.
The total number of boats licensed in Scotland in
2005/06 was 3,160, compared with 2,920 in
2004/05.

Customer improvements
In 2005/06 we installed additional moorings at
Seaport Marina and built a new facility block at
Banavie on the Caledonian Canal. The revitalisation
of the Lowland Canals reached another milestone
with the formal opening in September 2005 of the
£1.2m mooring basin at Auchinstarry near Kilsyth on
the Forth & Clyde Canal. In addition to 56 pontoon
berths, the development here includes hard standing
for 40 boats, a car park and a facilities block. Close
partnership has been evident throughout, with North
Lanarkshire Council providing strong support, and
Scottish Enterprise Lanarkshire contributing some
£200,000 of funding.
Sustainability continues to be our watchword at
Auchinstarry Basin. In addition to deploying recycled
materials in all parts of the construction process the
site makes clever use of technology. Heating and hot
water are provided in the shower and toilet block via
an innovative pump drawing heat from the canal –
the first such use of canal water, we believe, in the UK.
At Bowling, western entry point to the Forth & Clyde
Canal, we created an extensive public events area,
new moorings and car parking with the financial
support of the European Regional Development Fund
and Scottish Enterprise Dunbartonshire. As part of
this £1.5m programme to further the revitalisation
of Scotland’s reopened Lowland Canal corridor we
constructed a new boat storage area and facility
block, and cleaned up the railway arches. Using some
of our ad hoc funding from the Scottish Executive,
we removed most of the wrecks from Bowling Harbour
which were both a safety hazard and an eyesore.

Boat licences in Scotland

Caledonian Canal

Under
3 Months
2005/06

Under
3 Months
2004/05

Over
3 Months
2005/06

Over
3 Months
2004/05

Total
2005/06

Total
2004/05

1145

948

167

171

1312

1119

126

98

232

200

358

298

Crinan Canal*

1421

1440

69

63

1490

1503

Total

2692

2486

468

434

3160

2920

Lowland Canals

*In 2005/06 there were 137 commercial freight ship visits to the Crinan Canal. The slight downturn in licences under 3 months
sold on the Crinan Canal is due to the canal being closed during March 2006
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Far left: Edinburgh Quay was
voted the ‘best regeneration
project in Scotland’ at the
Scottish Design Awards
in 2005.
Left: Walkers, anglers,
and cyclists alike enjoy
Scotland’s Canals.

Improving customer service
To understand and exceed the expectations of our
customers we must get closer to them. We now have
more people in more parts of Scotland dedicated
to raising levels of customer service. Via a cultural
change, we aim to deliver better service on the
ground, and to improve our relationships with our
customers and our visitors.

‘canalside quarter’. Suffering recently from social,
physical and economic problems, the rebuilding
of a waterside community will be the catalyst for
regeneration in North Glasgow. Residential, leisure,
green space, moorings, and a new canal link will
improve access to a waterside environment, revitalise
the area and links into Glasgow’s bid for the
Commonwealth Games.

Our customer satisfaction levels are improving for
hire boaters. 99% rated overall upkeep as ok, good
or excellent in 2005, compared with 96% in 2004,
whilst boat owners’ satisfaction with overall upkeep
(as ok, good or excellent) remained steady at 93%.

Timber Basin Limited, a joint venture with residential
developer Quality Street, has begun marketing a
canalside site in Glasgow which has the benefit
of planning consent for 142 flats with a further
application submitted for another 28 units. Its aim
is to complete the sale of this site in early 2007.

Regeneration

Restoration in Scotland
We want to expand our network in Scotland through
further waterway restoration and creation.

We have completed a full review of the Scottish
property portfolio and have implemented an action
plan to drive better value from our estate.
Edinburgh
We were delighted that Edinburgh Quay was voted
the ‘Best Regeneration Project in Scotland’ at the
Scottish Design Awards 2005 and that it won ‘Best
Mixed-Use Development of the Year’ at the Scottish
Property Awards. It was also shortlisted for the RIAS
Best Building in Scotland. Our imaginative joint venture
with Miller Developments has transformed the area
around Lochrin Basin, terminus of the Union Canal
and started the regeneration of the Fountainbridge
corridor.
Commercially, the development has been a resounding
success. With all Phase One office space fully let we
concluded the sale of Phase One to the investment
market. There are already various interests in Phase
Two, which began on site in autumn 2005 with
planning consent for 55,000 sq ft of offices and
is due for completion in December 2006.
Following our success at Edinburgh Quay we hope to
see further waterspace created via the redevelopment
of adjacent Fountainbridge Brewery. We are
encouraging the City of Edinburgh Council and
private developers by highlighting the role and value
of vibrant, interesting waterspace at the heart of the
capital. Everyone can now enjoy this lively destination
in the heart of Edinburgh.
Glasgow
An innovative joint venture between British Waterways,
ISIS and Glasgow City Council, the development of
1,000 acres of derelict and vacant land in Glasgow
will attract people to live, work and play in this new

Construction of a 300-metre canal basin with two
new lock structures linking Speirs Wharf and Port
Dundas in Glasgow for the first time in decades is
spearheading the regeneration of a neglected area
of north Glasgow. The project has been made
possible through a strong partnership, with funding
from Glasgow City Council, the European Regional
Development Fund, the Garfield Weston Foundation,
British Waterways, and ISIS Waterside Regeneration.
ISIS Waterside Regeneration, our national property
development partnership with Amec and Igloo
Regeneration, has forged a development partnership
with Glasgow City Council to push forward canalside
regeneration through further investment. Planning
permission is being progressed for the first phase
of development focused on the area between Speirs
Wharf and Port Dundas. The expectation is that
1,000 acres of north Glasgow can be transformed
over the next 15 years.
We recognise the need to improve the entrances
to the Lowland Canals at both the River Carron and
Bowling. Feasibility studies, funded by the Scottish
Executive and British Waterways, have been completed
to investigate the navigation windows on the River
Carron with a view to improving access to and from
the Forth & Clyde Canal.
The Scottish Executive’s published policy is to promote
the restoration of navigation along the River Leven
from Dumbarton on the Clyde to Loch Lomond. We
have been asked to consider the river’s navigation
potential in depth as a follow-up to our earlier flood
defence work here.
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Right: Walkers take in the
magnificent scenery on
the Caledonian Canal.
Far right: Director, Scotland,
Steve Dunlop at the launch
of the Scottish Boat Show
with Pauline Murray, retail
assistant, The Falkirk Wheel,
and Carole Keltie, manager,
The Falkirk Wheel

Freight
Although our waterways’ main purpose is leisure,
transporting freight by canal represents a significant
opportunity for sustainable transport delivering nontime-sensitive materials such as waste, timber and
aggregates. One of our key aims is to facilitate
waterway transport and freight and the building of
the Glendoe hydropower station beside Loch Ness
offers the possibility of redeveloping freight on the
Caledonian Canal. Timber shipments through our
improved facilities at Ardrishaig continue to outperform
expectations. In 2005/06 timber volumes shipped
from the pier have remained at capacity with
125,000 tonnes being exported compared with
132,660 tonnes in 2004/05.
The Lowland Canals Steering Group, meanwhile,
is progressing a Freight Action Plan in partnership
with East Dunbartonshire Council. During the year
a trial using a Leeds & Liverpool Canal barge delivered
several tonnes of electronic and electrical waste
from Glasgow and Bishopbriggs to Twechar as part
of a plan to establish a recycling centre there.

Director’s summary
A renaissance for our canal network
My appointment as director, Scotland, in February
2006 comes on the back of an intensive period of
restoration activity on Scotland’s inland waterways,
with the country’s canal network now experiencing
a renaissance, and increasing numbers of people
visiting the Lowland and Highland Canals and our
iconic Falkirk Wheel visitor attraction. I would like
to take this opportunity to acknowledge the fantastic
work of my predecessor, Jim Stirling, who has taken
up the position of technical director at British
Waterways after serving us in Scotland for 13 years.
Jim led the revitalisation of Scotland’s canals, and
thanks to his considerable efforts and those of a
strong partnership team, the country’s waterways
have undergone a huge transformation.
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We now have a strong canal infrastructure in the
Highlands and Lowlands that is perfectly positioned
to be a significant contributor to leisure and tourism
and deliver a wide range of social, economic and
environmental improvements to the people of Scotland.
It is imperative our waterways are made to work hard
for the communities through which they run. I intend
to work closely with all our partners to focus the
efforts of the committed team here in Scotland on
both meeting the needs of our current users and
identifying additional opportunities on and off the
water – opportunities that maximise the potential
of our network.

Finance review
The accounts for BW Scotland are shown on pages
96 and 97 in the Accounts section of this report.
During the year BW Scotland made an operating loss
of £1.0m in 2005/06 (2004/05: £1.3m). After taking
into account dividends from our Edinburgh Quay Ltd
property joint venture of £3.1m, £0.7m profit from
the sale of investment properties and £0.3m joint
venture loan interest receivable, the profit before
tax was £3.1m (2004/05 £0.5).
Detailed comments on trading are included in the
review of our ‘business areas’ on pages 48 - 52.
During the year the first phase of development in
Edinburgh Quay was completed and the building sold
to Deutsche Bank. As a consequence £5.0m of loan
capital was repaid by Edinburgh Quay. Phase 2 of the
development is now underway.
The value of fixed assets reduced by £0.7m to
£15.2m, as a result of the sale of investment
properties during the year.

Steve Dunlop
Director, Scotland

A busy day for boats on the
Caledonian Canal

NON-EXECUTIVE
BOARD MEMBERS
Tony Hales 4 6
Chairman
Tony is chairman of Workspace Group plc and NAAFI Ltd,
and is also non-executive director of Aston Villa plc.
He was previously chief executive of Allied Domecq and
a non-executive director of HSBC Bank plc and Welsh
Water plc. Age 58.

Susan Achmatowicz 1 2 5
Susan is a leisure entrepreneur, who has developed her
own award-winning cycle tourism business. She is an advisor
on cycle tourism, rural business start-up and sustainable
development. Formerly a vice president of Bankers Trust
in the City, Susan is a member of the New Forest National
Park Authority and non-executive director of Hadrian’s Wall
Heritage. Age 51.

Prof. George Fleming 2 5
George is Emeritus Professor of Civil Engineering at the
University of Strathclyde and is managing director of
EnviroCentre. He is a past president of the Institution
of Civil Engineers. He is also non-executive director
of WRAP (Waste and Resource Action Programme)
and Port of Tyne. Age 61.

Richard Bowker CBE 2 6
Richard is the chief executive of Partnerships for Schools.
The former chairman and chief executive of the Strategic Rail
Authority, he is also a trustee of the Settle Carlisle Railway
Trust, the deputy president of the Heritage Railway Association
and a member of the Business Development Board of
SCOPE. Richard is also a keen boater having cruised
extensively around the network on his own boat.
Age 40.

Helen Gordon 1 2 7
Helen is property director of Legal and General Life Fund. Prior
to that she was property director at Railtrack. She is an expert
in enhancing ‘Brownfield’ sites and development of underutilised resources. She was managing director of John Laing
Property Ventures Ltd and has also advised on many major
regeneration projects. Helen represents BW in its Limited
Partner role as investor in ISIS Waterside Regeneration.
Age 47.

Dr Campbell Christie CBE, Vice Chairman 1 3 4 5
Campbell was general secretary of the Scottish TUC for
12 years until retiring in 1998. He is the chair of the BW
Scotland Group and represents Scottish interests on the
Board. He is chairman of Falkirk Football Club and the NHS
Forth Valley Acute Operating Division, president of the Scottish
Civic Forum, and a non-executive director on the Board of
South West Trains Ltd. Age 68.

Dr Derek Langslow CBE 2 4
Derek is a trustee of the Heritage Lottery Fund, a nonexecutive director of Harwich Haven Authority, member
of the Rail Passengers Council and is an external consultant
to Defra on Quinquennial Review. He is also the former chief
executive of English Nature. Age 61.

Ian Darling 3 5 7
Ian is a chartered surveyor and property consultant. He is
a member of the Lands Tribunal for Scotland and a member
of the Court of Edinburgh University. He also serves on the
Council and Scottish Committee of the RSPB and is a past
chairman of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
in Scotland. He represents Scottish interests on the board.
Age 61.

Terry Tricker 3 4 6
Terry is chairman of his own leisure business. He was
previously chairman of Burton Hospitals NHS Acute
Trust and a board member of Severn Trent Water Ltd.
He is a mentor with ‘Jigsaw’, a mentoring organisation
supporting disadvantaged young people. Age 62.

The British Waterways Board is appointed by the Secretary of State for Environment,
Food and Rural Affairs and (in respect of two members) by the Scottish Executive.
The appointments are intended to ensure a good balance of skills and experience
which are relevant to British Waterways’ wide ranging remit.
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1

DIRECTOR OF BRITISH WATERWAYS PENSION TRUSTEES LTD

3

MEMBER OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

4

2

MEMBER OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

MEMBER OF THE NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE

5

MEMBER OF THE BRITISH WATERWAYS SCOTLAND GROUP

7

MEMBER OF THE PROPERTY GROUP

6

MEMBER OF THE FAIR TRADING COMMITTEE

EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS
Robin Evans BSc, FRICS
Chief Executive 1
Robin joined British Waterways in 1999 as commercial
director and became chief executive in December 2002.
Prior to that he spent four years as palaces’ director for
Historic Royal Palaces and was chief executive of The
Landmark Trust for eight years. Age 52.

Mark Bensted IEng, AMIStructE
Director, London
Mark has been responsible for the operational, property,
leisure and regeneration activities of British Waterways
London since 1990. Prior to joining British Waterways in
1980 Mark worked in the construction industry for Taylor
Woodrow and Kyle Stewart. Age 48.

John Lancaster FCA
Managing Director, England and Wales
John joined British Waterways in 1996 following a career in
the accountancy profession, followed by 20 years in general
management positions within the dairy industry. Age 59.

Derek Cochrane BSc, MEng, CEng, FICE
Regeneration Director
Derek has worked for British Waterways for over 25 years
commencing in Scotland. Prior to that he worked for a water
authority and in private sector consultancy. Age 55.

Vincent Moran BA, FCIPD
Customer Operations Director (from March 2006)
Personnel Director (until March 2006)
Vince joined British Waterways in 1997 following extensive
personnel and general management experience in production,
manufacturing and service activities with the coal industry and
Chubb Security plc. Age 50.

Steve Dunlop
Director, Scotland (from Feb 2006)
Steve was previously director of regeneration at Newcastle
City Council. He started his career in leisure management
before moving to a number of high profile senior positions
in local government, latterly as director of community services
at Falkirk Council. Age 44.

Philip Ridal BEng, FCA, MCT 1
Finance Director (from Sept 2005)
A member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants and
a member of the Association of Corporate Treasurers, Philip
has held a variety of financial roles in UK listed property
companies, including the Mowlem construction group, and is
the former finance director of Manchester Airports Group plc.
Age 52.
Mark Smith was finance director until May 2005

James Froomberg MA
Commercial Director
From 1983 to 1999 James was at KPMG where, as a partner,
he headed the firm’s management consultancy to the leisure
industry. He was then appointed to Wembley plc as director
of corporate development, before joining British Waterways
in March 2003. Age 50.

Simon Salem BA, MBA
Marketing and Customer Service Director
Simon has over 20 years’ experience of marketing, PR,
corporate affairs and fundraising. Before joining British
Waterways he worked for London Transport. He has worked
extensively in the leisure and tourism industry. Age 49.

Nigel Johnson BSc (Econ), Solicitor
Legal Director and Secretary to the Board
Nigel worked as a corporate lawyer in the finance industry
for 18 years and was a senior lawyer in Westminster before
joining British Waterways. Age 51.

Jim Stirling OBE, BSc, MBA, CEng, FICE, MIStructE
Technical Director (from Feb 2006)
Director, Scotland (until Feb 2006)
Jim joined British Waterways as manager, Scotland in 1992
and became director, Scotland in 1997 and technical director
in 2006. Jim spent many years in civil engineering,
construction and development both in the UK and abroad.
Age 53.
Stewart Sim was technical director until Feb 2006
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Relaxing on the Grand Union Canal
near Stoke Bruerne
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BOARD
MEMBERS’
REPORT
The board members present their annual report on the
affairs of BW, together with the accounts and auditors’
report, for the year ended 31 March 2006.

Principal Activities
BW’s principal activities are set out on pages 3 and 60.
Business Review
A detailed review of BW’s performance during the year and
expected future developments is contained in the Business
Review section on pages 10 to 31.
Results
The audited accounts for the year ended 31 March 2006 are shown
on pages 72 to 95.
The analysis of income and expenditure in the accounts is based
on the current use of waterways rather than their Transport Act 1968
classification. This provides a more meaningful presentation but does
not affect BW’s statutory obligations set out in the Transport Act 1968,
the Board’s approach to which is set out later in this Report under
‘Statutory and Financial Framework’ on pages 60 to 61.
Board Member
The board members who served during the year are shown on page
54. Their terms of engagement are summarised in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 66 to 69. A Register of Interests
is maintained by the legal director through whom public inspection
can be arranged.
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Fixed Assets
Details of movements in fixed assets during the year, including
the revaluation of investment properties, are set out in Note 7
to the accounts.
BW does not incorporate revaluations of operational properties
in the accounts. Based upon external valuations at 31 December
2005, it is the opinion of the board members that the operational
property, excluding the canal track, towpaths and reservoirs, has
a market value in the region of £56m (2005: £56m) at 31 March
2006. A tax liability would not be expected to arise if land and
buildings were sold at that value.
Charitable and Political Contributions
BW has not made any charitable or political contributions.
Payment Policy
It is BW’s policy to agree payment terms with its suppliers at the
outset of a transaction, and abide by these terms, subject to
satisfactory performance by the supplier and the timely presentation
of an accurate invoice. Amounts owed to suppliers are generally
settled by the end of the month following receipt of invoice. At the
year end, the amount owed to trade suppliers was equivalent to 16
days credit (2005: 15 days).

Equal Opportunities
BW is committed to equality of opportunity and has policies and
procedures in place to ensure continuous improvement. BW fully
recognises its legal responsibilities, particularly in respect of race
relations, sex and disability discrimination.

Environment and Heritage
BW has a structured system in place to identify how work should
be carried out to protect and conserve heritage and environment.
This is guided by our Environmental Code of Practice (ECP) –
our environmental management system.

Employees
BW places considerable value on the involvement of its employees
and has continued its practice of keeping them informed on matters
affecting them as employees and on the various factors affecting its
performance. This is achieved through formal and informal meetings
allowing the two-way flow of information between management and
employees, and a monthly newspaper supplemented by occasional
regional information sheets, and employee surveys.

BW’s natural and cultural heritage and the requirements to conserve
or improve it are described in a range of Conservation Plans,
Biodiversity Action Plans, Heritage Principles, Standards and
Action Plans. Further information on such plans and strategy
is available on request.

BW has common terms and conditions of employment and single
table bargaining with employee representatives through National
and Business Unit Forums. Consultation on employment and other
related matters takes place at these forums in a spirit of cooperation and open exchange of information and ideas.

Audit
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP were appointed as external auditors
of BW for the year ended 31 March 2006 by the Secretary of State
for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs in accordance with Section
24(2) of the Transport Act 1962.

All employees are covered by an annual performance and
development review process
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Statutory and financial framework
Statutory Basis
The British Waterways Board (BW) is a public corporation, which
was established by the Transport Act 1962 to manage the inland
waterways, docks and estates, which had previously been the
responsibility of the British Transport Commission.
BW is responsible for approximately 2,000 miles of canals and river
navigations in England, Scotland and Wales, together with their
associated reservoirs, docks, repair yards and workshops.
The Transport Act 1968 classified these waterways into:
a) The Commercial Waterways, which were to be kept principally
available for the commercial carrying of freight and maintained in
a suitable condition for use by commercial freight carrying vessels.
b) The Cruising Waterways, which were to be kept principally available
for cruising, fishing and other recreational purposes and maintained
for use by vessels constructed or adapted for the carriage of
passengers and driven by mechanical power.
c) The remainder, which have to be dealt with in the most economical
manner possible (consistent, in the case of retained waterways,
with the requirements of public health and the preservation of
amenity and safety), but subject nevertheless to a duty (contained
in the British Waterways Act 1995) to take account of the
desirability of protecting them for future use as cruising waterways
or for other public recreational use.
Under s.27 of the Transport Act 1962, the government may give
directions of a general character to BW as to the exercise of its
functions and in February 1999 the government published a
Framework Document containing its aims and objectives for BW.
Under the terms of the Framework Document, BW is required by the
government to operate and maintain its waterways to standards that
reflect use and prospects of use and any land drainage requirements.
Such standards do not always fully reflect the historic standards for
the channel dimensions of Commercial and Cruising Waterways
prescribed by the Transport Act 1968.

The government requirement in the Framework Document is
expressed to be subject to BW’s statutory obligations. Nevertheless
the government (Scottish Ministers in respect of waterways in
Scotland) has power to make Orders varying the historic standards
prescribed in the 1968 Act. Furthermore, the currently prescribed
standards may only be enforced in special proceedings under that
Act. The government (and Scottish Ministers) has power to intervene
in any such enforcement proceedings and to curtail them if it certifies
to the court it intends to make an Order specifying different statutory
standards. This power may be exercised if compliance with the
standards being enforced under the proceedings would require
the payment of further grant by the government (Defra or Scottish
Executive).
The Framework Document also sets out BW’s wider relationship
with government and responsibilities of the Board and chief
executive, as well as setting a framework for BW’s relations with
users, the Waterways Ombudsman and the Inland Waterways
Amenity Advisory Council.
Consistent with its statutory obligations, powers and objectives
agreed with government, BW runs its affairs on a commercial basis
and promotes the fullest use of the waterways for leisure, recreation
and amenity, and freight transport where appropriate.
Grant
BW receives annual grants in monthly instalments from the
government, which assists it in meeting its statutory obligations.
BW’s activities in England and Wales are being funded by Defra
and in Scotland are being funded by the Scottish Executive.
Conditions for the payment of grant and details of other controls
applicable to BW as a public corporation are set out in Financial
Memoranda issued by government.
Part of the grant received from government is used for the purchase
of vehicles, plant and equipment for maintaining the waterways as
economically as possible but on which no return on investment can
be obtained. This is treated in the accounts as a capital grant and
the income deferred and brought into account in line with the
depreciation charges on the assets concerned.
BW is precluded from drawing government grant in advance of need.
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Objective to Avoid Loss and Not Draw Grant in Advance of Need
The above requirement of not drawing grant in advance of need,
combined with the statutory responsibility to avoid a loss on revenue
account, taking one year with another, leads BW to target to break
even on profit and loss account each year.
Borrowing and Capital Investment
The government sets the maximum amount of grant and any access
to loans from the National Loans Fund to fund capital expenditure.
BW is not allowed long term borrowings other than from the
National Loans Fund. The limit of all BW’s borrowings was
increased to £35m under an order of the Secretary of State for
the Environment in March 2001 exercising powers contained in
the Water Act 1981. The Treasury annually renews guarantees
of bank overdraft facilities in order for BW to meet day-to-day
fluctuations in receipts and payments.
BW’s profit generating capital expenditure can be funded through
access to National Loans Fund loans, subject to government limits.
In recent years BW has only been permitted to borrow amounts
equal to the total of earlier loans due for repayment. Within these
limitations, BW has been restructuring its asset portfolio by disposal
and reinvestment to improve its ability to achieve its business
objectives. In February 1999 the Deputy Prime Minister announced
that the government had decided to phase out most of BW’s
outstanding debt as it matures, thus removing from BW the need
to take out new loans to repay existing loans.

Determination of Available Funding
The financial resources available to BW during any year are
controlled by the government, which fixes resource and capital
expenditure budgets as part of bi-annual Comprehensive Spending
Reviews spanning three years. BW manages its expenditure to
remain within these budgets and finances the expenditure from its
own earned income and annual grant from Defra and the Scottish
Executive. The grant received from the government during 2005/06
was £74.6m.
Preparation of Accounts
BW is required to prepare audited Annual Accounts which comply
with Companies Act requirements and best commercial accounting
practice, although the information to be disclosed is amended and
extended by Direction of the Secretary of State for Environment,
Food and Rural Affairs as shown on page 98.
Expenditure on repairs and renewals of the basic canal infrastructure
is written off to profit and loss account as it is incurred. Investment
property is revalued annually by external valuers.

BW is also required to obtain government consent for all expenditure
projects over £3m or when there are novel or contentious features
or to take an interest in a body corporate in excess of 49%. It is
furthermore required to consult Defra or the Scottish Executive
at the earliest stage, in the case of major development proposals
where the value of any BW investment, including the value of land
with planning consent for the proposal, exceeds £3m.

ACCOUNTS: BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORT - STATUTORY AND FINANCIAL FRAMEWORK 61

Corporate governance
The Board is committed to achieving the highest standards of
corporate governance. This is key to the objective of BW being an
exemplar public organisation that maximises the public benefit it
creates. Accordingly the Board has resolved that, save for necessary
adaptations consequent upon its actual status as a statutory Public
Corporation, it should adhere to and apply the standards of corporate
governance applicable to a quoted public limited company. In doing
so, it also meets (and exceeds) the Accounts Direction to meet the
disclosure requirements ‘of companies legislation currently in force.
The applicable standards for this reporting year are those set out in
the Combined Code on Corporate Governance and this statement
explains how the Board has applied those standards throughout the
reporting year
Board – Operations and Membership
One of the principal differences between BW and a quoted company
relates to the structure of the Board and the appointment of its
members. As such, sections A4, A7 and B of the Combined Code
relating to the appointment, re-election and remuneration of board
members are not applicable to BW.
BW is governed by a Board comprising a chairman and vice chairman
and (currently) seven other non-executive members appointed by
the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs and
(in respect of two members) Scottish Ministers. Their appointment
is fixed for a period of three years and their remuneration is set by the
Secretary of State and Scottish Ministers. Subject to performance,
board members may be reappointed once without competitive
selection. The appointments are intended to ensure a balance
of skills and experience relevant to the various sectors of the
business. Dr George Greener retired as chairman on 9 July 2005.
Tony Hales, was appointed chairman from 10 July 2005, and met
the independence criteria on his appointment. His appointment
was made in accordance with the guidance of the Office of the
Commissioner for Public Appointments (OCPA) and therefore on
merit and against objective criteria. The chairman has enough time
available to devote to the job.
The Board meets regularly (six times during the year) and brings
an independent judgement to its oversight of the direction, strategy
and corporate objectives of BW. Reporting to the board are executive
directors who have direct responsibility for operations and
management. They also are responsible for the development of
business strategy and policies, subject to approval by the board.
Biographical details of the board members and executive directors
can be found on pages 54 and 55.
All the board members are non-executive and therefore are
independent from management. Any business association or other
relationship which could materially interfere with the exercise of
their independent judgement or any other potential conflict are
required to be declared. Any declaration is noted in the minutes
and, in appropriate cases, the board member will withdraw from
the meeting during consideration of the business to which the
declaration relates.

The chairman has ensured that the board members have been
provided with appropriate and timely information and that their
enquiries have been properly met. Board papers are sent out a week
in advance of the relevant meeting to allow the members fully to
prepare for meetings, and minutes of Committee meetings are
circulated to all members. The Board is kept informed of developments
within the business through regular presentation by management.
executive directors are normally present during board meetings
though the chairman held meetings, or parts of meetings, of the
board without the executive directors present. Board meetings are
held at different locations around the business and are preceded
by visits and meetings with BW employees and local stakeholders.
The Board has a schedule of matters specifically reserved to it for
decision and has also defined those delegated to board committees
and the executive directors. Before May 2006 the Board considered
that its exclusively non-executive membership brought a sufficient
strength of independence to the Board and had not nominated any
one non-executive member to be a senior independent board
member. At a meeting in May 2006 the Board decided to appoint
the vice chairman, Dr Campbell Christie, as its senior independent
director. The roles of chairman and chief executive are clearly
separated and the division of responsibilities is defined in the
delegation arrangements. All board members have access to the
advice and services of the secretary to the Board, and may take
independent professional advice at BW’s expense after notifying the
chairman. The Secretary ensures that new board members receive
appropriate induction on appointment. Where necessary, BW provides
the necessary resources for professional development and updating
the knowledge and capabilities of both the board members and
executive directors. The secretary may only be removed with the
approval of the Board.
The Board has a prescribed methodology for determining appropriate
levels of governance and control for subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associated undertakings of BW. The methodology provides a risk
profile that is used as a guide to the appointment of directors and
the appropriate level of management reporting.
Conduct and Performance Evaluation
The Board is committed to achieving high standards of conduct.
The Seven Principles of Public Life recommended by the Committee
on Standards in Public Life have been applied to itself and its people
and these are complemented by a code of conduct and ethics
statement.
The Board has a rigorous methodology to evaluate its performance.
A probing questionnaire on performance of the Board, its Committees
and members is completed annually (and non-attributably) by each
member and a summary of responses prepared by the secretary to
the Board. The summary is discussed by the Board as a whole and
a Board Improvement Plan prepared in the light of its outcomes. The
evaluation methodology also requires the Board to meet without the
chairman present at least once a year to appraise his performance.
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Attendance
Details of attendance at the principal Board and Committee
meetings in 2005/06 were:

Total number of meetings
Tony Hales*
Dr George Greener**
Helen Gordon
Dr Derek Langslow
Dr Campbell Christie
Prof George Fleming
Ian Darling
Susan Achmatowicz
Terry Tricker
Richard Bowker

Board
6
5
1
6
5
6
6
5
6
6
6

Audit Remuneration Nominations
3
2
1
[2]
[1]
1
[1]
[1]
3
3
1
2
1
3
2
2
2
1
2
-

Audit Committee
The Board’s Audit Committee comprises five non-executive board
members. Details of the current members are given on page 54. The
Board is satisfied that at least one member of the Audit Committee
has recent and relevant financial experience. The Committee has
written terms of reference that are available on the BW website,
and meets at least three times a year to review the internal audit
plan, progress against that plan, and summary findings of the internal
and external auditors. In addition to reviewing the financial results
and accounting policies, the Committee monitors the effectiveness
of risk management and internal control systems for the Board. By
invitation the chairman attends the meetings, together with the chief
executive and the head of audit and, when appropriate, executive
directors and the external auditors. The Committee also meets the
external auditors and head of audit each without executive directors
present. The Committee reviews the effectiveness of the external
auditors and of internal audit annually.
The Audit Committee oversees the nature and amount of non-audit
work undertaken by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP each year to
ensure that the external auditors’ independence is safeguarded.
All non-audit services above £12,000 to be performed by the external
auditors are required to be approved by the Audit Committee. The
Board’s policy is for a presumption that non-audit work will be put
out to competitive tender. Details of the external auditors’ fees are
given in Note 3 on page 78.
The external auditors are appointed by the Secretary of State
(in consultation with Scottish Ministers) as required by statute.
Nominations Committee
The Board has a Nominations Committee and terms of reference
are available on the BW website. It comprises six non-executive
board members, details of which are given on page 54. It provides
support and advice to the board chairman when he is consulted
by ministers on the appointment of persons to the Board and
reviews the Board composition (its mix of skills, experiences
and characteristics) from time to time.

FTC
6
[6]
6
6

* Tony Hales was appointed chairman from 10 July
2005. He is not a member of the Audit Committee,
nor of the Remuneration Committee but attends
their meetings by invitation. He became a member
of the Fair Trading Committee on 23 March 2006.
** Dr George Greener retired as chairman on 9 July
2005. He was not a member of the Audit
Committee, nor of the Remuneration Committee
but attended their meetings by invitation.
FTC - Fair Trading Committee
[ ] - attended by invitation

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee, comprising five non-executive board
members (details of whom are given on page 54), has as its main
task consideration annually of the performance of the executive
directors and determination of their remuneration levels. The chairman
of the Board attends by invitation but is not a member of the
Committee. Terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee
are also available on the BW website. Further details of the work
of the Committee are given in the Director’s Remuneration Report
on pages 66 to 69.
Fair Trading Committee
During 2004 the Board established the Fair Trading Group, a subgroup of the Board that usually reported to the Audit Committee
but had power to report direct to the Board whenever it considered
it necessary or appropriate. In March 2006 the Board agreed to
reconstitute it as a committee of the Board and to increase its
membership from two to at least three non-executive board members
(details of whom are given on page 54). Its main task is an informed
scrutiny and oversight of compliance by BW and its subsidiaries of
their fair trading commitments and obligations. Terms of reference
for the Fair Trading Committee are available on the BW website.
Since its establishment the Fair Trading Group/Committee has
focused much of its attention on the competition and fair trading
implications of the operation, by the subsidiary British Waterways
Marinas Limited (BWML), of inland marinas in competition with
other marina operators. It has monitored the risk of unfair
competitive advantage being gained by BWML through its
ownership by BW, by checking that BW has complied with the
‘Marinas Protocol’ which sets out the principles by which the
commercial relationships between BW and both BWML and other
marina operators shall be conducted. In addition, it considered the
fair trading aspects of the operation, by BW, of its on-line moorings
business that also is competing with private mooring operators.
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Other work of the Fair Trading Committee concerned BW fair trading
practice in connection with a wider range of its commercial activities
or those of its subsidiaries as well as continuing oversight of its
compliance with competition law. It has set out topics for the Internal
Audit unit to cover and report.
Pensions Trustees
A subsidiary, British Waterways Pension Trustees Limited, the
trustee of the Pension Fund, is responsible for its own governance.
The trustee directors, who meet twice yearly, are four members of
the Board, the chief executive, three employee representatives and
a representative elected by current pensioners. Fund management
is overseen by an Investment Sub-Committee and is delegated to
external professional investment managers.
Responsibility for the management and administration of the Fund
is vested in a Committee of Management. Ongoing day to day
supervision of the administration of the Fund is carried out by the
pensions manager, under an administration agreement between
British Waterways Pension Trustees Limited and BW. During the
year the pension fund administration was outsourced to Capita
Hartshead, a contract managed in-house by the pensions manager.
Relations with Shareholders
Unlike a listed company, BW does not have shareholders so that
Section D of the Combined Code does not apply. The Board is
responsible to the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and
Rural Affairs and to Scottish Ministers and maintains an ongoing
dialogue at all levels within both governments. This includes regular
contact by the chairman, chief executive and finance director.
The chairman’s meetings include reference to the board members’
performance evaluation, and whether those reappointed would
continue to be effective by adequate commitment to the role and time.
The Board holds an Annual Meeting at which it communicates the
key business results and plan for the future to the main user groups,
its partners and individual users.
BW has established an advisory group, the British Waterways
Scotland Group (BWSG) to support the development of the business
in Scotland within the new devolved political environment. The BWSG
is a non-statutory group working to support BW’s Board and its
executive directors. It has a counselling, consultative and influencing
function externally and internally, rather than a decision-making role
and has an open remit to bring to the Board and/or the executive
directors for consideration any issue of concern to a majority of the
members. Further information on the BWSG, including details of the
external appointments, is given in the Review of Scotland on pages
48 to 53.
In England and Wales, under its Openness and Accountability
initiative, BW has facilitated the creation of the British Waterways
Advisory Forum (BWAF). This is a body, independent of BW, whose
membership comprises organisations of national scope with an
interest in the waterways managed by BW. Through meetings
between BWAF and BW such stakeholder organisations will
have direct access to the chairman, board members and senior
management to raise significant issues of concern or common

interest. These new arrangements incorporate and enlarge upon
the former arrangements for national user group meetings.
As part of the Openness and Accountability initiative, The Ombudsman
scheme was updated and modernised during 2005. A Waterways
Ombudsman Committee under the chairman (Professor Jeffrey
Jowell QC, Professor of Public Law at University College London),
was formed to take on oversight of the scheme, including the
appointment of the new ombudsman, Hilary Bainbridge, on the
retirement of Stephen Edell, and ensuring the scheme is properly
resourced. The Committee comprises a majority of persons who are
not connected with BW and includes members elected by the BWAF.
Under the Waterways Ombudsman Scheme the ombudsman may
consider complaints against BW by users and others that have not
been resolved under BW’s internal complaints procedure. It is a nonstatutory scheme funded by BW. More information on the work of
the ombudsman since the last Annual Report is given on page 40.
Internal Control
The Board has maintained the procedures necessary to comply with
the requirements of the Combined Code relating to internal control.
It has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal controls, including financial and operational, and risk
management systems.
The board members acknowledge their ultimate responsibility for
BW’s system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness.
These internal controls are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
Risk Identification and Management
There is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing
the significant risks faced by BW. The Board regularly reviews this
process.
Risks are identified in each business unit plan and are reviewed by
the executive directors and the Board. The key risks are subject
to regular review by the executive directors to identify new and
changing risks. The results are incorporated into the chief executive’s
operating report to the Board. The Board also considers specific
reports on key risks, including the statutory arrears. Each director
and general manager annually makes a representation of assurance
outlining how risk management and the control environment has
provided reasonable assurance of effective and efficient operations
throughout the period. The chief executive considers this with each
director and general manager during the annual corporate
governance review and a statement is given to the Audit Committee
summarising the significant risks, controls and required action points.
This is supplemented by ongoing risk assessments at each business
unit jointly by management and internal audit.
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Control environment
There is a clear organisation structure with delegated responsibilities
and authorities. The Board is committed to achieving high standards
from its people. A code of conduct and ethics statement, which
includes a whistleblowing procedure, is supported by high safety,
customer care and recruitment standards, an appraisal process and
a policy of unlocking the potential of staff.
Information and communication
The executive directors submit a rolling three-year Business Plan,
detailed annual budgets and key performance indicators on its
strategic priorities to the Board for approval. The plan describes
the implementation of the Board’s long-term strategic vision and
is supported by individual business unit plans that apply consistent
economic and financial assumptions. Monthly operational reports
and financial summaries together with regular forecasts are produced
for each business unit and reviewed by the executive. Progress
against the key performance indicators is supplied on a quarterly
basis to the executive for review. Detailed reports and projections
are presented to the Board.
Monitoring
During the year the Audit Committee:
• reviews the internal and external audit plans
• considers reports from management, internal and external
audit on the system of risk management, internal control
and any significant control weaknesses
• discusses with management the actions and progress
in dealing with identified problem areas
The Chairman of the Audit Committee reports the outcome
of the Audit Committee meetings and any significant internal
control issues to the Board. The Board receives the minutes
of all Audit Committee meetings.
Board Members’ Responsibilities in respect
of the Group Accounts
The Board is required to prepare group accounts for each financial
year which comply with the Accounts Direction issued by the
Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs in
respect of BW (see pages 98 and 99).
In preparing those accounts, the Board is required to:
• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent
• state whether applicable accounting standards have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the accounts
• prepare the group accounts on a going concern basis unless
it is inappropriate to presume that the organisation will continue
in business

The Board confirms that the group accounts comply with the
requirements below left.
In the case of each board member or director:
• so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the company’s auditors are unaware; and
• all the steps that ought to have taken as a board member or
director have been taken in order to make himself or herself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that
the Board’s auditors are aware of that information.
The Board is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting
records are kept and that these disclose with reasonable accuracy,
at any time, the financial position of BW and enable them to ensure
that the accounts comply with the Direction.
The Board is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of BW
and hence for taking reasonable steps to prevent and detect fraud
and other irregularities.
Compliance with the Combined Code
The Board considers it has complied throughout the financial year
and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts
with the Combined Code, except for those matters disclosed in this
statement or those that cannot be applied to BW because of its
status as a statutory public corporation rather than a quoted public
limited company.
BW is additionally subject to public sector controls, government
monitoring and approval, Parliamentary scrutiny and external reviews.
Going Concern
The funding arrangements of BW differ from those of a public
limited company. BW receives payment from government to assist
it in meeting its statutory obligations, as referred to in the Statutory
and Financial Framework on page 60. Details are being agreed with
government so that there will be a longer term Funding Framework
from 1 April 2007 over a term of years which will set out the funding
arrangements from government for specified service standards. It is
anticipated that funding will continue at levels sufficient to enable
BW to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
By order of the Board

Nigel I Johnson
Legal director and secretary to the Board
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DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION
REPORT
The BW Board
The terms of board members’ appointments are determined by the
Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs or (in the
case of two board members) Scottish Ministers. They are for a fixed
term with the option for this to be extended by a further term. The
contracts are terminable upon notice not exceeding six months. The
Secretary of State, or Scottish Ministers as appropriate, determines
board members’ emoluments.
Dr George Greener had private medical insurance as a benefit-inkind during his term of office. No other board member receives
a benefit-in-kind.
Dr Greener’s pension entitlement was calculated by analogy to the
British Waterways (1990) Pension Fund and on his retirement from
office the value of the pension transferred into the Fund.
Tony Hales, BW’s current chairman, does not have any pension
entitlement.
There were no contracts or transactions in which the board
members had a disclosable interest.
Details of board members’ fees paid in 2005/06 are shown in the
table on page 68. Following a review by the Secretary of State and
Scottish Ministers of the level of fees payable to board members,
an increase of 9.6% to board members’ annual fees will be applied,
backdated to July 2005, though these increased fees have not
yet been paid. Additional fees for service on a Board Committee
(£1,000 p.a.) and for chairmanship of a Committee (a further
£1,500 p.a.) will also be paid, backdated to July 2005.
Reporting to the Board, but not board members, are executive
directors who have responsibility for management and for the
development of business strategy and policies, subject to approval
and general oversight by the Board.
The Remuneration Committee
The Board has established a Remuneration Committee responsible
for determining and reviewing the terms of employment and
remuneration for executive directors. The remuneration principles
established for this senior group of employees provides the
framework for remuneration policy within the business.
The Committee comprises from three to five board members.
The current Committee members are:
Terry Tricker, chairman
Dr Campbell Christie
Ian Darling
The chairman, chief executive and customer operations director
attend the Committee by invitation to present recommendations and
provide technical support but have no input into decisions affecting
their own remuneration.
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In determining appropriate remuneration levels, the Committee
commissions specialist independent advice, surveys conducted
by external consulting firms and remuneration information on
comparable organisations. All executive director roles are fully
evaluated by Towers Perrin Remuneration Consultants (TPRC) with
responsibility levels assessed and compared with organisations of
similar size in the public and private sectors. TPRC recommend that
the closest match of responsibility, liability and risk are to be found
in the private sector.
The Committee operate to a Remuneration Policy designed to
specifically reflect BW’s business requirements taking account of
the specialist independent advice received. The executive directors
have agreed with the recommendation to publicly disclose their
remuneration. Full details are included in the table on page 68.
Remuneration Policy
The Remuneration Committee’s overriding objective is to ensure that
BW’s remuneration policy and remuneration packages are sufficient,
taking account of BW’s financial position and the wider remuneration
context in the business, to attract, retain and motivate a high quality
team of executive directors to deliver the business strategy.
Based on the information and recommendations provided by TPRC
the Committee have agreed that BW should match base salaries
to market median levels with a proportion of variable pay in the form
of annual bonus. TPRC have recommended that, unlike the private
sector, a Long Term Incentive Plan has not been applicable so far
in BW’s development. The Committee has recognised that as the
business strategy develops, it may be appropriate to introduce
a Long Term Incentive Plan at a future stage.
A summary of each element of the remuneration package is set
out on pages 68 and 69.
1. Basic Salary
Basic salaries are normally reviewed annually on 1 July and
increases are determined by reference to comparator information
taking into account each director’s contribution during the year.
The initial evaluation by TPRC during 2002 indicated that executive
director salaries were significantly below the appropriate median
market levels and this information is updated annually. The
Remuneration Committee recommended that salaries should be
increased towards the market levels in a staged way and this was
continued in 2005/06. Details of basic salary levels for 2005/06
for each executive director are shown in the table on page 68.

2. Annual Bonus
A maximum total annual bonus of 30% (40% for the chief executive)
of basic salary may be awarded subject to the achievement of
Corporate performance targets measured by Economic Value
Created (EVC) and personal performance measured against the
achievement of individual targets. Fundamental measures of safety
and customer satisfaction are in place and have to be satisfactorily
achieved before consideration is given to any bonus payment.
The Remuneration Committee requires internal audit and external
verification of these non-financial measures. Even where threshold
measures are met, the Remuneration Committee reserves total
discretion to award or withhold bonus payments taking account
of any mitigating factors.
This level of potential total annual bonus was recommended by the
Remuneration Committee to reflect in part the absence of LongTerm Incentive Plan arrangements that normally exist in the private
sector. Bonus payments are normally made on 1 July each year.
Total bonus payments for each executive director are shown in the
table on page 68 and reflect performance in the 2004/05 financial
year. Bonus payments for 2005/06 will be paid on 1 July 2006
and reported in the 2006/07 accounts.
2.1 Corporate Performance Element
Of the total bonus potential up to 17.5% (20% for the chief
executive) of basic salary may be awarded for the achievement
of EVC targets. In broad terms the achievement of budgeted EVC
would indicate that half Corporate performance bonus would be
appropriate with full bonus applicable only where EVC exceeds
budget by a significant proportion. Failure to significantly achieve
budget EVC levels would normally indicate that no corporate bonus
is payable.
The bonus payments shown on page 68 relate to the 2004/05
year. Whilst EVC targets were exceeded, the Remuneration
Committee decided to exercise its available discretion described
under 2 left, and chose to reduce the corporate bonus from that
which could have been awarded, due to a less than acceptable
improvement in safety and customer satisfaction performance.
2.2 Personal Performance Element
Of the total bonus potential, up to 12.5% (20% for the chief
executive) of basic salary may be awarded for the achievement
of a range of stretching targets set to encourage each director to
achieve performance levels over and above the normal expectations
of their role. Targets are directly linked to the achievement of key
strategic business activities.

3. Benefits
The executive directors are entitled to a company car (or an
allowance in lieu of a company car), health insurance and critical
illness insurance. Details of the levels of taxable benefit are shown
in the table on page 68.
4. Pensions
All executive directors with over two years service participate in the
BW (1990) Pension Fund which provides a pension on a defined
benefit basis and based on basic salary. BW prefers directors to
retire at age 60 rather than 65 as is normal in BW and where they
comply with this preference they are compensated by the purchase
on their behalf by BW of five years pension service. Following
changes to the pension fund and the introduction of a minimum
retirement age of 63, the Committee approved part compensation for
executive directors complying with the preference to retire at age
60 by making additional contributions to the fund so as to treat the
minimum pension age as 611/2. Following the recent changes
to pensions taxation the rules of the pension fund were amended
in April 2006 and in particular it was decided not to keep the limit
on earnings that could count towards pension benefits that had
previously applied to those joining the pension fund after May 1989.
Details of the accrued pension levels are shown in the table on
page 69 and these take into account the changes to the pension
fund rules in April 2006. The Committee has considered the potential
impact of the taxation changes, electing to monitor the situation
for any detrimental effect on recruitment and retention.
5. Notice Period
Executive directors are entitled to 12 months notice of termination
of contract by BW. Directors are required to give BW six months notice.
6. External Appointments for Executive Directors
The Board recognises that executive directors may be invited to
become non-executive directors of other companies unconnected
with BW’s activities and that such appointments can broaden their
knowledge and experience to the benefit of BW. On the basis that
it does not impact upon their executive duties directors are generally
allowed to accept one such appointment and retain any resulting
fee. In addition executive directors may also serve as non-executive
directors of joint venture companies. In such circumstances fees
are not payable to executive directors as activities of this nature are
part of the normal responsibilities of the directors. The disclosable
external interests of executive directors are set out in Note 20 to
the accounts on page 91.

ACCOUNTS: DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT 67

Summary of Directors’ Remuneration 2005/06
The information provided below in respect of the BW Board
complies with the provisions of Schedule 7A of the Companies Act
1985, as required by the Accounts Direction of the Secretary of
State. In addition, and with their agreement, BW has chosen to
include information on the remuneration of the executive directors.

BW Board

Date of expiry of
current term

Contracted time
committed
during the year
Days

Fees
£

Taxable
Benefits
£

2005/06
Total
£

2004/05
Total
£

9/7/08

76

33,840

-

33,840

-

Tony Hales, Chairman
Campbell Christie, Vice Chairman

30/6/07

42

14,440

-

14,440

13,513

Susan Achmatowicz

9/10/07

42

10,948

-

10,948

10,894

Richard Bowker (from 1/9/04)

31/8/07

42

10,948

-

10,948

6,386

3/9/06

42

10,948

-

10,948

10,894

Ian Darling
George Fleming
Helen Gordon

9/10/07

42

10,948

-

10,948

10,894

3/9/06

42

10,948

-

10,948

10,894

3/9/06

42

10,948

-

10,948

10,894

9/10/07

42

10,948

-

10,948

10,894

Dr George Greener, Chairman (to 9/7/05)

-

42

19,135

245

19,380

70,393

Sir Peter Soulsby, Vice Chairman (to 24/6/04)

-

-

-

-

-

3,325

Janet Lewis-Jones (to 9/10/04)

-

-

-

-

-

5,681

Adeeba Malik (to 9/10/04)

-

-

-

-

-

5,681

144,051

245

144,296

170,343

Derek Langslow
Terry Tricker

Salary
£

Bonus
£

Taxable 2005/06
benefits
Total
£
£

Salary
£

Bonus
£

Taxable 2004/05
benefits
Total
£
£

Executive Directors
Robin Evans, Chief Executive
Mark Bensted
Derek Cochrane
Steve Dunlop (from 1/2/06)

187,155

41,580

12,633

241,368

171,875

42,900

11,887

226,662

99,120

18, 260

13,494

130,874

86,793

17,000

13,318

117,111

105,126

17,750

9,091

131,967

98,460

19,800

8,879

127,139

17,500

-

386

17,886

-

-

-

-

James Froomberg

142,528

28,324

13,729

184,581

135,417

26,000

13,534

174,951

Nigel Johnson

130,613

22,365

10,619

163,597

125,000

26,400

11,264

162,664

John Lancaster

103,460

16,750

9,618

129,828

98,460

19,800

9,208

127,468

Vincent Moran

115,814

22,877

8,121

146,812

109,375

25,725

9,214

144,314

88,506

-

654

89,160

-

-

-

-

Simon Salem

112,417

19,594

11,986

143,997

102,917

19,000

11,530

133,447

Stewart Sim (to 3/2/06)

108,023

22,099

8,244

138,366

123,917

26,620

9,666

160,203

17,788

28,428

426

46,642

135,126

27,500

7,369

169,995

8,682

136,830

88,460

16,000

8,680

113,140

Philip Ridal (from 12/9/05)

Mark Smith (to 4/5/05)
Jim Stirling

110,373

17,775

1,338,423

255,802
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107,683 1,701,908 1,275,800 266,745

114,549 1,657,094

Accrued Pension
Accrued
Accrued
pension at
lump sum at
31 March 2006 31 March 2006
£pa
£

Increase
in accrued
pension
during the
year
£

Increase
in accrued
lump sum
during the
year
£pa

Transfer value of
accrued benefits
31 March
31 March
2006
2005
£
£

Increase in transfer
value over the
year net of
directors’
contributions
£

BW Board Member
6,739

-

311

-

147,444

120,500

26,944

Robin Evans

49,116

-

17,018

-

612,595

350,783

249,992

Mark Bensted

44,293

27,937

7,676

3,563

484,955

344,278

135,240

Derek Cochrane

53,725

38,308

6,087

2,434

863,720

662,015

195,964

James Froomberg

13,602

-

6,802

-

153,913

67,650

64,913

Nigel Johnson

16,396

-

3,425

-

197,218

138,433

51,562

Dr George Greener
Executive Directors

John Lancaster

23,416

-

5,749

-

473,695

306,722

161,327

Vincent Moran

20,214

-

3,531

-

230,131

165,152

58,569

Simon Salem

44,703

8,184

5,904

692

493,126

368,165

118,797

Stewart Sim

76,603

41,763

4,902

1,491

1,677,184

1,323,255

247,995

Mark Smith

11,542

-

300

-

112,996

96,711

15,586

Jim Stirling

25,378

-

7,239

-

351,338

218,602

126,686

The pension benefit is the increase in transfer value after indexation in accrued pension during the year, less the executive directors’ own
contributions. The accrued annual pension is the amount, on attaining normal pension age, to which the director would be entitled if he had
left BW at the year end or is entitled, having left employment during the year.
Dr Greener left the Board on 9 July 2005. The figures shown as at 31 March 2006 represent his accrued benefits as at 9 July but assume
market conditions as at 31 March 2006. The actual benefits paid were a pension, payable for life, of £5,491 per annum, plus a lump sum
of £15,845. BW paid £112,871 to the British Waterways Pension Fund in consideration of these benefits.
The transfer values, calculated by reference to GN11 published by the Institute of Actuaries, are of the accrued benefits under the scheme
at the dates stated not including any additional voluntary contributions.

Signed on behalf of the Board
N Johnson
Legal director and secretary to the Board
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INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE SECRETARY
OF STATE FOR
ENVIRONMENT,
FOOD AND
RURAL AFFAIRS
We have audited the group and parent company financial
statements (the ‘financial statements’) of The British Waterways
Board for the year ended 31 March 2006 which comprise the
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, the Group and Entity Balance
Sheets, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the Consolidated
Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses and the related
notes 1 to 24. These financial statements have been prepared under
the accounting policies set out therein.
Respective responsibilities of Board Members and auditors
The board members’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report
and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the Statement of
Board Members’ Responsibilities.
Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance
with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). This report, including the
opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Secretary of State
for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs and British Waterways
board members as a body in accordance with the provisions of the
Transport Act 1962 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving
this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose
or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose
hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior
consent in writing.
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We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements
give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in accordance
with the provisions of the Transport Act 1962 and any directions
issued by the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural
Affairs. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the board members’
Report is not consistent with the financial statements, if The British
Waterways Board has not kept proper accounting records, if we
have not received all the information and explanations we require
for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding board
members’ remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.
We read other information contained in the Annual Report,
and consider whether it is consistent with the audited financial
statements. This other information comprises only the Chairman’s
Statement, Chief Executive’s Statement, Business Review, Finance
Review, Review of Scotland, Board Members’ Report and the
Directors’ Remuneration Report. We consider the implications
for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements
or material inconsistencies with the financial statements.
Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices
Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgments made by the board members in the preparation of the
financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Group’s and The British Waterways Board’s
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.
We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error.
In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion:
• the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
of the state of the Group’s and The British Waterways Board’s
affairs as at 31 March 2006 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended;
• the financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the directions of the Secretary of State
for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs; and
• in all material respects, the expenditure and income have been
applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial
transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London
June 2006
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
for the year to 31 March 2006
Total
Note

Group turnover including joint ventures

2005/06
£m

2004/05
£m
restated

144.4

110.1

Less: joint ventures

(30.0)

Turnover

114.4

Government grant

2

Total revenue
Total expenditure

3

Operating profit/(loss)

3

Share of operating profits and losses of associates and joint ventures
Profit on sale of investment properties

(4.4)
105.7

76.1

73.4

190.5

179.1

(190.1)

(186.5)

0.4

(7.4)

7.7

1.1

11.5

14.8

Profit on sale of other fixed asset investment

3.5

-

Profit for the financial year before interest

23. 1

8.5

Interest receivable
Interest payable
Other finance expense

5
22

Profit for the financial year after taxation

2.9
(5.9)

(0.7)

(0.5)

20.3

5.0

6

(6.8)

(2.7)

15

13.5

2.3

(10.2)

(3.3)

3.3

(1.0)

Profit for the financial year before taxation
Taxation charge

3.2
(5.3)

Transfer to realised capital reserve
Profit/(loss) transferred to reserves

Statement of Consolidated Total Recognised Gains and Losses
Note

Profit for the financial year after taxation

2005/06
£m

2004/05
£m
restated

13.5

2.3

Net decrease in revaluation reserve resulting from transfers
between investment and operational properties

15

(1.5)

Unrealised surplus on revaluation of investment properties

15

43.8

56.7

6

(4.2)

(6.8)

22

14.2

(13.7)

Corporation tax charge on realised property revaluation gains
Gain/(loss) on pension liability

-

Current tax associated with gain/(loss) on pension liability
Deferred tax associated with gain/(loss) on pension liability

22

Total recognised gains and losses relating to the year
Prior year adjustment arising from adoption of FRS17

23

Total gains recognised since last Annual Report

-

1.0

(4.3)

3.2

61.5

42.7

(51.4)
10.1

Note of Consolidated Historical Cost Profits and Losses
Note

Profit for the financial year after taxation
Realisation of property revaluation gains of previous years
Corporation tax charge on realised property revaluation gains
Historical cost profit for the financial year
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15
6

2005/06
£m

2004/05
£m
restated

13.5

2.3

27.6

25.5

(4.2)

(6.8)

36.9

21.0

Balance Sheets as at 31 March 2006

Group

BW

Note

2006
£m

3.1

3.1

-

-

7

545.5

516.6

541.6

514.3

-

-

8.7

12.1

66.2

31.6

(37.2)

(20.6)

29.0

11.0

37.2

18.3

2005
£m
restated

2006
£m

2005
£m
restated

Fixed assets
Intangible assets - Goodwill
Tangible assets
Investments
Subsidiaries
Joint ventures:
Share of gross assets
Share of gross liabilities
Other investments
Total investments

8

-

0.1

-

0.1

29.0

11.1

45.9

30.5

577.6

530.8

587.5

544.8

Current assets
Stocks

9

1.9

2.1

0.9

0.8

Debtors

10

47.4

49.3

46.0

48.2

Cash at bank and in hand

11

37.4

24.9

34.2

22.6

86.7

76.3

81.1

71.6

(72.3)

(72.6)

(75.7)

(79.2)

Less:
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

12a

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year 12b

Provisions for liabilities and charges

13

Deferred capital grant

14

Net assets excluding pension liabilities
Pension liability (net of deferred tax)

14.4

3.7

5.4

592.0

534.5

592.9

537.2

(51.6)

(45.7)

(51.6)

(45.7)

(10.1)

(8.5)

(10.1)

(9.0)

(10.0)
520.3

22

Net assets including pension liabilities

(37.3)

(11.6)
468.7
(47.2)

(7.6)

(10.0)

(11.6)

521.2

470.9

(37.3)

(47.2)

483.0

421.5

483.9

423.7

513.1

461.2

515.0

461.1

Financed by
Reserves

15

Profit and loss account

15

(40.6)

(53.8)

(41.6)

472.5

407.4

473.4

409.6

10.5

14.1

10.5

14.1

483.0

421.5

483.9

423.7

(51.5)

Debt
Due to National Loans Fund

T Hales
Chairman
20 June 2006

17

R Evans
Chief Executive
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement year to 31 March 2006
Cash flow statement
Note

2005/06
£m

Net cash outflow from operating activities

2004/05
£m

£m

£m

(0.4)

(8.0)

Returns from servicing of finance
3.8

Interest received

3.4

(2.1)

Interest paid
Net cash inflow from servicing of finance
Taxation

(1.6)
1.7

1.8

(7.6)

(3.1)

Capital expenditure and financial investment
Payments to acquire fixed assets

(21.4)

(32.8)

Receipts from sale of fixed assets

48.8

46.1

3.7

Receipts from sale of other fixed asset investment
Net cash inflow from capital expenditure and financial investment

31.1

13.3

Acquisitions
Investments in joint ventures

(12.3)

(0.2)

Net cash inflow before financing

12.5

3.8

Financing
Capital contribution from Defra
Repayment of loans to National Loans Fund

17

3.6

0.6

(3.6)

(0.6)

Net cash inflow from financing
Increase in cash in the period

11

Reconciliation of operating profit/(loss) to net cash inflow from operating activities
Note
£m

-

-

12.5

3.8

2005/06
£m

2004/05
£m
restated

restated

0.4

Operating profit/(loss)

£m
(7.4)

Items not involving the flow of cash:
4.8

Depreciation
Difference between pension charge and cash contributions
Loss on sale of operational fixed assets
Write down in value of fixed assets
Release of deferred capital grant

4.9

(0.7)

2.2

0.5

0.7

1.2

0.1

(1.6)

(1.7)
4.2

6.2

Movements in working capital
Decrease/(increase) in stocks

0.2

(1.1)

(Increase)/decrease in debtors

(3.6)

3.6

Decrease in creditors

(2.1)

(7. 8)
(5.5)

Decrease in provisions
Net outflow from operating activities

(5.3)

0.5

(1.5)

(0.4)

(8.0)

Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds
Note
£m
12.5

Increase in cash in the period

3.6

Repayment of loans to National Loans Fund
Net funds at 1 April
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11

2004/05
£m
3.8

£m

0.6
16.1

Change in net debt from cash flows during period
Net funds at 31 March

2005/06
£m

4.4

10.8

6.4

26.9

10.8

NOTES RELATING
TO THE ACCOUNTS
1. Accounting policies
A summary of the principal accounting policies, all of which have
been applied consistently throughout the year and the preceding
year, is set out below.
Basis of Accounting
Under Section 24(1) (b) of the Transport Act 1962, BW is required
to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts in such form and
containing such particulars as the Secretary of State for Environment,
Food and Rural Affairs may, with the approval of H.M. Treasury, from
time to time direct. A copy of the Accounts Direction, at present in
force, is set out on pages 98 to 99.
Accounting convention
The accounts are prepared in accordance with the historical cost
convention modified by the revaluation of investment properties and
generally accepted accounting principles in the United Kingdom,
with the following exception, required by the Accounts Direction:
In the balance sheet, National Loans Fund loans from the Secretary
of State are grouped with capital and reserves, rather than as
creditors falling due after more than one year.
Change in accounting policy
British Waterways has adopted FRS17, ‘Retirement benefits’ in
these financial statements. The adoption of this standard represents
a change in accounting policy and the comparative figures have
been restated accordingly (see note 23).
Consolidation
The BW Group comprises the British Waterways Board (BW) and
its subsidiaries that are incorporated to act solely on behalf of,
and for the benefit of, BW. The acquisition method of accounting
has been adopted. Under this method, the results of subsidiaries
acquired in the year are included in the consolidated profit and loss
account from the date of acquisition.
A joint venture is an entity in which BW has a long-term interest
and is jointly controlled by BW and one or more other venturers
under a contractual arrangement. The accounts include the relevant
percentage of all joint ventures’ turnover and operating profit/loss
on the face of the profit and loss account and the share of gross
assets and gross liabilities on the face of the balance sheet.
The notes to the accounts disclose the names of joint ventures,
the nature of the business and details of the shares held by BW.
An associate is an entity (other than a subsidiary or joint venture)
in which BW has a participating interest and over whose operating
and financial policies BW exercises a significant influence. The
accounts include the relevant percentage of all associates’
operating profit/loss on the face of the profit and loss account,
as well as the relevant percentage of any item below the operating
profit line. The interest in the associates’ net assets is shown on
the face of the balance sheet.

Intangible fixed assets
Goodwill relating to joint ventures and associated undertakings is
included in the carrying value of the investment. An impairment
review of goodwill is carried out annually by Directors, and any
amortisation charged to the profit and loss account.
Tangible fixed assets
(a) Operational Assets
Waterways, reservoirs and towing paths were written off
in the capital reconstruction on 1 January 1969 resulting
from the Transport Act 1968.
Land, buildings, and structures capitalised are:
(i) Purchases of land and the construction and major
improvement of buildings.
(ii) Additional assets and improvements to existing assets of BW,
provided the financial return meets the commercial viability
criteria laid down by BW.
All other expenditure on improvements, repairs and renewals
is charged to the profit and loss account as it arises.
(b) Craft, plant and equipment
All expenditure on additions, improvements and replacements
is capitalised.
(c) Gross book value
The gross book value of fixed assets other than investment
properties is shown at the valuation at 1 January 1969 or at
subsequent cost.
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation, net of
depreciation and any provision for permanent diminution in value.
Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets, other than
investment properties and freehold land, at rates calculated to write
off the cost or valuation, less estimated residual value (if any),
of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life,
as follows:
Freehold buildings

40 years

Leasehold land and buildings

Over the term of the lease

Plant, machinery and structures Between 5 and 25 years
Vehicles

5 years

Any differences between physical assets and asset registers
identified as a result of the organisation's continuous programme
of asset verification are treated as adjustments in the fixed asset
statements, in the year in which identified.
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1. Accounting policies (continued)

Investment properties
Investment properties are revalued annually. Surpluses or deficits on
individual properties are transferred to the investment revaluation
reserve, unless a deficit below historical cost (or its reversal) is
expected to be permanent, in which case it is charged (or credited)
to the profit and loss account. Depreciation is not provided in
respect of freehold investment properties or of leasehold investment
properties where the unexpired term of the lease is more than 20
years. The board members consider that this departure from the
statutory accounting rules is necessary to provide a true and fair view
and to comply with Statement of Standard Accounting Practice No. 19.
Disposal of investment properties
BW accounts for disposals of investment properties upon completion
of sale. The proceeds in respect of properties sold are used for the
funding of capital expenditure of a commercial nature, or such other
expenditure as agreed by the Secretary of State for Environment,
Food and Rural Affairs.
Deferred consideration
Where BW enters into a significant sale of assets or rights with
deferred consideration terms, the net present value of the amounts
receivable, discounted at the clearing bank base rate ruling at the
date of the transaction, is recognised in the profit and loss account.
Imputed interest is recognised in the profit and loss account on a
receivable basis.
Deferred capital grant
A proportion of the grant-in-aid received from government is
allocated by BW for the purchase of plant, equipment and vehicles
used for waterway operation and maintenance. The grant concerned
is treated as deferred capital grant and released to the profit and
loss account over the expected useful lives of the assets concerned.
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Leased fixed assets
All current leases are operating leases. Rentals under operating
leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
even if the payments are not made on such a basis.
Acquisitions and goodwill
Acquisitions are accounted for under the acquisition method.
Goodwill arising on acquisitions in the year ended 31 March 1998
and earlier periods was written off to reserves in accordance with
the accounting standard then in force. Negative goodwill was shown
as an unrealised capital reserve and is credited to realised capital
reserves in the periods expected to benefit. As permitted by the
current accounting standard the goodwill previously written off to
reserves has not been reinstated in the balance sheet. On disposal
or closure of a previously acquired business, the attributable amount
of goodwill previously written off to reserves is included in determining
the profit or loss on disposal.
Goodwill relating to joint ventures and associated undertakings
is included in the carrying value of the investment.
Stocks
Stocks are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value.
Turnover
Turnover represents amounts receivable for goods and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of trade discounts and
VAT. Contributions to non-statutory works are recognised on an
accruals basis after all conditions for their receipt have been met.

Taxation
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that
have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date where
transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax
in the future or a right to pay less tax in the future have occurred
at the balance sheet date. Timing differences are differences
between BW’s taxable profits and its results as stated in the financial
statements that arise from the inclusion of gains and losses in tax
assessments in periods different from those in which they are
recognised in the financial statements.
A net deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable and therefore
recognised only when, on the basis of all available evidence, it can
be regarded as more likely than not that there will be suitable
taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying
timing differences can be deducted.
Deferred tax is not recognised when fixed assets are revalued
unless by the balance sheet date there is a binding agreement to
sell the revalued assets and the gain or loss expected to arise on
sale has been recognised in the financial statements. Neither is
deferred tax recognised when fixed assets are sold and it is more
likely than not that the taxable gain will be rolled over, being charged
to tax only if and when the replacement assets are sold.
Deferred tax is measured at the average tax rates that are expected
to apply in the periods in which the timing differences are expected
to reverse, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
is measured on a non-discounted basis.

Pensions
BW operates a single funded defined benefit scheme for all staff.
In accordance with FRS17, the service cost of pension provision
relating to the period, together with the cost of any benefits relating
to past service, is charged to the profit and loss account. A charge
equal to the increase in the present value of the scheme liabilities
(because the benefits are closer to settlement) and a credit
equivalent to the group’s long-term expected return on assets
(based on the market value of the scheme assets at the start of
the period) are included in the profit and loss account under ‘other
finance income.’ The difference between the market value of the
assets of the scheme and the present value of accrued pension
liabilities is shown as an asset or liability on the balance sheet net
of deferred tax. Any difference between the expected return on
assets and that actually achieved is recognised in the statement
of total recognised gains and losses along with differences which
arise from experience or assumption changes.
In previous years BW had adopted the transitional arrangements for
pension cost disclosure detailed in FRS17 and included the new
disclosures within the notes to the accounts.
Further information on pension arrangements is set out in Note 22
to the accounts.
Finance costs
Finance costs of debt are recognised in the profit and loss account
over the term of such loans at a constant rate on the carrying amount.
Deferred income
BW has received cash dowries to take on the asset maintenance
and operational obligations of other public sector organisations. Each
dowry is accounted for as deferred income and released to the
profit and loss account in line with the net operating expenditure.
Segmentation disclosure
For the purpose of Statement of Standard Accounting Practice No.
25, BW is, in the opinion of its board members, engaged in one
class of business.
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2. Grants receivable from Central Government
2005/06
£m

2004/05
£m

Grant received in year

62.6

59.1

Accrued grant at 1 April

(4.8 )

(4.8)

4.8

4.8

62.6

59.1

-

-

Grant receivable from Defra

Accrued grant at 31 March
Allocated to deferred capital grant

1.5

1.6

64.1

60.7

Grant received in year

12.0

13.0

Accrued grant at 1 April

(2.0 )

(2.4)

Deferred capital grant released to profit and loss account

Grant receivable from the Scottish Executive

Accrued grant at 31 March
Deferred capital grant released to profit and loss account

Total revenue grant accrued during the year

2.0

2.0

12.0

12.6

-

0.1

12.0

12.7

76.1

73.4

Grant received on 1 April, for expenditure incurred but not paid before 31 March, is accrued in these accounts.
Government Resource Accounting Budget
During the year limits set by Defra and the Scottish Executive for resource Departmental Expenditure Limit (DEL) and capital DEL,
as defined by the government's Resource Accounting Manual and set out in BW's Financial Memorandum, have not been exceeded.

3. Expenditure
Expenditure in the year is analysed as follows:
Total
2005/06
£m
Major works (incl. statutory maintenance arrears and dredging)
Employee costs
Depreciation
Other operating charges
Total expenditure

2004/05
£m
restated

36.0
61.4
4.8
87.9
190.1

37.6
58.8
4.9
85.2
186.5

2005/06
£000

2004/05
£000

478
2,355
186
8
144
159

793
2,504
172
43
171
156

Other operating charges include:

Loss on sale of operational fixed assets
Rents on leased properties
Auditors’ remuneration
- audit services
- non audit services
Board members’ emoluments
Inland Waterways Amenity Advisory Council expenses
The audit fee for BW was £125,000. (2005: £119,000).
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4. Employee costs
a The average number of persons (excluding board members) employed during the year was:
2005/06
Number

2004/05
Number

Total employed

1,926

1,935

Full-time equivalent

1,876

1,884

b Total employment costs (excluding board members' emoluments stated in the Remuneration Report) were:
2005/06
£m

2004/05
£m
restated

Wages and salaries

51.0

47.1

Social security costs

4.1

3.8

Pension costs
Total employment costs

6.3

7.9

61.4

58.8

c Senior employees emoluments
The number of senior employees whose emoluments, including the taxable value of benefits-in-kind, but excluding employer’s pension
contributions and payments on leaving service, were within the following ranges:
£

2005/06
Number

2004/05
Number

50,000 - 60,000

40

32

60,001 - 70,000

24

20

70,001 - 80,000

16

9

80,001 - 90,000

1

-

90,001 -100,000

2

3

100,001 - 110,000

2

1

110,001 - 120,000

1

-

140,001 - 150,000

1

-

The above table excludes board members and directors. Details of board members’ and directors’ emoluments which form part of these
financial statements, are included in the remuneration report on pages 68 and 69 respectively.

5. Consolidated interest payable
2005/06
£m

2004/05
£m

Interest on loans from Defra under Section 19 of the Transport Act 1962

0.8

1.1

Unwinding of discount on dowry liabilities

2.2

2.2

Other short-term interest

1.9

2.1

4.9

5.4

Interest on loans from Defra under Section 19 of the Transport Act 1962

0.4

0.5

Total interest payable

5.3

5.9

Interest payable on sums wholly repayable within five years:

Interest payable on all other loans
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6. Consolidated Taxation
The total tax charged/(credited) to profit and loss account and capital reserves is as follows:
a) Charged/(credited) to profit and loss account:
2005/06
£m

2004/05
£m
restated

4.1

1.6

Current tax
UK Corporation tax on profits for the period

(0.3)

0.3

Group current tax

3.8

1.9

Share of joint ventures’ and associates’ current tax, including adjustments in respect of prior years

2.3

-

Total current tax

6.1

1.9

Origination and reversal of timing differences

0.5

0.8

Adjustments in respect of prior years

0.2

0.5

Group deferred tax

0.7

Adjustments in respect of prior years

Deferred tax

Share of joint ventures’ and associates’ deferred tax, including adjustments in respect of prior years

-

1.3
(0.5)

Total deferred tax

0.7

0.8

Taxation charged on profit for the financial year

6.8

2.7

Provision required for capital gains in the current year

3.7

6.6

Adjustments in respect of prior years

0.5

0.2

Total current tax

4.2

6.8

b) Charged/(credited) to reserves:

In addition, a deferred tax charge relating to the actuarial losses on the defined benefit pension scheme of £4.3m (2005: £3.2m credit)
and a current tax credit of £nil (2005: £1.0m) has been debited/(credited) to the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses.
c) Factors affecting current tax charge
The current tax provision charged to the profit and loss account for the current year is higher/(lower) than the standard rate
of corporation tax in the UK (30%). The differences are explained below:
Loss for the financial year before taxation
Corporation taxation at 30%

20.3

5.0

6.1

1.5

Effects of:
0.3

0.6

Deferred/(accelerated) capital allowances

(0.3)

(0.5)

Other short term timing differences

(0.2)

(0.1)

Losses (brought forward utilised)/ arising in the year carried forward

(0.1)

0.3

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes/income not taxable

Losses arising in the year not recognised
Adjustments relating to prior years

0.1

0.2

-

0.3

-

(0.2)

Disposals to joint ventures

0.2

(0.2)

Total current tax

6.1

1.9

Capital loss on write off of investment
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d) Deferred tax
Recognised
2005/06
2004/05
£m
£m
restated

Not Recognised
2005/06
2004/05
£m
£m
restated

Group
Accelerated Capital Allowances

2.3

1.9

Short Term Timing Differences

(0.1)

(0.3)

Losses

(0.5)

(0.6)

(0.1)

-

1.7

1.0

(0.1)

-

Accelerated Capital Allowances

2.3

1.8

-

-

Short Term Timing Differences

(0.1)

(0.3)

-

-

Losses

(0.5)

(0.6)

-

-

1.7

0.9

-

-

Potential deferred tax (asset)/liability

-

-

-

-

BW

Potential deferred tax liability

In accordance with FRS19 no liability has been provided for deferred tax on gains recognised on revaluing property to its market value
or on the sale of properties where potentially taxable gains have been rolled over into replacement assets. Such tax would become payable
only if the property were sold without it being possible to claim rollover relief. The total amount unprovided is £93m (2005: £86m); £83m
for revalued properties (2005: £76m) and £10m for rolled over gains (2005: £10m). At present, it is not envisaged that any tax will become
payable in the foreseeable future.
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7. Tangible Fixed Assets
Group

Freehold Land
Buildings and Structures
Operational
Investment
£m
£m

Leasehold
Land and Buildings
Operational
Investment
£m
£m

Craft, Plant
and Equipment
Owned
£m

Total
£m

Cost or valuation
0.8

8.0

57.4

562.8

Transfers

1.1

(1.8)

0.9

(0.3)

0.1

-

Additions

0.8

11.1

0.2

13.8

2.3

28.2

At 1 April 2005

55.1

Impairment
Disposals

(0.3)

(0.7)

-

(0.5)

(1.6)

(1.2)
(36.9)

(35.0)

-

-

-

42.2

-

0.1

-

42.3

56.7

457.3

1.9

21.1

58.2

595.2

15.6

-

0.2

-

30.4

46.2

Revaluation
At 31 March 2006

441.5

Depreciation
At 1 April 2005
Transfers
Provision for year

-

0.1

-

(0.1)

-

-

-

3.9

-

-

-

-

(1.3)

(1.3)

16.5

-

0.3

-

32.9

49.7

Disposals
At 31 March 2006

-

0.9

4.8

Net book value
At 31 March 2006

40.2

457.3

1.6

21.1

25.3

545.5

At 31 March 2005

39.5

441.5

0.6

8.0

27.0

516.6

Leasehold
Land and Buildings
Operational
Investment
£m
£m

Craft, Plant
and Equipment
Owned
£m

Total
£m

BW

Freehold Land
Buildings and Structures
Operational
Investment
£m
£m

Cost or valuation
0.8

7.9

55.2

559.6

Transfers

0.5

(1.0)

0.5

(0.2)

0.2

-

Additions

0.8

11.1

0.1

13.8

1.6

27.4

At 1 April 2005

Impairment
Disposals
Revaluation
At 31 March 2006

55.1

(0.2)

440.6

(0.7)
(35.0)

(0.8)

(0.5)
-

(1.9)

(1.2)
(37.9)

-

42.2

-

0.1

-

42.3

56.2

457.2

0.6

21.1

55.1

590.2

Depreciation
At 1 April 2005

15.6

-

0.2

-

29.5

45.3

Transfers

(0.1)

-

0.1

-

-

-

0.9

-

-

3.8

4.7

-

-

(0.1)

-

(1.3)

(1.4)

16.4

-

0.2

-

32.0

48.6

At 31 March 2006

39.8

457.2

0.4

21.1

23.1

541.6

At 31 March 2005

39.5

440.6

0.6

7.9

25.7

514.3

Provision for year
Disposals
At 31 March 2006

-

Net book value

The value of fixed assets includes assets in the course of construction valued at £0.8m (2005: £2.5m).
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Group
2005/06
£m

BW
2004/05
£m

2005/06
£m

2004/05
£m

The surplus on revaluation at 31 March comprises:
Decrease in net revaluation from transfers between
investment and operational properties

(1.5)

Surplus on revaluation of investment properties

43.8

56.8

43.8

56.8

42.3

56.8

42.3

56.8

2005/06
£m

2004/05
£m

2005/06
£m

2004/05
£m

Cost

173.7

158.9

173.6

157.9

Revaluation surpluses

304.7

290.6

304.7

290.6

478.4

449.5

478.3

448.5

The net book value of investment properties
at 31 March comprises:

-

(1.5)

-

Depreciation
In accordance with Statement of Standard Accounting Practice No. 19, depreciation is not provided on investment properties.
This is a departure from the requirements of the Companies Act 1985. In the opinion of the board members, this departure
is required in order to show a true and fair view in these accounts.
Investment properties
Investment properties were revalued at 31 December 2005 on an open market value basis by Gerald Eve, Chartered Surveyors.
Based upon these valuations, British Waterways has incorporated a value of investment properties of £478.4m in these accounts.
BW continues to reposition its property portfolio through disposals and re-investment.
In the event that the investment properties were to be sold for their revalued amount, tax on such disposals would be approximately
£83m (2005: £76m).
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8. Fixed Asset Investments
BW
Group

BW

2005/06
£m

2004/05
£m

2005/06
£m

2004/05
£m

At 1 April

-

-

12.1

7.4

Additions

-

-

0.9

4.7

Amounts written off

-

-

(4.3)

At 31 March

-

-

8.7

12.1

Joint ventures
£m

Associates
£m

Other
investments
£m

Total
£m

3.2

7.8

0.1

11.1

7.8

(7.8)

Investments in subsidiaries
Shares at cost less amounts written off

-

Group
Net book value:
As at 1 April 2005 as previously reported
Joint ventures previously classified as associates
As at 1 April restated

11.0

-

Additions

18.9

-

Disposals

-

-

-

-

0.1

11.1

-

18.9

(0.1)

(0.1)

Net movement in share of net reserves

(0.9)

-

-

(0.9)

As at 31 March 2006

29.0

-

-

29.0

0.1

-

-

(0.1)

Net loans from group companies

37.1

-

-

37.1

Share of post acquisition results

(8.2)

-

-

(8.2)

As at 31 March 2006

29.0

-

-

29.0

Shares

0.1

-

0.1

0.2

Loans to joint ventures and associates

8.7

9.5

-

18.2

9.5

(9.5)

-

-

Represented by:
Shares at cost

BW
Cost:
As at 1 April 2005 as previously reported

Joint ventures previously classified as associates
As at 1 April restated

18.3

-

0.1

18.4

Net movement in loans to joint ventures

18.9

-

-

18.9

-

-

37.2

-

Disposals
As at 31 March 2006

( 0.1)

( 0.1)

-

37.2

Total 2006

Total 2005

An analysis of the group’s share of net assets of joint ventures was as follows:

£m

£m

Fixed assets

21.3

7.1

Current assets

44.9

24.5

Share of gross assets

66.2

31.6

Liabilities due within one year

(17.5)

(13.4)

Liabilities due after one year

(19.7)

(7.2)

Share of gross liabilities

(37.2)

(20.6)

29.0

11.0

Share of net assets
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a) Subsidiary undertakings
BW’s principal subsidiary undertakings are as follows:
- Blackwall Estates Ltd manages property in London Docklands.
- British Waterways Marinas Ltd operates inland waterway marinas.
- British Waterways Pension Trustees Ltd acts as trustee to the
British Waterways 1990 Pension Fund. The book value of BW’s
interest is represented by a debt of equal amount due to the
subsidiary and both have been eliminated from BW’s accounts.
- Granary Wharf Ltd manages property in Leeds.
- Leeds Canal Basin Development Ltd manages property in Leeds.
- Waterscape Ltd operates an online waterways website and
its activities have now been transferred in-house to BW.
- Wood Wharf Management Company Ltd manages property
in London Docklands.
- BW Reinsurance Ltd provides reinsurance to BW in respect
of property, motor and public products liability.

- Watergrid ceased trading as a joint venture company on 31
March 2005 and it was dormant during 2005/06. BW acquired
the company as a subsidiary on 27 July 2005.
Goodwill arises from BW’s investment in Leeds Canal Basin Ltd
and Granary Wharf Ltd totalling £3,109,000 and the directors have
performed an impairment review and no amortisation is required.
b) Investments in joint ventures and associated undertakings
The following information relates to those joint ventures and
associated undertakings of the Group at the year end whose
results or financial position, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affect the figures of the Group. All joint ventures
and associated undertakings of the Group are unlisted and
are registered and operate in the United Kingdom.

Accounting
Period End
Date

Issued
Share
Capital
£

Equity
Interest
Held
%

Main
Activity

Joint Ventures
ISIS Waterside Regeneration Ltd Partnership

31 December 2005

10,000

49.5%

Property development

Waterside Pub Partnership LLP

31 December 2005

100,000

50%

Pub management

Wood Wharf Ltd Partnership

31 December 2005

3

50%

Property development

City Road Basin Ltd

31 December 2005

100

49%

Property development

Edinburgh Quay Ltd

31 December 2005

100

49%

Property development

H2O Urban Ltd

31 December 2005

100

49%

Property development

Paddington Basin Business Barges Ltd

31 December 2005

1,000

49%

Office management

31 March 2006

2

49%

Property development

Timber Basin Ltd
Associated Undertakings
Euro-waterways Ltd

30 April 2005

90

49%

Property development

Nottingham Waterside Ltd

31 December 2005

1,000

49%

Property development

Waterwise UK Ltd

31 December 2005

1,000

49%

Water Safety

30 June 2005

1,000

49%

Property management

West India Quay Management Company Ltd

9. Stocks

Group
31 March 2006 31 March 2005
£m
£m

31 March 2006
£m

BW
31 March 2005
£m

0.5

0.2

Raw materials and consumables

0.5

Held for resale

1.4

1.9

0.4

0.6

1.9

2.1

0.9

0.8

10. Debtors
Note

0.2

Group
31 March 2006 31 March 2005
£m
£m

BW
31 March 2006 31 March 2005
£m
£m

Trade debtors

21.3

15.2

20.0

14.4

Prepayments and accrued income

11.9

14.8

11.8

14.5

5.0

11.0

5.0

11.0

6.8

6.8

6.8

6.8

2.4

1.5

2.4

1.5

47.4

49.3

46.0

48.2

Deferred consideration sale agreements
Grant-in-aid
Others

10a

a) Other long term debtors
Of the other debtors, £45,000 (2005: £115,000) will fall due after more than one year.
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11. Analysis of Net Funds
1 April
2005
£m

Cash
Flows
£m

31 March
2006
£m

24.9

12.5

37.4

- due within one year

(3.6)

3.0

(0.6)

- due after one year

(10.5)

0.6

(9.9)

10.8

16.1

26.9

1 April
2005
£m

Cash
Flows
£m

31 March
2006
£m

22.6

11.6

34.2

Group

Note

Cash at bank and in hand
Capital debt

17

Totals

BW
Cash at bank and in hand
Capital debt

17
(0.6)

- due within one year

(3.6)

- due after one year

(10.5)

0.6

8.5

15.2

23.7

Group
31 March 2006 31 March 2005
£m
£m

31 March 2006
£m

BW
31March 2005
£m

Totals

3.0

(9.9)

12. Creditors
a) Amounts falling due within one year
Note

Trade creditors

7.4

9.8

5.4

9.2

Taxation and social security

1.6

2.4

1.6

2.3

Corporation tax

7.2

6.8

7.1

6.8

-

-

3.3

4.3

Amounts owed to group undertakings
Other creditors

14.7

14.0

14.6

14.0

Accruals

18.4

19.1

17.5

17.6

23.0

20.5

26.2

25.0

72.3

72.6

75.7

79.2

45.6

45.7

45.6

45.7

Deferred income

12 c

b) Amounts falling due after more than one year
Deferred income

6.0

-

6.0

-

51.6

45.7

51.6

45.7

c) Deferred income
The balance on creditors includes deferred income arising from the receipt of cash dowries received in respect
of obligations to maintain assets acquired from other public bodies. Movements during the year were as follows:
2005/06
£m

2004/05
£m

Other creditors

Balance at 1 April 2005
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts falling due after more than one year

2.8

2.9

45.7

46.9

48.5

49.8

Acquisitions

0.3

-

Unwinding of discount

2.2

2.2

51.0

52.0

Release to profit and loss account

(3.0)

(3.5)

Balance at 31 March 2006

48.0

48.5

Balance at 31 March 2006 analysed as follows:
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts falling due after more than one year
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2.4

2.8

45.6

45.7

48.0

48.5

13. Provisions for liabilities and charges
Provision
1 April 2005
restated
£m

Paid
£m

Charged/
(released)
£m

Provision 31
March 2006
£m

6d

1.0

-

0.7

1.7

Previous Chairman’s pension costs

13a

0.1

-

(0.1)

Other post retirement benefits

13b

0.3

-

Other provisions

13 c

7.1
8.5

Group
Deferred taxation

Note

-

-

0.3

(1.6)

2.6

8.1

(1.6)

3.2

10.1

Provision
1 April 2005
restated
£m

Paid
£m

Charged/
(released)
£m

Provision 31
March 2006
£m

6d

0.9

-

0.7

1.6

Previous Chairman's pension costs

13a

0.1

-

(0.1)

Other post retirement benefits

13b

0.3

-

Other provisions

13 c

7. 7
9.0

BW
Deferred taxation

Note

-

-

0.3

(1.6)

2.1

8.2

(1.6)

2.7

10.1

Provisions are discounted where appropriate
a) Previous Chairman’s pension costs
An unfunded pension entitlement was arranged for the previous chairman, Dr. George Greener. No such arrangements are being made
for the current chairman, Mr. Tony Hales.
b) Other post retirement benefits
Under the terms of the 1962 Transport Act, employees transferring from the British Transport Commission to successor bodies were
entitled to retain their reduced cost travel benefits. Successor bodies, including BW, were made responsible for procuring the benefits
on their behalf.
Currently 2 BW employees and 233 pensioners retain entitlement to this benefit. A provision to cover the present value of the future
cost of these benefits is included in the balance sheet.
The provision was re-assessed at 31 March 2006 by independent qualified actuaries using discount rates consistent with those required
for pension liabilities under FRS17 as shown in note 22 to these accounts.
c) Other provisions
The other provisions relate principally to third party claims and a provision arising from leasehold properties previously occupied by BW.

14. Deferred capital grant
Group and BW
2004/05
£m

2005/06
£m
Balance at 1 April

11.6

13.3

Released to profit and loss account

(1.6)

(1.7)

Balance at 31 March

10.0

11.6
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15. Reserves
Investment
Realised
Property
Capital Revaluation
Reserve
Reserve
£m
£m

Unrealised
Capital
Capital
Reserve Contribution
£m
£m

Profit and
Loss
Account
£m

Totals
£m

Group
Balance at 1 April 2005
Prior year adjustment (see note 23)
Balance at 1 April 2005 restated
Profit for the financial year after taxation

162.4

290.6

4.1

4.1

(2.4)

458.8

-

-

-

-

(51.4)

(51.4)

162.4

290.6

4.1

4.1

(53.8)

407.4

-

-

-

-

13.5

13.5

-

-

-

Net decrease resulting from transfers between
investment and operational properties

(1.5)

-

(1.5)

Realisation of property revaluation gains of previous years

27.6

(27.6)

-

-

-

-

Unrealised surplus on revaluation of investment properties

-

43.8

-

-

-

43.8

11.5

-

-

-

(11.5)

-

3.5

-

-

-

(3.5)

-

Corporation tax on capital gains in current year

(4.8)

-

-

-

4.8

Corporation tax charge on realised property revaluation gains

(4.2)

-

-

-

-

Transfer of profit on sale of investment properties
from profit and loss account
Transfer of profit on sale of fixed asset investment
from profit and loss account

(4.2)

Gain on pension liability

-

-

-

-

14.2

14.2

Deferred tax associated with gain on pension liability

-

-

-

-

(4.3)

(4.3)

Repayment of Defra loan
Balance at 31 March 2006

-

-

-

3.6

196.0

305.3

4.1

7.7

162.4

290.6

4.1

-

-

-

162.4

290.6

-

-

-

3.6

(40.6)

472.5

4.1

(0.1)

461.1

-

(51.4)

(51.4)

4.1

4.1

(51.5)

409.7

-

-

11.3

-

-

-

BW
Balance at 1 April 2005
Prior year adjustment (see note 23)
Balance at 1 April 2005 restated
Profit for the financial year after taxation

11.3

Net decrease resulting from transfers
between investment and operational properties

(1.5)

-

(1.5)

Realisation of property revaluation gains of previous years

28.2

(28.2)

-

-

-

-

Unrealised surplus on revaluation of investment properties

-

43.8

-

-

-

43.8

12.6

-

-

-

(12.6)

-

3.5

-

-

-

(3.5)

-

Corporation tax on capital gains in current year

(4.8)

-

-

-

4.8

Corporation tax charge on realised property revaluation gains

(4.2)

-

-

-

-

Transfer of profit on sale of investment properties
from profit and loss account
Transfer of profit on sale of fixed asset investment
from profit and loss account

(4.2)

Gain on pension liability

-

-

-

-

14.2

14.2

Deferred tax associated with gain on pension liability

-

-

-

-

(4.3)

(4.3)

Adjustment for prior year taxation group relief
Repayment of Defra loan
Balance at 31 March 2006

0.8

-

-

-

-

0.8

-

-

-

3.6

-

3.6

198.5

304.7

4.1

7.7

(41.6)

473.4

The realised capital reserve includes the value of profits arising from the sale of property and other property rights and the realisation
of property revaluation gains of previous years, net of corporation tax.
The investment property revaluation reserve includes unrealised gains on property valuation.
The unrealised capital reserve includes the excess of the fair value of assets acquired on acquisition of a business over the fair value
of the consideration paid.
Capital contributions are from Defra to enable BW to repay National Loans Fund loans maturing before 2013 as they mature (see Note 17).
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16. Financial instruments
FRS13, Derivatives and Other Financial Instruments, requires
disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during
the period in creating or changing the risks an entity faces in
undertaking its activities. Details of BW’s statutory and financial
framework are set out on page 60 to 61 and because of BW’s
status as a public corporation, BW is not exposed to the degree of
financial risk faced by business entities. Also financial instruments
play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than
would be typical of the listed companies to which FRS13 mainly
applies. BW has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds
and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day
operational activities rather than being held to change by the risks
facing BW in undertaking its activities. BW is not exposed to risks
from currency fluctuations as business is conducted solely in sterling.
Liquidity risk
BW maintains short term liquidity by judicious management of its
cash deposits. BW is not exposed to significant liquidity risk due
to ongoing government funding and the ability to release cash as
necessary from investment properties or borrow from the National
Loans Fund.

Interest rate risk
The main risk arising from BW’s financial instruments is interest
rate risk. With the exception of National Loans Fund (NLF) loans
all financial instruments are subject to the prevailing UK floating
rate of interest.
Fair values
BW’s financial instruments comprise borrowings, cash deposits,
trade debtors, trade creditors and provisions that arise directly from
operations.
The fair value of debt to the National Loans Fund (see Note 17)
at 31 March 2006 is £13.6m (2005: £18m), calculated using
a discount factor of 3.5%.
The fair value of BW’s other financial instruments approximate
to fair value because of their short term maturity.

17. Amounts due to National Loans Fund
Group and BW
31 March
2006
£m

31 March
2005
£m

In one year or less

0.6

3.6

Between one and two years

2.1

0.6

Between two and five years

2.6

4.0

In more than five years

5.2

5.9

10.5

14.1

Loans are repayable as follows:

Total
Details of individual loans:
Maturity
Date

Rate of
Interest %

Amount
£m

Maturity
Date

Rate of
Interest %

Amount
£m

2 Apr 2006

141/4

0.6

2 Apr 2011

91/4

0.3

2 Apr 2007

151/8

0.4

2 Apr 2012

101/4

0.6

2 Apr 2007

133/4

1.3

2 Apr 2012

9

0.4

2 Oct 2007

135/8

0.3

2 Oct 2012

91/2

0.7

2 Apr 2008

121/8

0.2

2 Apr 2020

85/8

1.0

2 Apr 2008

11

0.8

2 Apr 2021

81/2

1.0

2 Apr 2009

111/4

0.9

2 Apr 2022

73/4

0.3

2 Apr 2010

111/8

0.6

2 Apr 2023

57/8

0.3

2 Apr 2010

107/8

0.1

2 Apr 2024

5

0.7

The government makes capital contributions to BW to enable BW to repay those loans maturing before 2013 (£7.4m) as they mature,
thus removing from BW the need to take out new loans to repay them.
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17. Amounts due to National Loans Fund (continued)
Borrowing authorised by Defra

Amount of debt due to National Loans Fund
Bank overdraft facility
Borrowing authorised by Defra

31 March

31 March

2006
£m

2005
£m

10.5

14.1

3.0

3.0

13.5

17.1

2005/06
£m
14.1

2004/05
£m
14.7

The bank overdraft facility is guaranteed by H.M. Treasury annually.

Analysis of changes in financing during the year
Capital Debt
At 1 April
Loans repaid

(3.6)

(0.6)

At 31 March

10.5

14.1

18. Capital Commitments
All capital commitments arise within BW. Capital expenditure for which BW had contracted at 31 March 2006 was £5.0m (2005: £1.2m).

19. Operating Leases
At 31 March 2006 the minimum lease payments due in the following year under operating leases to which the Group
was committed were as follows:
Land and buildings
Other operating leases
31 March
31 March
31 March
31 March
2006
2005
2006
2005
Group
£m
£m
£m
£m
Leases due to expire:
Within one year

0.2

0.1

0.5

0.2

Within two to five years

0.1

0.6

2.6

1.1

In more than five years

2.3

1.4

0.4

0.3

2.6

2.1

3.5

1.6

Within one year

0.2

0.1

0.5

0.2

Within two to five years

0.1

0.6

2.6

1.1

In more than five years

1.6

1.4

0.4

0.3

1.9

2.1

3.5

1.6

BW
Leases due to expire:

90 ACCOUNTS: NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

20. Related Party Transactions
During the year, BW entered into a number of transactions with related parties in the normal course of business and
on an arm’s-length basis. The names of these parties, the nature of these transactions and their total value is shown below.
BW policy is to appoint directors and senior members of staff to the Board of all group undertakings and other key
partners to ensure that BW's interests are properly represented.
Amount receivable/(payable)
during the year
£000

Amount receivable at
31 March 2006
£000

82

-

Rent payable

(82)

-

Transactions with the Heritage Lottery Fund, a non-departmental
public body of which Derek Langslow (board member) is a trustee.
Contribution to restoration works

776

Transactions with the Millennium Link Trust, a charitable
company limited by guarantee of which Jim Stirling
(technical director) is a director.
Rent receivable

1,407

Transactions with EnviroCentre Ltd, an environmental consultancy company
of which Prof. George Fleming (board member) is a director.
Payments made for consultancy services

(5)

-

Transactions with Country Lanes Ltd, a tourism company owned and managed
by Susan Achmatowicz (board member).
Payments made for consultancy services

(3)

-

(170)

-

Transactions with Thames 21, a registered environmental charity of which
Mark Bensted (director, London) is a trustee.
Contributions made to assist customer service initiatives
During the year BW entered into the following transactions with other bodies
sponsored by the Department of Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
Transactions with the Environment Agency
Contributions to maintenance and the Boat Safety Scheme
Discharge fees
Transactions with English Nature
Contributions to BW costs of maintaining sites of special scientific interest

398
(3)

10
-

10

21. Contingent Liabilities
Contingent liabilities arising from third party claims, valued at £1.5m (2005: £0.5m), are not included in the balance sheet as it is not
considered likely that the amounts will fall due for payment.
BW’s accounts include a distribution of £1.7m (2005: £1.4m) from ISIS, our property joint venture partnership, arising from profits
on projects completed in the year. Under the provisions of the ISIS Waterside Regeneration Limited Partnership’s Development
Partnership Agreement dated 18 July 2002, ISIS is required to make distributions on account of ultimate Partnership profits.
During the year to 31 March 2006, ISIS made a net loss of £1.0m and at 31 March 2006, had a negative P&L reserve of
£5.4m arising from costs that will be allocated to development profits as each of the remaining sites are sold. There is a risk
that any over-distributions are reclaimable from the Partners.
In the opinion of the board members, it is unlikely that any distributions made to date will prove to be over-distributions.
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22. Retirement benefits
BW operates a single funded defined benefit pension scheme for all staff. Contributions to the Scheme are determined by the Board,
after considering the advice of independent professionally qualified actuaries, as part of the formal triennial actuarial valuations of the
Scheme. The last formal triennial valuation of the Scheme using the projected unit method, was carried out as at 31 March 2004 and
the amounts of employer contributions agreed for the three-year period from 1 April 2005 are 12% of members’ pensionable earnings
plus £2.3m a year (increasing each year in line with price inflation plus 1.5% a year).
The valuation of the Scheme used for FRS17 disclosures has been based on the most recent actuarial valuation of BW’s scheme
at 31 March 2004 and updated to 31 March 2006 by Watson Wyatt Ltd, professionally qualified actuaries. The key assumptions
used are as follows:
As at 31 March
2006

2005

2004

Rate of increase in pensionable salaries

4.3 %

4.3 %

4.3 %

Rate of increase for pensions in payment and deferred pensions

2.75%

2.75%

2.75%

Discount rate

4.95%

5.4 %

5.5 %

Inflation assumption

2.75%

2.75%

2.75%

The assets in the Scheme and the expected future rates of return at 31 March 2006 were:
31 March 2006
%
£m

31 March 2005
%
£m

31 March 2004
%
£m

139.1

8.0

115.5

8.1

Equities

7.8

Property

7.8

13.1

8.0

10.6

8.1

8.9

Bonds

4.4

94.4

4.8

79.2

4.9

68.4

Other assets (see note below)

3.75

9.9

4.0

0.9

4.0

Total fair value of assets
Present value of scheme liabilities (restated)

109.3

0.3

256.5

206.2

186.9

(309.8)

(273.7)

(244.0)

(53.3)

(67.5)

(57.1)

Deficit in the scheme
Related deferred tax asset
Net pension liability

16.0

20.3

17.1

(37.3)

(47.2)

(40.0)

The value of scheme liabilities for prior years have been restated to reflect an allowance for the impact on members’ benefits
of correcting recently discovered errors in the historic calculation of Final Pensionable Earnings.
The value of other assets of £9.9m at 31 March 2006 comprises cash received from BW at the end of March in respect
of deficit and future contributions.
31 March 2006
Analysis of the amount charged to operating profit
£m

31 March 2005
£m

Current service cost

6.4

8.0

Past service costs

0.1

0.6

Total charged to operating profit

6.5

8.6

31 March 2006
£m

31 March 2005
£m

13.9

12.9

(14.6)

(13.4)

(0.7)

(0.5)

The amount (charged)/credited to other finance income
Expected return on scheme assets
Interest on scheme liabilities
Net return

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses (STRGL)
Gain on assets
Experience loss on liabilities
Loss on change of assumptions (financial and demographic)
Total gain/(loss) recognised in STRGL before adjustment for tax
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31 March 2006
£m

31 March 2005
£m

35.5

1.5

1.9

(3.4)

(23.2)

(11.8)

14.2

(13.7)

2005/06
£m

Movement in deficit in the Scheme during the year
Deficit in the scheme at 1 April
Contributions paid

2004/05
£m

(67.5)

(57.1)

7.2

12.4

Current service cost

(6.4)

(8.0)

Past service cost

(0.1)

(0.6)

Other finance expense

(0.7)

(0.5)

Actuarial gain/(loss)

14.2

(13.7)

(53.3)

(67.5)

Deficit in the scheme at 31 March before tax

History of experience gains and losses
31 March 2006
%
£m

31 March 2005
%
£m

31 March 2004
%
£m

31 March 2003
%
£m
33.8

(52.0)

-

0.1

33.0

(73.1)

Difference between actual and
13.8

35.5

0.7

1.5

12.2

Experience gains and losses on liabilities

0.6

1.9

1.2

(3.4)

0.7

(1.6)

Total amount recognised in STRGL

4.6

14.2

5.0

(13.7)

6.2

15.1

expected returns on assets

22.8

Provisions in respect of unfunded pension arrangements (see note 13) have been calculated using the discount rates shown above and
therefore are consistent with FRS17.

23. Restatement of comparatives
The adoption of FRS17 Retirement Benefits (see note 22) has required a change to the accounting treatment of pensions and the prior
year has been restated accordingly as follows:
Other
Profit for the
Operating costs finance expense
year before tax
Consolidated profit and loss account
£m
£m
£m
Year ended 31 March 2005 as previously reported

(184.3)

Adoption of FRS17
Year ended 31 March 2005 restated

Debtors
£m

-

7.7

(2.2)

(0.5)

(2.7)

(186.5)

(0.5)

5.0

Deferred tax
provision
£m

Pension liability
£m

Profit and
loss account
£m

BW Group Balance sheet
Year ended 31 March 2005 as previously reported

55.3

(2.8)

-

(2.4)

Adoption of FRS17

(6.0)

1.8

(47.2)

(51.4)

Year ended 31 March 2005 restated

49.3

(1.0)

(47.2)

(53.8)

Year ended 31 March 2005 as previously reported

54.2

(2.7)

Adoption of FRS17

(6.0)

Year ended 31 March 2005 restated

48.2

BW Balance sheet

The profit and loss charge, under SSAP 24, comprised a regular
pension cost net of spreading of the pension fund deficit over the
average remaining service lives of the relevant employees and a
notional interest credit. Under FRS17, three new items are included
in the profit and loss account:
• Charged to operating profit
– the full service cost of pension provision relating to the
period, together with the costs of any benefits relating
to past service.

-

(0.1)

1.8

(47.2)

(51.4)

(0.9)

(47.2)

(51.5)

• Included in other finance income
– a charge equal to the expected increase in the present value
of the scheme liabilities because the benefits are closer
to settlement; and netted against this,
– a credit equivalent to the Group’s long-term expected return
on assets based on the market value of the scheme assets
at the start of the period.
Included in the statement of total recognised gains and losses is the
difference between the expected return on pension assets and that
actually achieved along with differences, which arise from experience
or assumption changes in pension liabilities.
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24. Segmental analysis of continuing operations
a) BW Group analysis

2005/06
British Waterways Board
Leisure subsidiaries
Property subsidiaries
Other subsidiaries
Joint venture undertakings

2004/05 (restated)
British Waterways Board
Leisure subsidiaries
Property subsidiaries
Other subsidiaries
Joint venture undertakings
Associated undertakings

(Loss)/Profit
transferred
to reserves
£m

(Loss)/Profit
before tax
£m

Net assets/
(liabilities) at
31 March
£m

Total revenue
£m

Operating costs
£m

183.1
5.8
0.8
0.8
190.5

182.1
6.3
0.6
1.1
190.1

20.1
(0.4)
0.2
(0.2)
0.6
20.3

3.1
0.7
0.1
(0.2)
(0.4)
3.3

487.1
(2.9)
2.9
(0.2)
(3.9)
483.0

172.2
5.3
0.9
0.7
179.1

178.5
6.5
0.8
0.7
186.5

7.2
(1.3)
0.2
0.1
0.6
(1.8)
5.0

0.8
(1.3)
0.2
0.6
(1.3)
(1.0)

424.4
(2.8)
2.8
0.1
(1.2)
(1.8)
421.5

Figures are reported after incorporating Group consolidation adjustments. The 2004/05 figures are restated for FRS17 adjustments.

b) Analysis of BW direct income and expenditure (excludes group undertakings)
Multiple use
waterways
05/06
04/05
£m
£m

Leisure use
waterways
05/06
04/05
£m
£m

Not fully navigable
waterways
05/06
04/05
£m
£m

Total
05/06
04/05
£m
£m

Income from property
Rents from investment properties
Rents from leisure properties

10.0

6.8

14.8

16.0

0.5

0.4

25.3

23.2

0.5

0.4

3.0

2.6

-

0.2

3.5

3.2

6.2

5.4

26.6

21.3

1.6

1.6

34.4

28.3

16.7

12.6

44.4

39.9

2.1

2.2

63.2

54.7

Craft licences and moorings

2.2

1.9

13.8

12.7

0.1

0.4

16.0

15.0

Retail

1.8

0.2

1.1

2.5

-

-

2.9

2.7

-

-

0.5

0.5

-

-

0.5

0.5

4.0

2.1

15.3

15.7

0.1

0.4

19.4

18.2

Water charges

1.6

1.4

2.1

2.1

0.3

0.4

4.0

3.9

Tolls and dues

0.5

0.5

-

0.1

-

-

0.5

0.6

2.1

1.9

2.1

2.2

0.3

0.4

4.5

4.5

Contributions to non-statutory works

5.4

2.4

8.6

13.9

0.5

0.7

14.5

17.0

Other income

0.2

0.2

0.7

1.0

-

-

0.9

1.2

Other rents, wayleaves, licences and easements
Income from leisure uses

Angling
Income from commercial uses

Income from other uses

Maintenance agreements

Total direct income
Government grant
Total revenue
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1.3

1.0

3.0

2.0

0.2

0.2

4.5

3.2

6.9

3.6

12.3

16.9

0.7

0.9

19.9

21.4

29.7

20.2

74.1

74.7

3.2

3.9

107.0

98.8

76.1

73.4

183.1

172.2

Expenditure
Multiple use
waterways
05/06
04/05
£m
£m

Leisure use
waterways
05/06
04/05
£m
£m

Not fully navigable
waterways
05/06
04/05
£m
£m

Total
05/06
£m

04/05
£m

36.0

37.0

Major works (incl. statutory maintenance
arrears and dredging)

5.5

8.2

29.8

28.1

0.7

0.7

Staff costs

14.8

10.8

43.3

45.4

2.0

2.4

60.1

58.6

Other operating charges

24.0

13.9

54.9

63.0

2.4

1.2

81.3

78.1

Depreciation
Total expenditure
Waterway lengths

1.5

1.1

3.1

3.5

0.1

0.2

4.7

4.8

45.8

34.0

131.1

140.0

5.2

4.5

182.1

178.5

358 miles

1,535 miles

111 miles

2,004 miles

The following waterways have been categorised as multiple use waterways:
Aire & Calder Navigation
Caledonian Canal
Crinan Canal
Gloucester & Sharpness Canal
New Junction Canal
River Ouse
River Trent
River Severn
Tees Navigation
South Yorkshire Navigation
Weaver Navigation

The following waterways have been categorised as not fully navigable waterways:
Cromford Canal
Grantham Canal
Manchester, Bolton & Bury Canal
Montgomery Canal
Pocklington Canal
St. Helens Canal
Swansea Canal
All other waterways have been categorised as leisure waterways.
The categorisation of waterways used in this analysis does not affect British Waterways’ obligations set out in the
Transport Act 1968.
The majority of income and expenditure, including major repairs and renovations, can be directly attributed to waterway
categories. Remaining income and expenditure is apportioned between waterway categories in the above analysis on
a mileage basis.
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SCOTLAND
ACCOUNTS
Profit and Loss Account Scotland year to 31 March 2006
2005/06
£m

2004/05
£m

6.9

7.4

Scottish Executive Grant

12.0

12.6

Total Revenue

18.9

20.0

Major works

(6.1)

(7.0)

Staff Costs

(5.9)

(5.0)

Depreciation

(0.3)

(0.4)

Other Operating Charges

(7.6)

(8.9)

(19.9)

(21.3)

(1.0)

(1.3)

Profit on sale of investment properties

0.7

1.5

Dividends received from joint ventures

3.1

-

Interest receivable

0.3

0.3

Profit for the financial year before tax (transferred to BW Group reserves)

3.1

0.5

2005/06
£m

2004/05
£m

15.2

15.9

Direct Income

Total Expenditure
Operating loss

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2006

Fixed assets
Tangible assets

2.7

7.7

17.9

23.6

-

0.1

Debtors

3.8

4.0

Cash at bank and in hand

0.4

-

4.2

4.1

(4.1)

(6.6)

0.1

(2.5)

Investments in joint ventures
Current assets
Stocks

Less:
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
Net current assets/(liabilities)
Total assets less current liabilities
Provisions for liabilities and charges
Deferred capital grant

18.0

21.1

-

(0.1)

(1.1)

(1.1)

16.9

19.9

5.2

6.6

11.7

13.3

16.9

19.9

Financed by:
Investment property revaluation reserve
Funding from BW Group
Note: These accounts do not consolidate the accounts of joint venture companies.
96 ACCOUNTS: SCOTLAND ACCOUNTS

Grant receivable from the Scottish Executive
2005/06
£m

2004/05
£m

Grant received in year

12.0

13.0

Accrued grant at 1 April

(2.0)

(2.4)

2.0

2.0

12.0

12.6

31 March 2006
£m

31 March 2005
£m

Freehold land, buildings and structures operational

4.9

4.7

Freehold land, buildings and structures investment

8.2

9.2

Accrued grant at 31 March

Analysis of fixed assets

a) Tangible fixed assets (net book value)

Craft plant and equipment

2.1

2.0

15.2

15.9

b) Investments
Loans to joint ventures:
Balance at 1 April
Net movement on loans
Balance at 31 March

Edinburgh Quay Limited
Timber Basin Limited

7.7

6.5

(5.0)

1.2

2.7

7.7

Issued share
capital
£

Equity interest
held
%

100

49

2

49

The principal activity of each joint venture is property development. Further details are explained on page 51 in the Scotland report.
The aggregate amount of capital and reserves and the profit and loss for the year was as follows:
Capital and
Profit/(loss)
Reserves
for the year
£m
£m
Edinburgh Quay Limited (31 December 2005)
Timber basin Ltd (31 March 2006)

7.2

10.4

-

-
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ACCOUNTS
DIRECTION
British Waterways Board direction given by
the Secretary of State for the Department for
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs in respect
of the annual accounts.

The Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs in
exercise of the powers conferred by section 24 of the Transport Act
1962 and of all other powers enabling him in that respect, and with
the consent of the Treasury and in consultation with the Scottish
Executive, hereby makes the following direction.
1. The annual accounts, which it is the duty of the British
Waterways Board (hereinafter referred to as British Waterways)
to prepare in respect of each accounting year until further notice,
shall comprise in respect of British Waterways:
(a) in respect of the Board and its subsidiaries
(i)

a Board Members’ Report

(ii) a Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
(iii) a Consolidated Statement of Total Recognised
Gains and Losses
(iv) a Consolidated Balance Sheet; and
(v) a Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
(b) in respect of the Board (public corporation)
(i)

a Balance Sheet;

including in each case such notes as may be necessary
for the purposes referred to in paragraph 2, right.

98 ACCOUNTS: ACCOUNTS DIRECTION

2. The annual accounts referred to in paragraph 1 left, shall give
a true and fair view of the profit or loss, state of affairs and cash
flows of British Waterways and its subsidiaries. Subject to the
foregoing requirements, without limiting the information given,
and save as described in Schedule 1 to this direction, the annual
accounts shall also, where applicable, comply with:
(a) the accounting and disclosure requirements of companies
legislation currently in force;
(b) the accounts disclosure requirements of para 43 of Chapter 12
of the Financial Services Authority listing rules;
(c) the best commercial accounting practice as defined by UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP) and
accounting standards adopted or issued by the Accounting
Standards Board; and
(d) any additional disclosure or accounting requirements that the
Treasury may issue from time to time in respect of public
corporations’ accounts.
3. The balance sheet shall be prepared under the historical cost
convention modified by the revaluation of investment properties.

4. Clarification of the application of the accounting and disclosure
requirements of the Companies Act and accounting standards is
given in Schedule 1 to this Direction. The annual accounts shall
include the information set out in Schedule 2 to this direction.
5. The Direction shall be reproduced as an annex to the
annual accounts.
6. The Direction issued on 27 January 2003 is hereby revoked.
Dated May 2005
Signed by authority of the Secretary of State
J Roberts
A Senior Civil Servant in the Department
for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
Schedule 1
In the balance sheet, loans from the Secretary of State shall be
grouped with capital and reserves. Interest on these loans shall be
separately disclosed in the profit and loss account. When preparing
its balance sheet, British Waterways shall have regard to the balance
sheet format 1 prescribed in Schedule 4 to the Companies Act
1985. Items A to J in Format 1 shall be presented so as to show
the total of those items separately from the totals of item K (capital
and reserves). The disclosure exemptions permitted by the Companies
Act for small and medium size companies do not apply unless
approved by the Treasury.
Schedule 2
(I) The board members’ report shall
(a) contain the information which the Companies Act 1985
requires to be disclosed in the directors’ report, where
appropriate;
(b) state that the accounts have been prepared in a form
notified by the Secretary of State with the consent of
the Treasury in accordance with the relevant statute and

(III) The annual accounts shall also disclose details of:
(a) rents receivable for the year showing separately rents from
investment property and rents from other property;
(b) interests during the year in other transport undertakings
and other trade investments;
(c) government grant received during the year reconciled
to income from grant as shown in the profit and loss
account;
(d) indebtedness to the Secretary of State (National Loans
Fund) at the year end including details of maturity dates,
interest rates and information about the use of British
Waterways’ borrowing powers.
(e) the chairman’s and board members’ emoluments for
the year provided written consent has been obtained
to disclosure under the Data Protection Act 1998 and
if consent to disclosure is withheld then a statement
to that effect against the name of the individual (this
consent is not required where a requirement to disclose
is a condition in the employment contract);
(f) staff costs for the year, excluding non-executive board
members, according to categories of staff;
(g) a statement of the number of employees during the year,
excluding board members, whose emoluments excluding
pension contributions fell in each bracket of a scale in
multiples of £10,000, starting at £50,000.
(h) a statement that the resource Departmental Expenditure
Limit (DEL), capital DEL and resource annually managed
expenditure budget limits set by the Department and
Scottish Ministers have not been exceeded.

(c) include a brief history and statutory background of British
Waterways.
(II) The annual accounts, or the notes thereto, shall disclose:
the turnover and other operating income, operating costs,
each analysed as follows:
(a) British Waterways (public corporation) to include an analysis
of expenditure on:
(i) multiple use waterways,
(ii) leisure waterways and
(iii) waterways not fully navigable
(b) British Waterways’ subsidiary companies
(c) British Waterways’ share of joint ventures and associates
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Five year summaries
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
BW Group*
2005/06
£m
Direct income from:

BW Group
2004/05
£m
restated

BW Group
2003/04
£m

BW Group
2002/03
£m

BW
2001/02
£m

Property

64.0

55.7

53.1

49.9

40.1

Leisure uses

25.2

23.3

20.4

18.1

15.6

4.5

4.5

4.5

4.4

4.9

14.5

17.0

14.3

27.9

43.0

1.7

1.8

6.2

7.4

6.4

Commercial uses
Contributions to non-statutory works
Other income
Maintenance agreements
Direct income
Government grant
Total revenue
Operating (loss)/profit
Share of operating profit and losses of associates and joint ventures
Profit on sale of investment properties
Profit on sale of other fixed asset investment
Profit on sale of other property rights
Exceptional costs of business reorganisation

4.5

3.4

4.1

1.9

1.0

114.4

105.7

102.6

109.6

111.0

76.1

73.4

94.8

82.0

64.6

190.5

179.1

197.4

191.6

175.6

0.4

(7.4)

(3.8)

(19.5)

(9.9)

7.7

1.1

(0.9)

1.1

-

11.5

14.8

7.6

3.8

2.1

3.5

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

45.9

-

-

-

-

-

-

(5.4)

(0.7)

(0.5)

Net interest (payable)/receivable

(2.1)

(3.0)

0.7

(34.0)

(1.5)

Profit/(loss) for the financial year before taxation

20.3

5.0

(1.8)

(48.6)

36.6

Taxation on profits

(6.8)

(2.7)

0.3

4.4

(2.7)

Profit/(loss) for the financial year after taxation

13.5

2.3

(1.5)

(44.2)

33.9

577.6

530.8

Other finance income

-

BALANCE SHEET
Assets employed
Fixed assets

502.1

396.6

362.7

Current assets

86.7

76.3

79.9

90.9

101.3

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

(72.3)

(72.6)

(71.1)

(69.5)

(58.9)

Net current assets

14.4

3.7

8.8

21.4

42.4

418.0

405.1

Total assets less current liabilities

592.0

534.5

510.9

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

(51.6)

(45.7)

(66.4)

Provisions for liabilities and charges

(10.1)

(8.5)

(12.5)

(13.0)

(12.4)

Deferred capital grant

(10.0)

(11.6)

(13.3)

(14.2)

(10.5)

Pension liability

(37.3)

(47.2)

(17.0)

(17.1)

-

-

-

483.0

421.5

418.7

373.8

365.1

472.5

407.4

404.0

359.1

348.8

10.5

14.1

14.7

14.7

16.3

483.0

421.5

418.7

373.8

365.1

478.4

449.5

419.3

317.6

292.9

Financed by
Reserves
Debt

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Net book value of investment properties (£m)
Annual revaluation of investment properties (£m)
Rental yield per accounts

43.8

56.8

43.5

25.2

15.8

5.6%

6.3%

7.7%

6.3%

6.3%

*2002/03 was the first year that BW presented consolidated accounts. Comparatives for Group results are not included
for years prior to 2002/03.
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BUDE CANAL

Douglas

Ayr

FORTH
& CLYDE
CANAL

Plymouth

Swansea

GLASGOW

Clydebank

LOCH
LOMOND

Stirling

Exeter

Torquay

EXETER SHIP
CANAL

Dunfermline

Perth

Shrewsbury

BRIDGWATER &
TAUNTON CANAL

STAFFS
& WORCS
CANAL

Wor
Worcester
orcester

RIVER PARRETT

Bath

SHARPNESS
DOCKS

Lydney
Harbour

Bristol

Wakefield

LEEDS

Harrogate

RIPON
CANAL

3

Darlington

Middlesbrough

RIVER
URE

York

TEES NAVIGATION
AND BARRAGE

AIRE &
CALDER
NAVIGATION

LOWER AVON
NAVIGATION

COTSWOLD CANALS
(PHASE
PHASE ONE AND TWO)
TWO

Bournemouth

KENNET & AVON
CANAL

Other AINA waterways

Portsmouth

BASINGSTOKE CANAL

Windsor

Maidenhead
RIVER
Slough
THAMES

Basingstoke

9

ELY OUSE

Hertford

WATFORD

Bedford

RIVER STORT
NAVIGATION

RIVER ARUN

Brighton

WEY & ARUN CANAL

Guildford

RIVER WEY

RIVER THAMES

Chelmsford

CHELMER &
BLACKWATER
NAVIGATION

RIVER MEDWAY

Rye Harbour

Maidstone

Colchester

RIVER STOUR

Bury St. Edmunds

RIVER LARK

Southend-on-Sea

RIVER LEE NAVIGATION

10

Bishop’s
Stortford

RIVER CAM
RIVER GREAT OUSE Cambridge

OLD WEST RIVER

RIVER LITTLE OUSE

RIVER WISSEY

GREAT OUSE RIVER

King’ss Lynn
L

TEN MILE OUSE
NEW
BEDFORD
RIVER

SIXTEEN
FOOT
OLD BEDFORD
RIVER

TWENTY
FOOT

RIVER NENE

OLD
RIVER
NENE

REGENT’S HERTFORD UNION CANAL
CANAL
PADDINGTON
BOW BACK RIVERS
PADDINGTON BRANCH
LIMEHOUSE CUT
SLOUGH
LONDON DOCKLANDS
ARM

GRAND UNION CANAL

WENDOVER ARM

AYLESBURY ARM

MILTON KEYNES

GRAND UNION
CANAL

Northampton

RIVER NENE

MIDDLE LEVEL
NAVIGATIONS

Peterborough

RIVER GLEN

Boston

RIVER WELLAND

WITHAM
NAVIGATION

SLEAFORD
NAVIGATION
Grantham

NEWARK

TRENT NAVIGATION

Lincoln

LOUTH
NAVIGATION

Kingston Upon
Hull

Scunthorpe

RIVER
ANCHOLME

FOSSDYKE NAVIGATION

RIVER
TRENT

MARKET
WEIGHTON
CANAL

RIVER
HULL

DRIFFIELD
NAVIGATION

Scarborough

GRANTHAM
CANAL

GRAND UNION CANAL
LEICESTER LINE

Reading

Oxford

Southampton

OXFORD
CANAL

Banbury

GRAND
UNION
CANAL

RIVER THAMES
Swindon

GLOUCESTER & SHARPNESS CANAL

8

Coventry
Stratford-upon-Avon
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The Grand Union Canal in Northampton
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